
• • 
A Okay. 

2 Q So just looking at all these, these have all been 

3 effected -- they al l went into e ffect in the year 2008 , 

4 correct? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q And so you woul d have been receiving this rental 

7 money or not this rental money, these interest payments or 

8 these are these interest only payments or are these 

9 principal 

10 A Interest only, yes. 

I I Q Okay. So these interest only p ayment s you ' ve 

12 received during a portion of 200 8, all of 2009 and so far all 

13 of 2010; is that corr ect? 

14 A Yes . 

I S Q And what did you do with those rental monies? 

16 A All the monies would flow into Banone . 

17 Q Okay. So they go in to the Ba none account? 

18 A Yes , sir . 

19 Q All right . Did you share any o f those rental monies 

20 wi th Lynita? 

21 

22 

0' -> 

A No , sir . 

Q Okay . Now moving t o t he bottom section . We ' ve got, 

starting with Amanda's notes . can you explain wha t we're 

24 loo king at here? Again, these are all promisso ry notes ver y 
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• • 
similar to what we've just discussed? 

2 A Yes, sir. 

3 Q But many of them you ' ve put off until --

4 MR. JIMMERSON : January 1 or April 1 -- I'm sorry, 

5 January of 2011. 

6 THE WITNESS: No. It actually says in the nota t ion, 

7 number 18, first payment, 1/1/11. Here ' s one that's 4/1/10, 

8 and it did start at 4/1/10, 3/1/11. So the reference on when 

9 they start is in the pink. 

10 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

I I Q Okay. So l ook i ng at line item 16, Amanda ' s note. 

12 Is .~anda paying the 630 a month? 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q And then the 30,000, that ' s the --

15 A That's the g i ft. 

16 Q Okay. You didn't discuss that. That is what? 

17 A A -- according to IRS r ule, we can only gift 

18 Q We l l, what i s that -- what is the 30,000? 

19 A Tha t is t he -- what I put for the down paymen t f or 

20 her . 

21 Q Okay. 

22 A And then we gift that over a period of time, me and 

23 Lynita, unti l it ' s gone. 

24 Q Okay . So that money's not going to be recovered? 
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• • 
A That's u n recoverable, that 30 ,000 , that ' s co rrect . 

2 Q So when you get down t o your bottom number 867 , 

~ that ' s not really correct , that ' s at least 30,000 of f ? 

4 A Unless we enforce the $30 , 000 payment. 

5 Q All right . Then you ' ve go t J .D. Ra mos Tru s t; is 

6 that 

7 A Tha t ' 5 Joan . 

8 Q J oan . 

9 A Yes . 

10 Q NOW, you have -- she put how much do"m, a $520 down 

I I payment? 

12 A No, that ' s the payment amount. 

13 Q Oh , I ' m so rry . You ' re r ight. What ' s the down 

14 paymen t? 

15 A I don ' t be l ieve there was a down payment with 

16 Joan ' s . 

17 Q All right. So -- and then you deferred i t until 

18 January 1s t of 201 1? 

19 A Yes, sir . 

20 Q Okay . Now, you were -- you said -- testified here 

21 earlier t oday that you were unaware that -- that - - now th is 

22 is t he 

A 

24 Q 

the woman that' s been wo rking with you for 22 years ? 

Yes , sir . 

Okay . And you s aid earlier today in your testimony 
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that you were una"Jare that she ' 5 in bankruptcy? 

2 A She ' 5 cont emp lated i t, I ' m not sure she ' 5 fi l ed . 

3 Q Wel l , do you recall being at her depc s i tion ? 

4 A No. Wel l , yes, but I don't recal l the exact 

5 conversation of the bankruptcy. I ' m sorry. 

6 Q Well , you were at the deposition; is that correct? 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q And Mr . Jimmerson was at her deposition; is that 

9 true? 

10 A I believe so . 

1 1 Q And her deposition was ta ken at my office on June 

12 22"d of this year? 

13 A Yes, sir . 

14 Q And Ms_ Provost was the attorney representing your 

15 wife at -- at that deposition, correct? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q And do you recall -- do you recall the question 

18 being asked of Ms. Ramos : 

19 "Q Okay . I n looking at that response that you 

20 provided i t i nd i cates that you fil ed for Chapter 7 

2 1 bankruptcy protect ion . " 

22 Her answer : 

?' -> 

24 

"A 

Q 

Correct . 

When was that filed? 
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• • 
A It ' s been within the l ast two months ." 

2 Now, in latter portion of it, now, this -- this -- this 

3 promissory note from her is with respec t to t he Gateway lot; 

4 is that correct? 

5 .n.. No . 

6 Q Oh, this is her condo? 

7 A This is her house , yes , sir . 

8 (Whispered conversation) 

9 Q Okay. 

10 HR . JIMMERSON : Jesus Christ. 

I I Q All righ t. 

12 MR . JIMMERSON: He l et her buy a house. 

13 BY MR . DICKERSON: 

14 Q So with respect to a -- how did it corne -- how did 

15 it come to be that -- that she received your seven Gateway 

16 lots? 

17 A That was from the Wyoming Down transact i on . It ' s 

18 actually eight lots at the time . When we compl eted and made 

19 about $13 - million, Joan was the project coordinator on that 

20 deal . I had purchased those lots --

21 Q No, that ' s her test i mony. I ' m not asking that 

22 question. This was - -

?' -, 
24 

A 

Q 

Oh, I t hought you asked that quest i on. I ' m sorry . 

Do you reca l l her saying that she was going to be 
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• • 
turning the Gateway lot s back? 

2 A She has indicated t hat she ' s put the -- was think ing 

3 about turn i ng the lot s back . 

4 Q We ll, she's in bankrupt cy would you agree? 

5 A I ' m no t sure if s he's in bankruptcy. 

6 Q Okay . 

7 A But I believe she ' s -- she ' s heading toward 

8 b ankruptc y, yes , sir. 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

\3 

14 

15 

16 home 

17 

18 

19 back 

20 

21 

22 specu 

24 

Q Well , she said s he filed two months ago --

A I ' m not sure what the meaning --

Q when we t oo k her deposition --

~. o f i t is, Bob . 

Q in J une . 

A Does it maLter? 

Q Okay . So Lha t is a house now. Is that -- is that 

secured by a deed o f trust? 

A Firs t deed of trust. 

Q Okay . So that home appears i s goi ng to be coming 

to yo u; is that correc t? 

A I said I ~ ~ 

MR . JIMMERSON: Object ion , that c alls for 

at ion. 

MR. DICKERSON: Wel l, she's in ba nkruptcy, si r . 

MR. JIMMERSON: So what she ' s in bank ruptcy . She 
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• • 
can affirm the house , affirm t he debt and keep the house . 

2 THE COUR'f : She can affirm it , she can walk away 

3 fr om it. 

4 THE ~'HTNESS : That · 5 a cheap p ayment . 

5 THE COURT: So - -

6 THE WITNESS: It· 5 540. That t 5 c heap . 

7 THE COURT : Okay. So she -- but you haven 't filed a 

8 claim yet in her --

9 THE WITNESS: No. 

10 THE COURT : All right . 

11 BY MR . DICKERSON : 

12 Q Al l righ t. So . l oo king at these then, we s ee that 

13 dur i ng the month of January you received roughly 2600 , 

14 correct? 

15 A That's collectively as far as the s howing what we ' d 

16 have col lected. Again 

17 Q 

18 and 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

21 Q 

,--, A 

24 Q 

rle l l , that r s just f o r the two notes. Nicky I s note 

and Amanda ' s note? 

Yes . 

Okay . So you 

That section, yes . 

-- you received twenty 

I believe that wou ld be correct', yes . 

You rec eived $2630, correct? 
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A 

2 Q 

3 A 

4 Q 

5 A 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 A 

10 Q 

I I total of 

12 A 

13 Q 

14 correct? 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

7' _ J 

24 about. 

• • 
Yes. 

Same thing for February? 

Yes, s i r . 

Same thing for March? 

Yes, sir . 

And then you had an increase in April? 

Yes, sir . 

That yo u went up to a lit t le over 3500? 

Yes, s~r . 

You rece i ved 3500 for the next two months, so a 

three months, correct? 

Yes, si r. 

And t h e n it moved back down t o roughly 1500 ; is that 

Yes, sir . 

Why? 

Let ' s see, because Nicky hasn ' t paid me . 

Okay . So Nicky is two -- two months in a rrears? 

Just August . 

Looks like he didn ' t pay July either, sir . 

Excuse me? 

Looks li k e he d i dn't pay i n July either . 

MR. J IMMERSON : I don't know where you're tal king 

I ' m staring a t it, it says $2000 in July the 10th . 
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• • 
THE WITNESS: I ' ve got yeah, July -- I'm not sure, 

2 yeah . I have 2000 on mine . 

3 BY MR . DICKERSON: 

4 Q I don 't have that . 

5 A Well , \.;hat -- what date do you have? 

6 MR. JIMMERSON; July , you've got it r ight 

7 THE WITNESS: No, no, no, no, t he update here . This 

8 date here. I' m sorry, Bob . Thi s is probabl y it . 

9 BY MR . DICKERSON, 

10 Q Oh. Mine says 8/11/2010. 

I I A Okay . This is 8/29. 

12 Q Oh, so I' m --

13 A Okay. So --
14 Q Okay . 

15 A This one ' s 8/29 . You got the 29? I didn' t --

16 MR . DICKERSON , Thank yOll . 

17 THE WITNESS : Throw you a curve ball . 

18 BY MR . DICKERSON : 

19 Q Okay. Al l right. We ll , that ' s all right . 

20 MR . JIVJMERSON : We didn ' t, he just xeroxed the wrong 

21 one . 

n MR . DICKERSON : What 's that? 

J' _0 MR. J IMMERSON: Well . I said you didn ' t throw you --

24 my client didn ' t throw you a curve bal l --
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• • 
THE VlITNESS : No, I -- I actually handed them 

2 MR. JIMMERSO N: -- he didn ' t go to t he xerox 

3 machine . 

4 MR. DICKERSON : That ' s exactly wha t --

5 THE l'ii'I TNESS : I handed him a wrcng one . 

6 MR. DICKERSON: Ycu all gave us --

7 THE WI TNESS : I h anded him the wrong one . 

8 MR . DICKERSON: Okay. 

9 MR . J I MME RSON: Well , wait a minute. You gave him 

10 one for 

I I THE WITNESS : I gave --

12 MR . J IMMERSON : August 29 . 

13 THE WITNESS: I gave h i m the wrong o nes. I was j ust 

14 do i ng this --
IS MR . -DICKERSON: J i m, if you r eca ll, this was when he 

16 was on the --

17 THE WITNESS: These are j ust my notes . They ' re off 

18 

19 MR . DI CKERSON : Yeah, I remember . This is the o ne 

20 

21 THE I"iI TNE.SS: 1 get these weekly, Your Honor . 

22 THE COURT : All right . 

23 BY MR . DICKERSON: 

24 Q I t doesn ' t matter . Let ' s move on . ! got it. So he 
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• • 
has 

2 MR . JIMMERSON: Hang on one second . Do you have the 

3 o ne through August 29 th ? 

4 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah , I do , you jus t gave it to me . 

5 THE COURT: Is that the updated o ne? 

6 MR . DICKERSON: He just gave it to me . 

7 MR . JIMMERSON : Okay . 

8 MR . DICKERSON: All ri ght. 

9 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

10 Q He d i d pay fo r July , bu t he ' s now -- has not paid 

11 for August? 

12 A That ' s corre c t. 

13 Q So we see tha t you have another month there then 

14 during July you rece i ved 3500 , co rrect? 

15 A I n July , yes , sir . 

16 Q And so far this month you ' ve received rough l y 1500? 

17 A Exactly , yes , sir . 

18 Q And what did you do wi th those mon ies? 

19 A I put - - those monies would have gone into 

20 depending on who the notes are, these no tes would have gone 

21 into p r obably Banone. 

22 Q Okay . 

A "li th the except ion some o f them may have gone into 

24 Nelson a nd Associates. 

0 ·09·411537·0 NELSON v. NELSON 813112010 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

1111 5 North La Canada. Su~e 275, Oro Vall~v , Arizona 85737 (520) 86\-0711 

440 

AAPP 478



• • 
Q That 's -- Nelson and Associates is? 

2 A The d . b . a . for Ne lson Trusts . 

3 Q That ' s you? 

4 A Yes . 

5 Q Eric Nelson? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q All right . So, you know which ones went to you, 

8 Eric Nelson, and which ones ...... ent to Banone? 

9 A Oh yeah, it says right here; note holder, the second 

[0 line item. That would have gone -- Nicky would have gone to 

11 me and the other ones wou l d have gone to Banone Nevada . 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

J' -, 

Q Okay . So you've rec e ived at l east $2000 a mon t h 

this entire year from - - from Nicky ; is that right? 

F. Yes, it reflects that --

Q Except for this month . 

F. -- "through July . Yes, sir . 

Q Now, Nicky's note started in in 2007? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Now, has he consistently paid you that 2000? 

A No, sir. 

Q And when did he stop? 

A Well, originally it was like 7 percent and then he 

missed some miscellaneous payments, he did some work on t he RV 

24 park for me, so I forego a few payments. FL~d this just tracks 
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• • 
2010 . I apologize . I -- \'<'e sure got - - we may have 2009 , I 

2 don't know . I - -

3 Q All right. 

4 A -- I doubt it, but --

5 Q Bu t the point being is you - - every payment that 

6 Nicky ' s paid you Eric Nelson have received; is that right? 

7 A No , no , no, it would go into Nelson and Associates . 

8 Q Al l right. 

9 A It ' s a 

10 Q That ' s 

1 1 A That's d i fferent . 

12 Q That's your business . 

13 A I wouldn ' t cash the check . It's made out to the 

14 Nelson Trusts . 

IS Q ~1ell, the Nelson Trust is you? 

16 A No . 

17 Q You ' r e 

18 A I ' m Eric Nelson 

19 Q trustee? 

20 A sale and separate individual. The Ne lson Trust 

2 1 is my trust and we f l ow money accordingly to that . 

22 Q All right . 

2l A So I try to -- a ny -- any checks, Your Honor, t hat 

24 would go to the trust "','Quld go to Nelson Associates or the 
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tru s t. 

2 Q Okay . 

3 A It ' s its own entity_ 

4 Q So if we loo k -- so as we look at those bo ttom line 

5 numbers at the -- each - - each month and the o nes even prior 

6 t o that, did you give any portion of tho se monies t o your "'Iife 

7 Lynita? 

8 A Small amounts, if any . But I gave -- yes. 

9 Q Well, iso't it true during since -- during - - you 

10 you separated in June of 2008? 

I I A Yes, sir . 

12 Q And from June of 20 08 until today I you ' ve given her 

13 $500 , isn ' t that correct? 

14 A Well, it would be 

15 Q Sir, do you understand my ques t i on ? 

16 A Yes . 

17 Q You ' ve given her $500 sinc e June of 2008, correct? 

18 A Well --

19 MR. JIMMERSON: Objection to the form of the 

20 question . 

21 Q J une of 2008 . 

22 A I ' d like t o answer that question, please . 

MR. JIMMERSON: Object to t h e form o f the question 

24 to the extent that yOu'~e ignori ng S2 .6-million . 
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• • 
THE WITNESS : Well, no, no , that -- that ' s i t . As 

2 community assets she has 2 .6 - million where he r flow o f cash 

3 was 15 , 000 a month . So if i t ' s community , esta te , she 

4 BY MR. DICKERSON : 

5 Q Si r , do you understand my question? 

6 A -- ha s had t hat . Yes, sir. 

7 Q Since June of 2008 --

8 A Yes , sir . 

9 Q -- you have given your wife Lynita a grand to tal of 

10 $500, correct? 

1 1 MR . JIMMERSON : Object i on to the form of the 

12 question. 

13 THE WI TNESS : Wel l, it ' s not true , Mr. Dickerson . 

14 I ' ve given her 2 . 6 - mil lion of the community . 

IS BY MR. DICKERSON : 

16 Q I see . Al l right . 

17 THE COURT : othe r than the 2 . 6- million t ha t t h ey 

18 said she 

19 THE WI TNESS : The r e we go . 

20 THE COURT : -- had t a ken out on that , have you given 

2 1 her any other 

22 June ' 08 i s I 

" - > THE 

24 or wha t ever . 

payments that you made directly to her since 

think is the quest ion ? 

~'HTNESS : Just a couple t housand dollars or 
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• • 
BY MR . DI CKERSON : 

2 Q $5 00 to her , isn ' t it? 

3 A 500. 

4 Q Corre c t? 

5 Okay . 

6 Q And yo u haven ' t given her any child support s i nce 

7 June of 2008, correct? 

8 A That ' s co r rect. 

9 Q Okay . Now , if Vie move t o the nex t pc.ge , if you can 

10 e x p l ain t h i s to me . These a r e the rental paymen ts on each of 

11 t hese p r operties that you ' re r ece i v in g each month ; is that 

12 MR . J H1J:1ERSON : Judge , can I -- can I just no te one 

13 t hing? I heard a ques t ion that we just h eard last quest i on 

14 VIas and you ' ve given no chi ld support si n ce June of 2008 . 

15 The r e ' s never been an order for child support? 

16 THE WITNESS : Yeah, but I take that back , t oo . I 

17 have given substantial amount of money in 2008 and 2009 , Your 

18 Honor . 

19 BY MR . DICKSRSON : 

20 Q Wh at did you g ive? 

21 A Okay . Let me j u st check if I could, refer to my 

22 notes . 

23 Q Sure . Okay . Good . Te l l me ever y dime you ' ve given 

24 Lynita since J une of 20 08, please . 
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• • 
A I've paid for $16,00 0 in 2009 through 6/10 --

2 Q E'or what? 

3 A -- $16 , 487 on the hea l thcare . 

4 Q Oh , you pa i d the --

5 A From 1 --

6 Q -- hea l thcare for the children? 

7 A We ll --

8 Q Correct? You didn ' t give her any mOEey, correct? 

9 A Hold on . 

10 Q No --

I I A !'Jell , do you want --

12 Q - - would you answer my question , sir? 

13 A I don ' t -- okay . 

14 Q Hy question ' s very s i mple . 

15 A Okay . 

16 Q How much money did you hand over to Lyni ta --

17 A Okay . 

IS Q -- to support: your children s i nce June of 2008? 

19 ~- Hold on . I ' d have to refer back, it ' 5 a substantial 

20 amount In 2008 and a substantial amount in 2009 . Lana Martin 

21 can pull t hose figures up and I c an have them here i n two 

22 hours if you ' d like , if I can find her . 

?' -, 

24 

Q 

A 

Are you te l l -- this is actual money t hat you --

Checks . 
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• • 
Q -- put in your hand - -

2 A Checks . 

3 Q -- and given 

4 A Checks . 

5 Q -- to Lynita? 

6 A Not cash ; checks. 

7 Q Okay. 

S A That say Lynita Nelson. Yes, sir . 

9 Q All r ight. Now , bac k to Exhi b it 199 . 

10 A Wou ld you like me to bring that amount in? 

II Q No, sir . I 'l l we ' ll move back here . 

12 A Okay . 

13 Q Actually, yes , I would. 

14 A Okay . 

15 Q Please. I ' d l ike t o know e xactly ho ... · much money you 

16 personally have given to her since June of 2008 . 

17 MR. JIMMERSON : Judge, may I just ask the relevance? 

18 Wh en you t a ke $2.6-million of community money --

19 

20 

21 

22 

" -, cr 100,00 0 

24 

MR . DICKERSON' Well, he --
MR . JIMMERSON : whether or not you --

MR. DI CKERSON , has more than S2.6- mill ion . 

MR. JIMt1ERSON, whether or not you ' ve pa id 

or wha tever I I don' t unders \:and the issue . 

MR. DI CKERSON : Okay . 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

• • 
MR . JIMMERSON: It ' s never been an issue of temp 

fees and allo wances . 

MR . DICKERSON: Is that an obj ection? 

MR . JIMMERSON: It ' s never request --

MR . DI CKERSON : Is that an objection 

MR. JIMMERSON: It is an objection . 

MR. DICKERSON : based on an evidentiary rule? 

MR. JIMMERSON: Yes , it ' s irrelevant. The question 

MR. DICKERSON: Well, what ' s --

MR. JIMMERSON : The question's irrelevant . 

THE WITNESS: Let ' s go on . 

THE COURT : It may, it may not. 

THE: WI TNESS: Ie ' s all right . 

THE COURT : They ' re goi ng about spousal support, 

what's paid on that: . The probative value 

MR . J IMMERSON: And he ' s not going to --

THE COURT : may not be very --
MR. JIMMERSON: through discovery exercises - -

THE COURT : much . 

MR. JIMME:RSON : -- in trial. 

THE COURT: A lot o f issues we went through at -- on 

t he direct. 

HR. DI CKERSON: My question is he hasn 't paid her a 
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dime . 

2 THE WITNESS: No, no, no, I --

3 THE COURT; Well, the fact is --

4 MR. JIMM~RSON: That's not true . 

5 THE COURT , we'll get there. When we get there 

6 we 'll s ee what money ' s paid on that , and if you th ink that 

7 there ' s waste, there ' s other payments to do, when we ge t there 

8 I ' m going to -- focus --

9 MR. DICKERSON: Sure. 

10 THE COURT : on the future, see where we ' re going. 

II If I think some people short -changed them in the past, we'll 

12 make that up in the property se ttlemen t . but we ' ll ge t the r e. 

13 THE WITNESS: And Your Ho nor, it ' s important, 

14 because if I'm mistaken, I need to be cor rected, but i f 

15 Lynita's mistaken, Bob, she has t o understand s he's f orgett ing 

16 that she's get ti ng 

17 BY MR. DICKERSON , 

18 Q Thank you. 

19 A - - money . 

20 Q Let ' s move to the next question, may I? 

21 THE COURT: Yo u can come on redi rect . he can ask you 

22 if you - -

24 

THE WITNESS: Okay . Thank you. 

THE COURT: -- made payment s . 
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BY MR. DICKERSON : 

2 Q All right . Now we move to the next page and these 

3 are the rental payments that Banone --

4 Yes, sir . 

5 Q which is -- you ' re the -- Banone ' s an LLC in 

6 which you're the sole member? 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q Okay. So you as the sole member as -- as Banone 

9 you ' ve been receiving these payments; is that correct? 

10 A Yes, sir . 

II Q All right . NoW , I notice that --

12 A ~'lell - -

13 Q -- you donr~ put any begin date for these . 

14 A I apologize, I 'm not quite sure why there isn't. 

15 Q All right . Do you know when the begin date was, 

16 what years? 

17 A vlel!, t hese were the .l\rizona ones . l,et ' 5 see here, 

18 we hadn 't formed Arizona unt i l 2009, so nothing before 2009, 

19 because it wasn ' t even operating in 2008 . 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

2l A 

24 Q 

So during 2009 each of these p roperties were 

No, they're not sold. Those a re -- those are 

Oh . 

-- properties we own. 

That you're renting? 
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• • 
A Yeah . 

2 Q So do you -- you -- do you recal l when -- you 

3 purchased all these about the same time? 

4 A In a period of -- purchased all those in probab ly in 

5 a period of s ix months, yes . 

6 Q And probably in that period -- the fi rst six months 

7 of 2009, isn ' t that correct? 

8 A I think so . Too k probably about six months t o rehab 

9 them. 

10 Q All right. So if we look at it then , bottom line we 

II see that during the month of January you received a little 

12 over 14,000, correct? 

13 A That's correct . 

14 Q And so we follow that across , 15 , 000 plus in 

15 February; 16,000 plus i n March, 16,000 plus in April , all the 

16 way across to another 15, 000 plus in August, correct? 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 know? 

21 Q 

22 A 

?' ,J purposes . 

24 219,000. 

Yes, sir . 

Now where did those monies go? 

These are gross amounts; is that what you want ed to 

No . I -- where did these monies go? 

These went into Banone Arizona account for booking 

That ' s the account here, Your Honor , t hat lost 
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Q Why don ' t you - - let me ask you a question, sir. 

2 A Yes, sir . 

, 
Q , You are the sole member of the Banone Arizona , 

4 correct? 

5 A Plus all the employees, but I ' m the sole member, 

6 yes, sir. 

7 Q Okay. And so these rental monies you depos i ted into 

8 Banone? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q Now you say -- you want to talk about employees . 

1 1 A Yes, sir . 

12 Q The employees for Banone are your family members, 

13 isn ' t that co rrect? 

14 A Well, not all o f them . 

IS Q Let's go through them . Your employees f o r Banone . 

16 A Yes , sir. 

17 Q Let ' s list them, everyone . Who ' s t h e employees for 

18 Banone? 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: Could I -- could I j usc -- so we 

20 have a good -- better record, you were tal king about Banone 

21 Arizona, Mr. Dickerson . Which one are you talking about now? 

21 

24 

MR. DICKERSON : This Banone Arizona. Let ' s --

THE COURT: Banone Arizona. 

MR. DICKERSON: start with Banone Arizona . 
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BY MR . DICKERSON: 

2 Q Who are the employees? 

3 A Banone Arizona would be Ryan Nelson that was 

4 assisting down there . 

5 Q Okay. Now --
6 A Paul Nelson that was assisting down there . Kevin 

7 Bailey that was assisting down there. 

8 Q Kevin is a nephew? 

9 A No, he's a son - in- law of Paul. 

10 Q I'm sorry? 

11 A The son- in- law of my bt'other Paul. 

12 Q Okay. 

\3 A And Eric Taylor . And they would have --

14 Q And Eric Taylor is --
IS A Paul' 5 son. 

16 Q Paul 's son . So your nephew. 

17 A And so all are related to Paul. 

18 Q Okay . 

19 A And then all their subworkers would be, you know, 

20 the day help that help them fix all these uni ts up . 

21 Q Okay . But those are the main employees. 

22 A Yes. 

Q Subworkers are just people that they hire to come in 

24 and do some repairs, r ight ? 
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A Yes, air conditioning guys. 

2 Q So they aren ' t employees of Banone Arizona? 

3 A That ' 5 correct . 

4 Q All right . The only employees of Banone Arizona are 

5 family members of Eric Nelson, correct? 

6 A Yes , sir . 

7 Q Okay . Now, does Banane have any employees? 

8 A At this time? 

9 Q Yes. 

10 A NO, sir . 

I I Q Okay . When is the las t t ime Banane has had an 

12 employee? 

13 A In March when we made the deal, T believe it was 

14 March o r April, wi th Cal -- now, the contingent liabi l ity with 

15 Cal, he ' s still repairing 

16 Q Who -- who were the employees for Banone? 

17 A Excuse me? 

18 Q Who "'Jere the employees for Banone prior to March of 

19 this year? 

20 

21 

22 

24 

A Okay . It ' s my brother Cal . 

Q Okay . 

A His son Bryce, his daughter Stacy, his son - in-law 

Lance, were the prima ry workers . 

Q Okay . Thank you . NOW , back to this page showing 
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the bottom lines o f each month at leas t during this yea r and 

2 portions o f l ast year, did you gi ve any port ion of t hos e 

3 monies t o Lyni ta? 

4 A No, sir . 

S Q Let's move t o the next page . 

6 A Yes , sir . 

7 Q The next page are more rentals; is that correct? 

8 A Yes , sir . 

9 Q Now tell me about these? Your -- your subtotals, 

10 why are these dif feren t fr om the ones on the prev i ous page? 

II A That ' s a good question . Okay . The one renta ls --

12 that ' s a good ques t i on there . 

I ) Q Take a - - the page we just went thr ough, the ones 

14 that are in 8anone Ari zona, how is that di f ferent than t he 

15 ones on the nex t page? 

16 A \\le were making I bel ieve , thes e were a -- we were 

17 mak ing the transfer over and I can ' t tel l you which gr oup . 20 

18 o f these propert i es are the one s that were given to Frank 

19 Sar i s . We are still indirect l y managing those properties 

20 t hrough Kevin. So Kevin is managing t. ho se fo r Saris, but I ' m 

21 

22 

24 

tracking those funds so we c an do the guaran t eE and do the tra 

-- do the pass off as I describe it, t o the Saris management 

team, Stewar t Larson . 

Q Okay . So what properties have you gi ven away t o 

D.()9.4 11 ~7-D NELSON ..... NELSON 6131/2010 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION. LLC 

11115 NOI1.h La Canada, Suite 275, Oro Valley, Arizooa 85737 (520) 86 t .cJ711 

455 

AAPP 493



• • 
Frank Saris? 

2 A We didn ' t give anything a wa y _ 

J Q HOH many properties did you give to Frank Saris? 

4 A Didn't g i v e him anything . We sold him 20 

5 properties . 

6 Q Okay. And are t hese which 20 are they? 

7 A I couldn ' t t ell you . I would assume that it would 

8 be t:his list here, 2 through 56 on the second page , we 

9 would be his properties . 

10 Q 2 through 56? 

I I A Yes . Because these are more -- these -- may not be 

12 necessarily collected rents because the second -- the third 

13 page would be -- I ' d be much more i n tune to what ' s going on 

14 with my properties and on the -- and they would yellow those 

15 out , so I ' d be track i ng who ' s in, who ' s out. 

16 MR . JIMMERSON: Judge, just to help the parties, 

17 tha t second page does -- is e xactly 20 homes . 

18 TEE WITNESS: Oh , good, t hen t hat ' s it . 

19 MR. DICKERSON: All righ e. 

20 MR . JIMMERSON : So it may be Saris is all I ' m 

11 saying . 

12 THE WITNESS: Those are Saris'. 

BY MR . DICKERSON : 

24 Q So . 
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A Oh , yeah, Soris Rentals , I ' m sorry; second page on 

2 top of it , it says Soris Rentals status. 

3 MR . JIMMERSON: It does right on the face. 

4 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

5 Q Now you didn't cut your deal with Mr . Soris until 

6 February of this year isn ' t that correct? 

7 A I believe so. 

8 Q All right . That was about February 10th if I 

9 recall, maybe February 3rd? 

10 A I don ' t recall . 

II Q All right . So d i d you receive all this rental money 

12 in J anuary? 

13 A I believe so . 

14 Q Now you 're only giving Mr . Soris $10 , 300 a month; is 

15 that right? 

16 A That ' s correct . 

17 Q So, everything above t hat you ' re keeping? 

18 A Expenses, sir . 

19 Q Okay _ But e verything above that you ' re keeping? 

20 A Yes, sir . 

21 Q Now, t he expenses -- well, for what employees now 

22 are your expenses? There are no employees, correct? 

A But you ' d have taxes, you ' d have insurance, you ' d 

24 have repairs . 
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Q Why -- isn ' t Mr. Saris the owner of the prope rty, 

2 sir? 

) A They own them , but under our management ag,reement 

4 that we wou l d manage the facilities and mainta i n them un t il 

5 they too k them over. 

6 Q Nhere is that management agreemen t ? I didn ' t see it 

7 in your e xhibits. 

8 A I have -- it was one of those two exhibits, the 

9 extended liability list where we continue to manage and 

10 guarantee his net. 

II Q All right . So for all practical purposes for the 

12 Court, the Court can ignore this page because these are all 

13 the properties that you ' ve given to Mr . Saris, correct? 

14 A If they want to ignore it . 

15 Q Okay. 

16 MR . JIMMERSON : Objection , Your Honor, yo u wouldn ' t 

17 ignore it to the extent --

18 MR. DICKERSON : This is not 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm sorry . 

20 BY MR . DICKERSON : 

21 Q Are these assets of yours that the Court ne eds to 

22 divide up? 

A Well , t hese are liabilities that i f I don ' t - - I 

24 promised Mr . Soris that I would --

()..()9-411537-D NELSON ~ _ NELSON 813112010 TRANSCRIPT 
VERBATIM REPORTING 8 TRANSCRIPTION , lLC 

111 1S North La Canada, Surte Tl5, Oro Valley. Arizona 85737 (520) 861-07 11 

458 

AAPP 496



• • 
Q Did you hea r my question? 

2 '" Mind if 

, 
Q Me these assets that belong to you? J 

4 '" No. 

5 Q You t ransferred everyone of those properties t o Mr. 

6 Saris , didn ' t you? 

7 A Ye s , sir . 

8 Q And you did that i n February o f th is year? 

9 A I believe so. 

10 

I I 

12 

J3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Q 

'" 
Q 

'" 
Q 

'" 
Q 

'" 

I f we nOH take a look at the next page , sir . 

Yes, s ir. 

The note rental payments. 

Yes, sir . 

Okay . Now these . i tems 3 through 58. 

Yes, sir . 

You in fact own those? 

Yes, sir . 

18 Q All righ t . And the rental income then is re f lec t ed 

19 a t t he bottom? 

20 A Yes, sir . 

2 1 Q Similar. Now a gain, you -- there ' s onl y a couple 

22 he r e. There I 5 on l y one that you put a begin date. l\ good 

?' _ J 

24 

portion o f these began in 2009 , did they not? 

A I believe so. 
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Q All right. So, if \1e take a look at that bottom 

~ line so the Court is looking at the income as being generated 

3 from these properties, what -- where did you -- wha t did you 

4 do with tha t income '? 

5 A Put i t in Banone Arizona. 

6 Q Okay. And again, I assume your answer's the same, 

7 you didn't give any portion o f that mcney to Lynita; i s t hat 

8 right? 

9 A That's cor rect. 

10 Q Okay. Now the bottom list here, the bottom port i on, 

I I starting with Baxter, Number 1 through 16, what are these? 

12 A These are Banone Nevada properties. Tha t 's what 

13 they are. 

14 Q Okay. 

15 A Banone properties. 

16 Q So why did you separate them from the ones at the 

17 top? 

18 A The Ariz ona cnes are Arizona . Even though they're 

19 Banone, we book them as Banone LLC Ari zona. 

20 

21 

22 

24 

Q Okay. All right . So we can go through t his and who 

what does the yellow mean on on these? 

A Yellow means unpaid or vacant or defer -- or t hey 

hadn 'c done the fu l l amount of the payment, some prob -- some 

problem with it. 
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Q m:ay. All right. So we see that your rental i ncome 

2 f r om this ye ar alone on these properties range s anywhere from 

3 just sho r t of 10,000 a month up to r oughly 14, 000 a month ; is 

4 t hat correc t? 

5 A It ' d be closer to t he 14. The ten wou ld only 

6 re fle c t because some h~venTt paid for August, but they ' re 

7 probably in t he works . So until the checks clear, we don't 

8 b oo k 

9 Q Okay . 

10 A -- them. 

1 1 Q Now where d i d you put that money? 

12 A I n Banone Arizona. 

13 Q Now why woul d tha t one go in t o Banone Ar i zona? 

14 A I ' m so r ry , where -- are yo u talking from t h ree t o --
IS Q The bottom . Bot tom . 

16 A I'm so rry . Those would be Banone Nevada . Thank 

17 you. 

18 Q Okay. And did you give any portion of those monies 

19 to r~ ynita? 

20 A No, sir . 

21 Q Okay . Now , if you take a loo k a t the nex t page of 

22 your Ex hibi t 199. 

A 

24 Q 

Yes , sir . 

Help us he r e . Wha t is t h is e xplain i ng t o us? 
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A These are a c tua lly the rentals at -- on the Lindell 

2 prope rties . These are the tenants . 

3 Q All right. Now, this is a -- a -- this is an asset, 

4 the b ui lding is owned 50 percent in you r trust and 50 percent 

5 in Lynita ' s trust; is that correct? 

6 A Yes, sir . 

7 Q Okay. And taking a look at the -- the rentals, that 

8 shows how much you received each month on the rentals? 

9 A Yes, sir . 

10 Q Now, you ' ve not given any portion o f that money to 

I I Lynita , have you? 

12 A No, sir . 

13 Q Notwithstanding the fact that Lynita is a 50 percent 

14 owner; isn ' t tha t true? 

IS A The expenses exceed the income, sir. 

16 Q Okay. Sir, how come in the pa s t -- do you recall in 

17 the past Lynita was receiving -- Lynita was receiving $6000 a 

18 month as her share of the rentals and you cut her off I 

19 believe it was March of l ast year? 

20 

21 

22 

?' -> 

24 the 

A I t was a -- we automatically 

Q Did you understand my question? 

.n. Yes , I ' m 

Q You were giving her $6000 a monrh as her share of 

rentals on Lindel l ; is that correct? 
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Whatever they 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: Do you want to call him? 

3 THE COURT: want to accommodate the witnesses. 

4 MR. DICKERSON: He's already down here. 
) .. 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: I can certainly call him and tell 

6 him 3:30 or so. 

7 THE COURT: Whatever your,guys' preference is. If 

8 you want to get him dci'ile first, I Mean, I'm or -- take him out 
~. . ~., 

9 of order. I just -- I don't know if --

10 MR. DICKERSON: So you won't be taking him today or 

11 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: I don't know if we finish the order 

13 of witnesses (indiscernible) finish my client. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Do you want to take him -- if you 

15 finish with Eric, do you want to then take Joe? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

.,-. 
-,) 

24 

examine 

Eric --

order to 

MR. JIMMERSON: I was going to take Joe or Lynita or 

MR. DICKERSON: No, I mean before I would cross 

Eric, do you --:-

MR. JIMMERSON: No, no, no, no, I want you to finish 

the witnesses as they are. 
·f, 

THE COURT: Yeah, I don't know what you need in 

MR. JIMMERSON: The judge needs to hear the cross. 
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2 

" .) 

4 

5 

THE COURT: examine or cross examine 

MR. DICKERSON: -- asking me to find out --

MR. JIMMERSON: The judge needs to hear the cross. 

MR. DICKERSON: Well, no; no, no. r mean it's how 

6 long do you think you'll be with Joe? 

7 

8 

MR. JIMMERSON: 15 minutes. 

MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, that's what I mean. Bring Joe 

9 in for 15 minutes and then I'll cross examine Eric after. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14, 

IS: 

16': 

MR. JIMMERSON: It's up to you. 

THE COURT: Whatever you guys want to do. I'm fine 

MR. DICKERSON: I would go with that. 

THE COURT: I like to accommodate 

MR. DICKERSON: I just don't want 

THE COURT: r like to accommodate witnesses, 

17 especially if they come down. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: Why don't we do it that way because 

19 I paid him to already come down here. 

20 THE WITNESS: Can we limit the time that Joe has 20 

21 minutes, 10 and 10, Your Honor. 

22 

?" -.) 

24 

THE COURT: We're going to get him done today. If 

we got Joe out there, I mean --

THE WITNESS: Because I think it's important he 
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cross examines me. I want to know the issues. 

2 THE COURT: Yeah, we can get you. 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: 
• 'l~' , 

Well, Judge, let's just do it that 

4 way. 

5 MR. DICKERSON: I'll cross examine him. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: That's not a problem. I've complete 

7 my direct examination and I'm not going to call Mr. Leauanae 

8 out of order. I want to hear the cross of my client. 

9 THE WITNESS: Good, I think so. That's more 

10 important. 

11 MR. DICKERSON: So why -- yesterday I was told to 

12 have him here at 1:30. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Because I thought we'd be done with 

14 the cross by noon. 

MR. DICKERSON: All right. 15 

16, MR. JIMMERSON: So I didn't know that direct would 

17 take as long. We've worked together on a number of items. 

18 It's not all just cross time -- or direct time, I mean. 

19 MR. DICKERSON: Well, it's just for professionals 

20 like that, one would think we would accommodate him. 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: I mean, this is the guy who showed 

22 up at 9:45 yesterday and 9:23 this today, Judge. I don't know 

24 

if he has a special arrangement with the Court where he can 

show up later. 
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THE COURT: Well, I let the attorneys to anything 

2 . they want. If they want to talk to him, if they want to do 

3 it, I'll accommodate the parties. You want to do it out of 

4 order, I'll do it out of order. If not, we do what we need to 

5 do. If not, I'll accommodate him. If you want, maybe I can 

6 stick him in tomorrow morning. I've got another trial, but I 

7 can sneak him in in the morning if they want to do his time. 

8 I just want to --

9 THE WITNESS: We're available. 

10 THE COURT: But I'd like to get him done. If we can 

II sneak him in this afternoon, I --

12 MR. JIMMERSON: We'll definitely do that, Judge. 

13 THE COURT: just a professional courtesy to the 

14 expert, I try to get them done when they come. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Shall I just tell him then to go 

16; back to his office? 

17 

18 

THE COURT: Yeah, I would and then give him a --

MR. DICKERSON: Okay. Then he won't be testifying 

19 today? 

20 MR. JIJ:.1MERSON: I don't know how long it'll take ...:-

21 THE COURT: Can you get him later today do you think 

22 or would -- if we get done with the cross, I'll sneak him in 

today, but I just don't see the cross being -- I just don't 

24 see us getting done with the cross. r would --
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MR. DICKERSON: If the cross is over by 3:00 or 

2 4:00, I'd love to have the guy come in, 15 minutes. 

3 THE WITNESS: And Laurie and Ray will stay late. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: But if it's going to be all day 

5 long, then have him come in tomorrow morning. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: So what do we do, just let him sit 

7 out here and wait? 

8 THE COURT: No, we send him home now and tell him 

9 if we give him a time certain -- if we can't agree, I could 

10 sneak him in tomorrow morning between my other hearings if you 

II want, between 9:00 and 10:00. If you could be done, we could 

12 have him come tomorrow morning. But I'm not going to have him 

13 say--

14 MR. DICKERSON: I mean, he can testify in the 

15 future, whatever -- you're going to set this for another day, 

16 I would assume. 

17 THE COURT: Yeah. I mean, if he's all ready to go 

18 and he came down, you wanted to get him done, I could 

19 accommodate. 

20 MR. DICKERSON: Oh, no he's just here -- I'm not --

21 I'm going to be calling him in my case in chief. Mr. 

22 Jimmerson wanted him 

THE COURT: I'd send him home. I don't want to tie 

24 him up --
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MR. JIMMERSON: I agree. 

2 THE COURT: -- for three or four hours. 

.. MR. JIMMERSO~: I agree . .) 

4 THE COURT: He's a professional 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: I agree. 

6 THE COURT: just tell him to forget about today 

7 because it's not fair to bring him back and stuff like that 

8 and make him hang arouNd, just not tair to him. Why don't we 

9 take a lunch recess. We'll corne back, finish up your direct, 

10 jump into our cross examination and see where we're at. 

II MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you, Judge. 

12 THE COURT: But tell Mr. Joe just to go home and 

13 don't worry about it today because it's not fair to keep him 

14 hanging on there with his time as a professional and then 

15 we~ll deal with it afterwards and see what -- at the end of 

16 today we'll do some housekeeping matters. All right. We'll 

17 be in recess until 2:00 o'clock. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you, Judge, for your time. 

19 (COURT RECESSED AT 12:06:34 AND RECONVENED AT 13:59:40) 

20 THE COURT: This is the time reconvening in the 

21 matter of Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson, Case Number D-411537. 

22 We took a lunch recess, we're picking up with Mr. Nelson on 

'''' -.) 

24 

the stand. 

L...-___________ ._ .--.-

Mr. Jimmerson, do you want to state your appearance 
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• 
just for the record, please? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON.: I do please, Your Honor. Thank you, 

3 Your Honor. Jim Jimmerson on behalf of Eric Nelson. And my 

4 co-counsel Mr. David Stephens also on behalf of Eric Nelson. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr; Jimmerson. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: Bob Dickerson and Katherine Provost 

7 on behalf of Mrs. Nelson. 

8 THE COURT: 'Thank you. Everybody can sit down and 

9 get comfortable. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 . 

22 

24 (See Vol. III) 
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• • 
DIRECT EXP~INATION CONTI NUED 

2 BY MR. JIMMERSON : 

, , Q Mr . Nelson, I j ust have a few cleanup ques t i ons, 

4 then we ' ll turn you over t o opposing counsel . 

5 You file t ax returns annually I p r esume? 

6 A Ye s , sir . 

7 Q And you -- you have filed for example , 2006 , 2007 , 

8 2008 , bue you 've no t ye t filed 2009 ; you got an e xt e n sion? 

9 A Yes , sir . 

10 Q I ' d like t o show you your tax returns which were 

11 filed I believe as Exhibits 85, 86 and 87 . And as I 

12 unders t and these exhibits , the y are your 2006 , 20 07 and 2008 

I ) tax returns r espective l y . Would you please confirm that? 

14 MR . DICKERSON : Exhibits what, Jim? 

15 MR . JIMME RSON : 85, 86 and 87 . 

16 MR. DICKERSON : Thank you . 

17 ) MR . STEPHENS: I think it ' s 206. 

18 MR . DICKERSON: I think i t ' s 86, 87 , 88 . I - - ' 06, 

19 ' 07, ' 08 . 

20 MR. JIMMERSON : 86--

21 MR . DICKERSON : No, ' 06, ' 07, ' DB. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON : Okay . No, our marking shows 8S ~o 

23 be 2006, 86 to be 2007 --

24 HR. DICKERSON : Yeah. 
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• • 
MR . JIMMERSON: -- and 88 to be --

2 MS. PROVOST: Did they mess them up in the books? 

3 MR. DICKERSON : No . 

4 MR . STEPHENS : No, they ' re right . 

5 MR . J IMMERSON : Move the admission of Exhib i.t 85, 

6 the 2006 p e rsonal tax returns . 

7 MR . DICKERSON : No objection, Your Honor . 

8 THE COURT: All right, will be admitted as Exhibits 

9 85, 86, and 87, the tax returns for the years 2006, 20 07 and 

10 2008. 

11 (Plaint i f f 's Exhibits 85 throu gh 87 admitted) 

12 BY MR . JIMMERSON : 

13 Q ~nd do you have an understanding of what ' s your 

14 profit or loss? In other words, making money or losing money 

15 will be for 2009? 

16 MR. DICKERSON: Objection, be speculative, Your 

17 Hdnor . 

18 THE WI TNESS : I would antic antici.pate --

19 THE COURT: Do you have any have you done any 

20 preliminaries or are you just pulling it out of the sky or 

2 1 have you done some preliminary? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, the preliminaries that I think 

Dan Garrity could testify to t he f act \.;e ' re anticipa t :ing a::'out 

24 a $700,00 0 loss . Now that's reflected on taxable inc ome, 
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• • 
because we ' ll have asset increase where are deferred gains, 

2 Your Honor, so we ' re working as hard as we can to pay our fair 

3 shar~, but not too much. 

4 BY MR. JIMMERSON : 

5 Q So now if we wanted to trace Eric Nelson ' s own 

6 personal expenses, we would look at your Bank of America or 

7 excuse me -- yeah, Bank of A-~erica account; is that right? 

8 A Yeah, you would -- the majority of businesses - - I'm 

9 sorry or Banone and those relative areas there and trave ling 

10 areas, then I would have a -- I don't have a - - a -- I had a 

II credit card at oop. time but because of the confusion, now I ' ve 

12 been using cash. I don ' t know if that makes sense, but 

13 Q And to for example, you indicated that you 

14 thought your personal lifestyle was 6000 normally a month up 

15 to $10,000? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Would we be able to look at your Bank o f America 

18 account where you develop -- you deposit your t-ofellon income 

19 A Yes . 

20 Q and see your personal use of money? 

11 A To a degree. Then you're going to see where my 

22 person where my withdrawal, like 5000 in cash and then I ' d 

23 spend it . 

24 Q Okay . All right . Thank you. 
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• • 
A But you wou l d be able to track every dime in and out 

2 of the account . 

3 Q Now I ' d also like to show you what ' s been marked as 

4 proposed Exhibit 197E . 

5 (Cell phone ringing) 

6 HR . JIMMERSON: I hate that when it happens . I 

7 changed that, Your Honor . It used to be Big Papa was my ring . 

8 I was in court when that went off and and I never lived it 

9 down, so 

10 THE COURT : Yeah , I see ; yeah . 

1 1 MR . JIMMERSON : I changed that , Your Honor. It 

12 was unbelievable . You l earn your lesson . 

13 BY MR . JIMMERSON: 

14 Q I ' m showing you what ' s been marked as proposed 

15 Exhibit 197E . Have you summarized how the companies have been 

16 doing? 

17 A Yes, sir . 

18 Q Okay . Over the l a st two year -- three years , 2007 

19 throug11 2009 . Okay . 

20 (Whispered conversation) 

2 1 

22 bench? 

?' -> 

MR . JIMMERSON : Your Honor, may I approach the 

THE COURT: Sure . 

24 BY MR . JIMMERSON : 
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• • 
Q What is Exhibit 197E please? 

2 A This would be t he entities t hat are LLC that ramp up 

3 the Nelson Trust. 

4 Q Okay . 

5 A They are ran with different -- different operating -

6 - for instance, like Banone 2007, Banone Arizona, they Here 

7 not operating, Your Honor_ These are holding companies . It 

8 started in 2008, this is when I ' m hiring individuals, 

9 investing money into these companies as along with Eric Nelson 

10 Auctioneering, we're investing capital . 

II Now we do have revenue that ' s coming into Eric 

\2 Ne lson Auctioneering because It/e ' re selling hundreds of homes 

\3 for d.ifferent lenders in those three years, where ten years 

14 prl.or we were complete l y retired out of the auction business. 

15 We were prepar i ng for t he greatest recession of all time . 

16 However, if I may, the recession didn ' t go as planned and the 

17 bank -- and the government interverence (sic) and didn ' t allow 

18 real estate auctions to be a vital tool and the side that I 

19 deal in . So, you know, that's part of t he reason ENA i s nc 

20 longer ENA, Eric Nelson Auctioneering . 

21 But these show our losses for '08, ' 09 and then 

22 through '010 according to my -- my accountants, Lana, Rochelle 

and Joan 

24 Q These are employees or --
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• • 
A Are my employees . 

2 Q 1 099 employees? 

3 A Yeah, and t hat shows from 7/31/2010 . Now that wi ll 

4 show a going into the blac k, Your Honor , and the reason why 

5 is because now I 've la i d off 14 employees , shut down these 

6 operations . It ' s a dif ferent style . We 're now adjusting for 

7 spli t ting the assets SOISO 50 when you hit January we'l l have 

8 80 , 000 in gross income, 60,000 net, because the employees a r e 

9 gone, it ' s a different philosophy, we ' re -- now we'r e trying 

10 to provide Lynita monthly revenue. Whereas before , everything 

II that we made on my side would go into the building of these 

12 companies, the building of these assets, and then we would 

13 pull off what we need as we went year every year f or t he 

14 last, I don't know how many years . 

15 Q All right. And these --

16 A Too many. 

17 Q -- entities are Schedule C entries on your personal 

18 return ; is that right? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q Okay . 

21 MR . JIMMERSON: So we ' d move ad~ission Exhibit 197E . 

22 MR. DICKERSON: I -- I object, Your Honor . There's 

23 no basis or foundation for laying this . Ne don 't have the 

24 documents that support it . In particularly with r e spect to 
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• • 
2010 . I just don't know if he has the expertise . I mean, if 

2 this is something Mr . Garrity wan ts t o go into and can provide 

3 us \-/ith the documentation that we can check and see 

4 THE COURT: I think I agree . I think his 

5 accountants, whoever did the documen ts where they came up 

6 there could be better to testify as to 

7 MR. JIMMERSON : Well , can I be heard briefly on 

8 that? 

9 THE COURT: SUre. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON : The tax returns on Mr. Nelson 

11 reflect these numbers for 2007 and 2008. They are on his 

12 Schedule C, So when Mr . Dickerson sa ys there ' s no basis fo r 

13 this , we know exactly what ' s ref lec ted on his tax returns, 

14 which were jus t now admitted into evidence . 

15 THE WITNESS : These 2009 are ac t ual from my office. 

16 MR. JIMMERSON : I understand , but they ' re not on 

17 your tax returns because 

18 THE COURT : Not on the tax return. 

19 MR. JIMMERSON : we haven ' t completed your tax 

20 return . 

21 MR. DICKERSON : But his --

22 THE COURT : Yeah. 

MR. DICKERSON: tax return show - - 2006 showed 

24 $9 - rnillion. 
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• • 
THE ~nTNESS: Yes, tha t was a sale of ~vyoming Downs . 

2 That ' s where an asset is sold whe re we use those assets for 

3 the rest of the following years. 

4 BY MR . JIMMERSON : 

5 Q I understand that, but for these companies --

6 MR. DICKERSON: But you don ' t have 2009 even in 

7 here . You have 2006, 2007, 2008. 

8 THE WITNESS: This is what we did. This is facts . 

9 I have -- my accountants will be here if Your Honor. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: Anyway, Judge --

II THE COURT: Well, your income . your 2007 and 2008, 

12 those numbers show it. I can get that off this 

13 HR. JIMMERSON: Show these losses . 

14 THE ~'1ITNESS: Yeah, sho\-/ losses. 

15 THE COURT : -- I can get that off his income tax 

16 returns . 

17 MR. J I MMERSON: From these companies. 

18 THE vlITNESS: From these -- yeah, the tax r e t urns 

19 will ref l ect that. 

20 THE COURT: So I can -- so the 2007, 2008.thesG 

21 numbers are reflected i n the tax returns, s6 I can loo~< at 

22 

" -, 
24 

your tax returns and get these numbers for Eric Nelson 

Auctioneering, Dynasty and all those? 

THE WITNESS : Yes . 
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• • 
THE COURT : Then I think that's the better document 

2 because at least you ' ve got it on the income tax return and I 

3 can loo k at the whole document. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON : All right, Judge. 

5 BY MR . JIMMERSON: 

6 Q NOH, do you know what your operations were in 2009, 

7 Banone and the rest of the companies here? 

8 A As listed, yes . 

9 Q So for example, I'm just trying to add. If you look 

10 through 20 07 tax return, you might see a gain because of a 

II sale of an asset, but as it relates to these five entities, 

12 these are the resul ts? 

1 ] A Yeah, there's no income out of those ent i ties . More 

14 likely you're going to see me b u ying assets for below value 

15 and do doing exchanges or defe rred gains which are not 

16 listed. 

17 Q Right. 

18 A Like the Sugar Daddies deal was a gain of 

19 approximately a million dollars, but it 's deferred until I can 

20 get it into a long-term gain versus a short term gain . 

21 

22 

7' -> 

24 

Q 

A 

Q 

And to save the taxes 40 percent versus 15 percent? 

That's correct. 

Or whatever capital gains goes to. All right . 

MR. JIMMERSON : So Judge, as I understand it, 2007 , 
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• • 
2008, are in evidence, and you ' ll al l ow me to discuss this 

2 further with Mr . Garri t y. 

3 TEE COURT: Absolutely. 

4 MR. JIMM~RSON: If the need arises regarding the 

5 2008 and -- I ' m sorry, 2009 and 2010 . 

6 THE COURT: Yeah. And the 2007 and 2008 are income 

7 tax returns, right? These losses are shown on your Schedule C 

8 of your tax returns? 

9 THE WITNESS: Yeah, and I don't prepare this. Lana 

10 Martin would --

I I TnE COURT : Okay . 

12 TEE WITNESS: prepare all these and she's in my 

13 office. She can tes tify_ I think she ' s a witness too. 

14 TEE COURT: We need to bring her in on that. 

15 TEE WITNESS: She has a working relationship . 

16 THE COURT : So I won ' t admit this -- 197E won ' t be 

17 admi tted, but I got the t ax returns for 20 07, 2008 where these 

18 l osses will be shown as part of your Schedule C. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

?' - > 

24 

HR. JIMMERSON : Thank you, J udge. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

THE COURT : And then we 'll bring out the -- your 

expert if we need to do it and really get these more in detail 

if we need to bring an expert. 

MR . JIMMERSON: All right. 
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• • 
BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

2 Q Now, you have some misce l laneous sources of revenue 

3 that I just want to touch on . One is a management agreement 

4 that you have with Silver Sl ipper Ventures that you've 

5 indica t ed has not been p a id in the last four months . 

6 Yes, sir. 

7 Q You indicated that the average for 2009 was about 

8 75,OOO? 

9 A I t ' s ref lected -- yeah, 75 , 000 -- 77 ,000 actual ly . 

10 Q And you received about $50 , 000 you said in 2010? 

I I A. Approximately, yes. 

12 Q Stopping in roughly March or April of 2010? 

13 April . 

14 Q Okay . Do you have expenses against that income? 

15 Yes, sir. 

16 Q And "Ihat expenses -- and first of alL where is that 

17 income deposited? 

18 A Wel l, i t would be actually reflec ted on this best. 

19 I t would be in the Dynasty s i de of i t where we ' re upside dov!O 

20 $337,000 . 

21 Q Okay . But the point is, for 2009 you reported 

22 $75,000, wha tever it was, $77,000? 

23 A 

24 Q 

Yes. 

And then you would have expenses against it? 
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• • 
A Yes . In addition --

2 Q Okay . 

3 A -- to that you ' d have t he RV park that had about 

4 3000 a mon th. 

5 Q Okay. And so for the operations of Dynasty as it 

6 r elates to that -- receipt of that management money, and then 

7 the expenses; did you make money or l ose money? 

8 A We lost money. 

9 Q Okay . All right. NOv.', what else do I have here . 

10 MR . J I MMERSON : All right. Judge and Mr . Dickerson, 

11 I just v.iant to admit maybe by stipulation Exhibits 57A through 

12 H, the Lindell property deeds and --

13 MR. DICKERSON : The deed t o the Lindell property? 

14 MR. JIMMERSON : Yeah . It ' s 

15 MR . DICKERSON : No objection. 

16 MR. J IMMERSON: The (indiscernible) was 57A through 

17 H. 

18 MR . DICKERSON : A through H. 

19 THE WITNESS : 57A through 

20 THE COURT: Do you want to check those out, Exhibi t s 

21 57A through H. Give Mr . Dickerson a chance to look, see if 

22 he ' s 

24 

( Pause) 

MS. POLSELLI: This would be in book 5. 

0-09-411537·0 NELSON II. NELSON 8/3112010 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING .$ TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

11115 North La Canada. Suite 275. Oro Valley, Arizolla 85737 (S2())86 ' -Cl71 1 
416 

AAPP 454



• • 
MR. JIMMERSON: Sorry I it ' s book 5 if it helps you. 

2 MR . DICKERSON, No objection to A. 

3 (Pause) 

4 MR. DICKERSON: Thl.s -- these are the deeds to --

5 MS . PROVOST, Exhibit A. 

6 MR. DICKERSON , -- the Lindell property; is that 

7 right? 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes. Exhibit D is that went from --

9 MR. DICKERSON: No -- no objection to B. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON : This I think is the original 

II acquisitioni C. 

12 MR . DICKERSON : Yeah, no objection to C. There ' s 

13 nothing in D. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON : Agreed. E is the income statement 

15 for July 31 , 2010 . If you want, I can have Eric speak to it. 

16 MR. DICKERSON : No, I have no objection to E. And I 

J7 have no objection to F . 

18 MR. JIMMERSON : And G are the tenant leases . 

19 MR . DICKERSON : Oh , I'm sorry. It ' s just the master 

20 lease; it's a blank lease, right? 

21 

22 think . 

?' -, 
24 

MR. JIMMERSON: Yeah, but it has the tenants I 

MS . POLSELLI: G and E . 

MR. JIMMERSON: First and last page are provided of 
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• • 
each tenant currently leasing a sui te. 

2 MR. DICKERSON : Just so the Judge knows s o the firs t 

3 -- G is just the mas t er lease --

4 MS. POLSELLI: Righ t . 

5 MR. DICKERSON: -- what they use and then H just is 

6 the first page or first and last page? 

7 MR. JIMMERSON : First and last . 

8 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

9 MR. J I MMERSON: All right. Good. 

10 THE COURT: Admitted 57A through H be admitted 

11 without objection . 

12 MR. JIMMERSON : Yes, Your Honor. 

13 (Plaintiff ' s Exhibits S7A through H admitted) 

14 MR . J I MMERSON: Exhibits 13, 14 and 16 pl ease, madam 

15 clerk. 

16 TEE CLERK: 13, 14 and 15? 

17 MR. JIMMERSON : 13, 14 and 16 . 

18 (Pause ) 

19 BY MR . JIMM,RSON: 

20 Q Mr . Nelson, as part of this exchange of documents 

21 and info rmation betv·;een yourself and your wife, did you obtain 

22 certain bank records from her bank account s? 

A 

24 Q 

Yes . 

Exhibit 13 . And showing you what's been marked as 
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• • 
Exhibit Number 14 proposed; it ' s just that the clerk hasn ' t 

2 pu l led 13 . Number 14 is a series cf bank accounts? 

3 A Yes . 

4 Q At Cumorah Credit Union? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q All righ t . And they set forth balances as July 31, 

7 2010; is that right? 

8 A That ' s co r rec t . 

9 Q And there is four bank account s and four balances? 

\0 A Yes . 

1 1 Q And t hese are Lynita's? 

12 A Yes. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Move f or the admission of Exhibit 

14 14, four Cumorah bank accounts specified, the numbers which 

15 are specified on the summary sheet . I can read them into the 

16 r ecord for the record . 

17 MR . DICKERSON: vlel!, Jim, are these - - are these 

18 the exact doc -- copi es of the documents you got from the 

19 bank? 

20 

21 

22 

?' -, 

24 

MR. 

MS. 

MR. 

MS . 

MR. 

JIMMERSON: Yes . 

POLSELLI : Yes . 

DICKERSON: Okay . No objection . 

POLSELLI: Pursuant to subpoena. 

JIMMERSON: And th e summary sheet evidence 
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• • 
the a ccount numbers , Your Honor, ending i n 1471, 1401 , 1 927 1 

2 and 91 01. 

3 THE COURT : And those will be the listed on your --

4 HR . J I:MMERSON : Yes, Your Honor . 

5 THE COURT: (indisce rnibl e ) and Cumorah. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON : All right. 

7 THE COURT : Exhibi t Number 14 ' s hereb y admitted. 

8 (Plaintiff ' s Exhibi t 14 admit ted ) 

9 BY MR. J IMMERSON : 

10 Q 13; Exhib i t 1 3 is -- this is -- is Mrs . Nelson 's 

11 Sch\vab account? 

12 A Yes . 

13 Q Is that ri gh t ? 

14 [\ That ' s correct. 

15 MR. J IMMERS ON: Move for the admissicn o f Numbe r 13 . 

16 MR . DICKERS ON : No objection . 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: Schwab account . 

18 . THE COURT : Number 13, Schwab/Capstone . 

19 MR. DICKERSON : No objection . 

20 THE COURT : Hereby admi tted as Exhi b i t 13 . 

2 1 (Plaintiff ' s Exhibi t 13 admitted) 

22 BY MR . J IMMERSON : 

23 Q And by the reviet-J of this do -- these ser i es o f 

24 documents, t his Court, counsel and myse l f, can observe the $2 -
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- - -------------------- -------- -----------------------, 

• • 
million ba l ance down to 1 . 3 in addition to the 600,000 she had 

2 In another account? 

, ., If you tie it to the origina l Mel l on account, then 

4 i t went over to the Schwab account . 

5 Q Okay. So they started at Me l lon, trc..ns fer red $2 -

6 mi llion over to Schwab, and then taken down from there? 

7 A The amount of 2~million was transferred over . It 

8 was set i n 2-million, she had contro l of the 2-million . How 

9 that flowed out exactly I ' m not exactly sure, but - -

10 Q But we see the deduct i ons 

I I A it did transfer 

12 Q for a year --

13 A all the funds to the exact amount, I don ' t know 

14 the exac t amoun t . 

15 Q Thank you. And lastly numbe r 16 proposed 

16 (MR. J I MMERSON AN D CLE:RK CON FE RRED BR I Ef"LY) 

17 BY MR . JIMMERSON : 

18 Q Al l r i ght . Thank you. Exhibit 16 proposed are the 

19 Lisa S excuse me , the Lyni ta S . Nelson acco~nts, Silver 

20 State Bank? 

21 A y . es . 

22 Q Okay. And speak ing to two bank accoun t s ending in 

24 

3601 and 3680? 

A Yes. 
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• • 
MR . JIMMERSON: Mcve the admission of Exhibit Number 

1 16. 

3 MR . DICKERSON : No objection . 

4 THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 16 . 

5 (Plaintiff ' s Exhibit 16 adm i tted) 

6 BY MR. JIMMERSON : 

7 Q Mr. Nelson, did you read the complaint and divorce 

8 

9 A I did . 

10 Q Did you read the complaint for divorce --

II A I did . 

12 Q -- before you signed it? 

13 A I ' m sorry? 

14 Q Di d you read the complaint for divorce that was 

15 filed on your beha l f by Mr. Kainen on or about May 9th --

16 A Yes . 

17 Q - - 2009? Were all the allegations in that complaint 

18 true? 

19 A I believe so . 

20 Q You alleged in that complaint that you and your wife 

2 1 Lynita had b ecome an incompatible marriage ; is t hat true? 

22 

? ' -, 
24 

A 

Q 

A 

That ' s true . 

That your likes and dislikes are widely divergent'? 

Yes . 
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• • 
Q And that there ' s no longer any peace or harmony in 

2 your marriage? 

3 A That's true . 

4 Q And you have lived physically separate and apart 

5 since the summer of 2009 -- 2008, excuse me? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Is there any possibly of reconciliation? 

8 A I don ' t believe so . 

9 Q You are a resident of Clark County, Nevada? 

10 A Yes . 

II Q How long have you lived in Clark County, Nevada? 

12 A Born and raised. 

13 Q All right . And so you are claiming and you assert 

14 you are a bonafide resident of Clar k County, Nevada; is that 

15 right? 

16 A Yes . 

17 Q You have five ch i ldren the issue of your marriage? 

18 A Yes . 

19 Q We discussed the fact that three have now 

20 emancipated themsel ves over the age o f 18? 

21 

22 

" _ J 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes . 

i\nd t "'l0 are still with you and your wife? 

Yes . 

We've reached a cus t odial arrangement in October 
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• • 
15th of 2008 memorialized by stipulation and order in roughly 

2 February of 2010; is that right? 

3 A That's correct. 

4 Q Okay. And that agreement, because of the, you know, 

5 the access of both parties to quite literally a million or two 

6 of dollars , didn ' t result in any determination of child 

7 support , correc t ? 

8 A That's correct . 

9 Q Okay. So post - divorce li ving in separate homes , and 

10 recognizing that Lynita has a greater timeshare than you do, a 

11 child support may be ordered by the Court; do you understand 

12 that? 

13 A Yes . 

14 Q And depending upon your income, it can be $100 a 

IS month up to whatever the Court determines with a presumptive 

16 cap of 995 a child ; do you understand that? 

17 A Yes, sir . 

18 Q As we discussed, are yeu requesting the Court to 

19 enter an order of child support of 995 a month per child for 

20 tne two children? 

21 A 

22 Q 

13 A 

24 Q 

Yes. 

Terminating according to statute? 

Yes. 

And you also , in addition thereto, wi ll pay the 
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• • 
monthly $700 per month schooling for Carli at Las Vegas Day 

2 School? 

J A Yes . 

4 Q And you will continue to cover both children on your 

5 medical insurance? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Okay . And the cost of that you told me is rough l y 

8 300 a month per child ; is that right? 

9 A I believe so. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON : Thank you very much, Your Honor . 

II Thank you , Mr. Dickerson . No further questions. 

12 MR. DICKERSON : Judge, could I have five minutes? 

13 I 'm embarrassed to say I need to use the restroom. 

14 THE COURT: Sure. Why don 't we take a break on 

15 that . Do you have an affidavit of residen t witnes s already i n 

16 the f il e or will you stipulate to the residency? He 's 

17 testified he --

18 MR. DICKERSON : We can stipulate to residence . 

19 They 've been here forever well, they we re --

20 

21 

22 

?' --, residency . 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. DICKERSON : -- you knm", since high school . 

THE COURT : All right. So stipul ation as to 

Ne ' ll be in recess for about f i ve , ten minutes . 

24 Let me know when everyone's ready . 
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• • 
MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you, Your Honor . 

2 THE BAILIFF : All rise. 

3 (COURT RECESSED AT 14:19:55 AND RECONVENED AT 14 : 30:56) 

4 THE COURT : Continuing in the matte r of Eric Ne l son 

5 and Lynita Nelson, Case Number 0 - 411537. Mr . Dickerson is 

6 about to commence his cross examination. 

7 At your convenience, Mr . Dickerson . 

8 MR. DICKERSON : Thank you, Your Honor . Ms. Clerk, 

9 if I may have Plaintiff ' s Exhibit 199, please. And while 

10 you're at it , if I can have their option (indiscernible). 

I I CROSS EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR . DICKERSON , 

13 Q Showing you what ' s been a~~itted in t o evidence as 

[4 Plaintiff's Exhibit 199 . 

15 A Yes, sir. 

16 Q I'd like you to explain this to me . 

17 A Yes, sir . 

18 Q Let ' s start on the first page, see if ·we can 

19 understand this . At the top of the first page you ' ve l i sted 

20 al l of the promissory notes that pertain to the l1esa Vista 

21 project; is that correct? 

22 A Yes, sir. 

7' -, Q fu.d each of these promissory notes is secured by a 

24 deed of trust; is that true? 

---------
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• • 
A Yes, sir . 

2 Q Now, I notice here you've put the begin date for 

3 each of those . Those are the dates payments began? 

4 A Yes, sir. 

5 Q Is that right? And so taking a look at this can you 

6 give us an idea -- so are you telling us, for example, the 

7 month of January you received $770 in rents from these 

8 these 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q -- these promissory notes? 

1 1 A Yes, sir . 

12 Q And so that bottom line is what you ' ve received 

13 since January through August; is t hat right? 

14 A Yes 

15 Q So you've received 

16 A basic - -

17 Q roughly 770 a month; the last month, August, 

18 you've received 656; is that true? 

19 A Not necessarily . The -- for instance, some of t hese 

20 notes, like l et' s say you have numbe r 3 as an example . The 

2 1 ind ividual has elected to pay in advance, could have been 18 

22 months or whatever, but it looks like they paie in advance 

?' _.> through December payment . And so it's already been booked the 

24 other year, but this gives me a running total. This is more 
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------------------------------, 

• • 
for my help to know if they ' re current or not. But they -- so 

2 they prepaid something , it ' s done . 

3 Q All right . So but we no t ice then that three of them 

4 have prepaid at least through December; is that right? 

5 A Four, right. 

6 Q Or four of th em, yes . 

7 A Yes . 

8 Q So we wouldn ' t e xpect any money coming in from those 

9 four promissory notes for example , if Lynita had got al l 

10 those four promissory notes today --

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

" -, 
24 

A Right. 

Q -- those four she would get no payment? 

A Right, they ' ve already been accounted for in --

Q Just listen 

A whenever before. 

Q to my question. 

A To the community, yes, sir. Sorry . 

Q Did you understand my question? 

A Yes, yes. 

Q So it ' s true that she -- if she took those 

promissory notes, she would not receive any monies at least 

through the rest of this year for those four promissory notes, 

correct? 

A Yes, that ' s why I (indiscernible) . 
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• • 
Q Now, do you know how long - - have they prepaid into 

1 next year? 

3 A I don ' t believe so . Lana , Martin o r Rochelle, 

4 whatever, but I would say no. 

5 Q Okay . 

6 A Generally they -- we just take a payment source not 

7 to exceed 2010 . 

8 Q So that being the case then . all that wou ld be 

9 received on t hese promissory notes would be $133 . 22 or .20, 

10 whatever? 

II . ~ 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 paid? 

16 A 

17 that 132 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 paid all 

?' -, September 

24 Q 

. 20 . 

Is that right? 

If they pay. 

If -- if they pay. Well, have they all -- have they 

Well, they paid for August, but they haven ' t paid --

that you ' re looking at hasn ' t paid for September yet . 

Okay . Well, we're not quite in September . 

Fo l low me that? 

All right. 

If you just take line number S I believe, they ' ve 

the way to August 10th, but they haven ' t made their 

payment. 

All right . 
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Q 78, Nicky Cvitanovich note, spelled C-v-i-t-a-n-o-v-

2 i-c-h note. 

3 A Correct. 

4 Q $200,000, divided half 100,000 each, rent $2,000 

5 or mortgage payment, excuse me, $2,000, divided half a 

6 thousand each. 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q What is Exhibit 28, tell -- 78, tell me about this 

9 transaction, please. 

10 A Well, the transaction was I had structured a 

II transaction with about 10 individuals to buy 4 or 5,000 acres 

12 on the Mississippi River. In doing so, I was counseling them 

13 and all of them had to deliver funds into an escrow account 

14 that was irrevocably -- would go bad if any of them removed 

15 removed the money. Nicky worked for me, he needed 200,000 at 

16 the last minute, and I got a note on it that he's been 

17 faithfully 2,000 at 12 percent only. It does have good 

18 security on it, however, the note is due and payable. I just 

19 haven't enforced it because he hasn't been able to pay it off. 

20 But he does make the $2,000 payment. 

21 Q 

22 1 of 20097 

A 

24 Q 

Okay. So this transaction was done on or about May 

Before that probably. 

Well, I'm going to move for the admission of 78 --
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

May -- what year? 

-- and then we'll go into it. 

What year is it? ,-

I said one note was December 18th, 2007. 

2007. I thought you said 2009. 

And then there's a second note dated May 1, 2009. 

Well, becaus~ I yeah, because we amended it. 

MR. JIMMERSON: So I'll move for admission of 

9 Exhibit 78. 

10 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

II THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 78. 

12 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 78 admitted) 

13 BY MR. JIl'4MERSON: 

14 Q Now that it's admitted, let's talk about --

15 A Sorry. 

16 Q -'- its terms a little bit more. No problem. Three 

17 years ago, or two and a half years ago, I guess three years 

18 ago, December 18th of 2007, you made this $200,000 loan? 

19 A Yes, sir. 

20 Q Okay. And you took a security and interest in 17 

21 and a half acres located in Biloxi, Mississippi on the corner 

22 of Highway 15 and Larmy (sic) Bridge Road? 

?" -.) 

24 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

And then you indicated that in May 1 of 2009, the 
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note was amended? 

2 A Yes, sir. 

3 Q All right, b~cause he didn't come up with the 

4 200,000? 

5 A That's correct. 

6 Q But he was paying the $2,000? 

7 A NO f he was paying 7 percent less at that time. 

8 Q 7 percent less, and so did you increase his payment? 

~ :-i'\, 

9 A I did. 

10 Q And so itfs now $2,000 per month? 

II A Yes, it went from at a • 7 to 9 to 12 percent. 

12 Q Okay. So it went from 7 percent to 12 percent 

13 A And he's paying 12. 

14 Q Okay. And a 12 percent rate, was it a pretty good 

15 rate of return, would. you say? 

16 A For money, yeah. 

17 Q Okay. And how long has he been paying $2,000 per 

18 month? 

19 A I think for the last year. Let's see here, here at 

20 B; beginning from November 1st, 2009. 

2\ Q 

22 last year 

A 

24 Q 

Okay. So he's been paying 2,000 since November 9 of 

Uh-huh (affirmative). 

-- through the present? 
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A Yes, sir. 

2 Q All right. And at some point he needs to pay 

3 $200,000 or you're going to foreclose on the real estate? 

4 A That's correct. 

5 Q Okay. But b~cause he hasn't -- he hasn't paid the 

6 $200,000 but because he's paying his monthly payments, you've 

7 not enforced your rights? 

8 A That's correct. 

9 Q Okay. And dividing this asset with Lynita, you'd 

10 have to have communication with her relative to are we going 

II to foreclose, do you want to foreclose, that kind of thing? 

12 A That's correct. 

13 Q Or you just may let it --

14 A Let it ride out until --

15 Q -- let it ride for a while. 

16 A Yeah. 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: So 78 is admitted, Laurie. Asset 79 

18 is the Gateway notes, and I believe we covered those, Judge, 

19 and we discussed Gateway. I went through both the --

20 THE COURT: Those are the Arizona Gateway lots 31 --

21 MS. POLSELLI: Do you have those marked as admitted, 

22 though, the actual exhibits? 

'" _oJ 

24 

THE COURT: 5 and 6? 

MS. POLSELLI: 79 ABC -- ABC -- A, B, and C? 
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THE CLERK: It hasn't (indiscernible - away from 

2 microphone). 

" .) MR. JIMMERSON: Okay. Could I then ask for the 

4 admission of Exhibit 79, maybe call upon that from you? 

5 MR. DICKERSON: 79 is Nicky? 

6 THE COURT: 79A, B, and C, that's the Gateway, the 

7 Gateway lots. 

8 (Whispered conver~ation) 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: Exhibit 79 is the summary of Gateway 

10 notes. 

II MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, I have -- I have no objection. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: A is the three lots. 

13 MR. DICKERSON: So can we just explain what they 

14 are, if you go through them. It looks as if the 

15 (Whispered conversation) 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: A and B -- I can make the 

17 representation. A and B are two -- A and B are the two in 

18 default to Black Gold who we're either going to foreclose upon 

19 or try to collect, that's the two. 

20 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

21 

22 

?" -.) 

24 

Q Is that right, Mr. Nelson? 

A Yeah, those two are in LSN Trust, so I'll have to 

work with Lynita in reacquiring those. 

Q They're presently in Lynita's trust and Lynita 
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and/or you in dividing these in half or whatever the Court 

2 orders, the proper course of action is to foreclose and 

3 • collect thQ:tproperty Qack; right . __ ; 

4 A That's correct. .. "'. 

5 Q And then B is the 

6 A Same thing. 

7 (Whispered conversation) 

8 Q Two different lots, so A,',ls one lot, I believe. Is 
,"·l" 

9 it four lots or two lots? 

10 A It's two. 

II MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: B is the other lot, 173 and 174. 

13 And then C were the eight lots that Joan Ramos acquired and 

14 here's here note, that we had discussed yesterday that Lynita 

15 Nelson, your client, had signed. 

16 THE WITNESS: That's all due and payable. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Bates stamp number 1826. 

THE WITNESS: That is not in default at this time. 

17 

18 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: To refresh your, Mr. Dickerson, and 

20 that's when you said well, that's because she'll sign anything 

21 you put in front of her. 

22 MR. DICKERSON: You'll hear that. Anything put in 
~ 

23 front of her, she signs. 

24 MR. JIMMERSON: So anyway, this is one of those 
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, . 

documents that she signed because it was put in front of her, 

2 according to you. 
.it " -. 

3 MR. DICKERSON: Well, who prepared it? 

4 THE WITNESS: The note and deed? 

5 MR. DICKERSON: And who handed it to her and who 

6 told her to sign it? 

7 THE WITNESS:· I don't know, but let's take that 

8 back. These notes and tleeds were p~epared by generally title 
. ·"I".~; 

9 companies. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: And--

11 THE COURT: That note's not in default? 

12 THE WITNESS: It's not in default. It's all due and 

13 payable. There's no payments on that, Your Honor, it just 

14 comes all due and payable. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Isn't she in bankruptcy right now? 

16 THE WITNESS: Joan is considering bankruptcy from 

17 what I understand. In all likelihood --

18 MR. JIMMERSON: She's not in bankruptcy now. 

19 THE WITNESS: -- we may be receiving all those 

20 properties back. 

21 MR. DICKERSON: She specified in her deposition she 

22 was. 

23 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, then maybe she is. 

24 THE WITNESS; I don't know. Maybe she is now. Who 

, 
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knows. 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: Okay. So do we have an admission for 

3 the Exhibit 79 A, B, and C? 

4 THE COURT: Any objections, Mr. Dickerson, to 

5 Exhibit 79 A, B, C? 

6 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: Related to Exhibits 5 and 6. Thank 

8 you, Judge. 
""'!'i 

9 THE COURT: They'll be admitted as 79 A, B f C. 

10 (Plaintiff's Exhibits 79 A, B, and C admitted) 

II BY MR. JII~ERSON: 

12 Q Turning to the next page then. 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q Doing totals, this results in an asset division, if 

15 the Court were to order the same, of assets that we've 

16 identified here to each of the parties based upon cost values 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

A Yes, sir. 

Q -- of $9,014,000 to Lynita and $9,071,000 to Eric. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Okay. Then in the bottom right-hand corner, or 

middle right-hand corner are the children's trusts and we've 

indicated that has some -- (indiscernible) have a bank 

account, small amounts, and two lots from Gateway? 
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A I'm sorry, where was that? 

2 Q The children~·s trust. 

.... A Oh, yes . Okay. Sorry. .) 

4 Q I understand"~ I was just· summarizing yesterday what 

5 you said to refresh the Court. 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Of $25,000 total you indicated. 
,,:, 

8 A Right. ':l~ ;", 

··'·i:»- ,. 
9 Q All right. Now, let's look at listed LLCs and 

10 companies. 

11 A Okay. 

12 Q (Indiscernible) to create a divorce, the lawyers and 

13 the judge and the parties would say we're going to be 

14 assigning, you know, companies. 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Okay. So Eric Nelson Auctioneering, Inc. is your --

A Yes. 17 

18 Q -- former business or your business of 

19 auctioneering? 

20 A It's still my that's my broker license 

21 (indiscernible). 

22 (Whispered conversation) 

23 Q And is it a --

24 MR. DICKERSON: Are you looking at an exhibit right 
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:( 

now? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm in Court Option A. 
- '~ .. 

... MR . DICKERSON: Oh, okay. .) 

4 THE WITNESS: Last page. 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: Just going through this last page. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: No problem. 

8 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

9 Q Is Eric Nelson Auctioneering actually -- is that a 

10 DBA or a separate company. 

II A That's an S corp. 

12 Q S corp. And does it have any value today? 

13 A The value is it holds 50 percent interest in Russell 

14 Road and then my broker's license is hung there along with 

IS Chad's license and Aleda's license. There is no revenue. We 

16 could show you the revenue charts of it . 

17 Q . AII right. And so it has a value because it has the 

18 family's two-thirds? 

19 MR. DICKERSON: Objection; form of the question. 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: That's right. 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 Q 

23 Road? 

24 

The value of Eric Nelson is because it owns Russell 

MR. DICKERSON: Object to the form of the question. 
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THE COURT: ~t owns Russell Road; is there value to 

2 it? 

3 THE WITNESS: ; Only the half of Russell Road it owns 

4 because of the FDIC exchange deal on it. Outside of that, 

5 there's no value to th~ business. 

6 BY MR. JI~IERSON: 

7 Q And then there is the op -- we've already discussed 

8 this, the opportunity to acquire the next 15 percent? 

9 A 

10 But it 

II Q 

12 A 

13 Q 

14 divide 

'/.-" 

That next 15'percent is in Nelson Trust, unrelated. 

the total of 65 percent as the agreement states. 

All right. 

But that was done by design and by tax purposes. 

Okay. Now, I just have to ask the question. If we 

if the Court divides as you have requested, Russell 

15 Road will either go all to Wife or half and half to you, 

16 Option A or B, is there any tax consequences that we need to 

17 be aware of? 

18 A We just need to -- Eric Nelson Auctioneering should 

19 stay with me. The asset itself should flow down to Lynita, if 

20 she takes half or all; 

21 Q And is there any tax consequence as far as you know 

22 that would --

23 A If we transfer the property, you'd have to ask Dan 
.. "~. 

24 Garrity. We'd looked at a couple different ways already. 
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Just by a simple agreement, we could cloud the title and 

2 that's all we need to do until the sale, or we could put the 

3 property in trust with Dan Garrity. 

4 Q Okay. And when you say cloud the title, you just 

5 mean to make sure that Lynita is protected and --

6 A That's right. You lee -- you have an agreement, you 

7 record it against the property. That's as good as a deed of 

8 trust in position. ~ 

9 Q All right. Then Emerald Bay, Mississippi LLC owned 

10 50 percent by Lynita Nelson and 50 percent by Eric Nelson 

11 Trust, 50/50. 

12 A That's correct. These are the designated LLC8 that 

J3 have been a bone of contention. That is the parent company 

14 owned SO/50. The six below it are where properties should be 

15 held in Mississippi that flow up to Lynita depending on how 

16 the outcome of this deal is, Your Honor. So they should go 

17 with whoever gets Mississippi. 

18 Q And -- okay. So whoever gets Mississippi, Emerald 

19 Bay would go and the six subsidiaries? 

20 A That's correct. 

21 Q And if it's divided in half, it'd be dividing the 

22 membership interest --

A 

24 Q 

If it's at --

in those seven companies? 
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A There's noth~ng you'd need to do except supply the 

2 deeds to these -- to these entities. 

3 Q And you would supply the deeds to these entities so 

4 they would be the owners of the respective properties? 

5 A Excuse me? 
.".,. 

6 Q And why would you need the -- why would you need to 

7 supply the deeds within the meaning of your last answer? 

8 A In order to 'clear the title between me and Lynita, 
" [ 

9 they they would require a ramp up in all the deeds to be 

lO to be uncleared to take care of the lawsuit and things like 

11 that. 

12 Q Okay. And so this is speaking to the 120 acres 

13 that's got the (indiscernible) lien against it and the other 

14 80 acres. 

15 A Yeah, Lynita can do -- if she was going to deed it 

16 all to me, a quit claim deed of all the assets in that county 

17 is -- is sufficient and made very simple. 

18 Q All right. Gateway Water Association, what is that, 

19 please? 

20 A Gateway Water Association was a -- an LLC that was 

21 formed in order for us to get a public report. I'm using it 

22 

, ... 
-.) 

24 

right now to -- to move forward on the I believe 29 lots. 

This would be where if Lynita takes the 31 lots, she needs to 

work with us and assist, but that's the association to -- to 
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get us done with a public report in order to sell these lots 

2 individually. 

Q And you were talking about the Banone property; is 

4 that right? 

5 A These are the Gateway lots. 

6 Q Gateway lots, I'm sorry. 

7 A 31, 30 -- they -- it's at line item number 5 --

8 Q Oh, yes, itetris'--

9 A and 6. 

10 Q 5 and 6. 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Sorry, I mis my sheet fell apart. 

13 A It has no value except it helps you get done the end 

14 result of the public report. 

15 Q And what is this public report? You've mentioned it 

16 a couple of times. 

17 A We actually sold some of the properties because we 

18 thought we had already complied with a public report. That's 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

-- but a public report gives notice to the public on the 

the issues of water power and easements and to make sure 

you're in compliance with the state on being able to have a 

piece of property you can actually build on, or notifying the 

public of what the actual intent of what that property is. 

Q These are located in Mojave County, Arizona? 
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- -------------------------

A These are io<Arizona. This -- this is in White --

2 White Hills or someplace. 

.... 

..> Q Just kind of-over the bridge . 

4 A On the other side of the bridge, yeah. 

5 Q All right. The bridge that's never been built, 

6 yeah. 

7 A No, it's done. 

8 Q I know. It's three years behind. Three years 

9 behind and they still haven't opened it. 

10 A Exactly. That's why we -- actually that's a good 

II point. That's why we held off further, but the recession hit, 

12 knocked out the sales and the public report. However, with 

13 the bridge coming over, it should be helpful in the value. 

14 Q So here's my -- again, I'm just again, I'm trying 

15 to close my eyes and imagine what we have to do to help 

16 complete this case. You're going to -- if you go with the 31 

17 and 29 as you proposed, what are you doing? Are you dividing 

18 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 finish my 

24 A 

Either/or --

-- Gateway Water Association 

parties could 

half and half or what are you doing? Let me 

question. What are you doing about it? 

Either/or party could enjoy the benefit of the 
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Gateway Water Association. 

2 Q And so if they do divide it half and half, you'd be 

3 dividing it whatever ownership interest you have in this LLC 

4 half and half; is that'right? 

5 A Yeah, I guess. I'm not qUite sure how that'd be 

6 done. Yeah, the member -- yeah, I guess you're right. 

7 Q She'd become a member, you'd be going on --

8 A Yes. 
'. ~/. 

9 Q You're already are a member. 

10 A Right. 

II Q All right. New item, REO Holdings, what is the --

12 what is this company. 

13 A That's no value. That's an LLC prepared to be a 

14 holding company for a piece of property that we haven't 

15 designated. That should that should stay with me, it'd be 

16 no value to Lynita. 

17 Q 

18 company 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 

? .... _J familiar 

24 

And you haven't designated a property for that 

to --

That's correct. 

-- so it doesn't own anything yet? 

Right. 

MR. DICKERSON: When was this formed? I'm not 

with this one, 

THE WITNESS: REO Holding, we're just list -- we're 
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just listing every and any LLC that may be -- I think it's 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: But you didn't listen. He's not 

... 
J MR. DICKERSON: I'm not quarreling 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: -- quarreling with you on that --
5 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: -- he's with you on that. He's just 

7 asking--

8 MR. DICKERSOij; I don't really care, but I mean, I 

9 haven't seen this 

10 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

11 Q When did you form this? 

12 A Oh, I'm not quite sure, probably several years ago, 

13 three, four years ago maybe. 

14 Q It's not a recent entity? 

15 A No, it's just a holding company that we put an asset 

16. in. It has no asset value. But an LLC already prepared, if 

17 we come across something that's -- we don't know all the title 

18 issues, we'll stick it in there. 

19 Q So you know it costs you $800 to pay the secretary 

20 of state to create an LLC; that's the idea, right? 

21 

22 

24 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. Hideaway Casino, we do know that company, all 

right, and Hideaway, if it's awarded all to one party, in 

Mississippi, all one party, fine; if not, it'll be divided 
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half and half or awarded to the other party? 

2 A That's correct. 

3 Q Presently Hideaway Casino LLC is owned 100 percent 

4 by yourself? 

5 A By the trust~ 

6 Q By the trust, ELN Trust. Fine. And we've already 

7 talked about that contingent liability. Riverwalk 

8 Entertainment; this I .understand i~ a -- I guess a parent 

9 company to Dynasty Development; is that right? 

10 I A Yeah, that would be part of Hideaway, supposed to be 

II I'm not sure it's the parent, it could be the management 

12 company that would be involved in the Hideaway. But it's --

13 it's all in -- strategy-wise, it goes with the Hideaway, has 

14 no value. 

15 Q All right. Let me just -- that's not my 

16 understanding and so I want you to tell me how I'm 

17 misunderstanding. My understanding of Riverwalk was it was a 

18 parent company to Dynasty involving the Silver Slipper. 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

," --' A 

24 Q 

No. 

Okay. Then I'm wrong. 

Riverwalk is of Hideaway, not of Silver Slipper. 

So Riverwalk is a parent company of Hideaway. 

I believe so. 

And then above Riverwalk would be Eric Nelson Trust? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q Okay. So all right, I'm with you. And that's 

3 right, that is what you told me. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: So, Judge, just so we have an 

5 understanding, Hideaway is the operating entity that Eric has 

6 of -- owns a hundred percent of that had the failed boat 

7 investment in Greenville and with Mr. Berry (ph) being the 

8 threatening party there as he lost "his investment -- or the 

9 company lost his investment. 

10 BY MR. JH1MERSON: 

1 1 Q Riverwalk Entertainment is the owner of Hideaway 

12 Casino LLC? 

13 A I believe so, and it could be just the management 

14 company. But I do tell you one thing, I guarantee it goes 

15 with the Hideaway Casino and it has --

16 MR. DICKERSON: I agree wj.th that. 

17 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: All right. 

19 MR. DICKERSON: They're tied together. But his 

20 trust owns Hideaway. 

21 THE WITNESS: Right. 

22 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q And then the -- okay, that's fine. So I'm just --

24 what I'm saying to you for purposes of writing in order, if 
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the Court gives all of Mississippi to you, then not much to be 

2 'done. If you go half and half, then Hideaway Casino would be 

3 divided in.half or there would be some orders that affect her 

4 half interest ownership there if that were the case. And that 

5 would also have to address Riverwalk'Entertainment when you 

6 address Hideaway; is that right? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q Fair enough. All right, 'now a change in assets. 

9 
.,~.!.: 

Silver Slipper Casino. The company is Silver Slipper Casino 

10 Ventures, LLC is the operating entity of which Dynasty 

II Development Group owns 42 percent according to your testimony 

12 yesterday? 

13 A That's correct. 

14 Q All right. I understand it can be diluted down to 

15 34 percent if DDJ exercises warrants. 

16 A That's correct. 

17 Q All right. So if the asset of Silver Slipper is 

18 awarded to one party, you or to Lynita, then all 30 -- then 

19 all the interest in Dynasty Development would be awarded to 

20 that individual? 

21 A Subject to all the 

22 Q Subject to all the gaming regulations and the rest, 

24 

I understand, and all rules. 

A Yes. 
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Q All right. And it was -- all right, fine. And if 

2 it's divided in half, then we have to subject to it to 

3 licensing and the likeiand divisiori of the shares of that 

4 company? 

5 A Right. 

6 Q All right. Silver Dollar Land Holding Company, LLC 

7 now, can I just ask is Dynasty Development Group an LLC? 

8 A Yes. 
..-:;,;. 

9 Q Okay. So normally I use the word members or 

10 membership interest in an LLC and not shares. 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15, 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

16 please? 

17 A 

I'm a member I'm the 100 percent member of that 

All right. 

-- or whatever the --

And Silver Dollar Land Holding Company, LLC is what, 

That's just a holding company that we were holding 

18 for Mississippi to buy property or exchange properties there. 
'-

19 It has no value. I believe it has no value. 

2O, Q And to your knowledge --

21 A If it held anything no, it doesn't hold anything. 
, -

22 It never got done. 

Q All right. Banone, LLC, we've talked about, that's 

24 a Nevada LLC --
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A Yes. 

2 Q -- and it owns Nevada assets? 

A Yes. 

4 Q Okay. It also owns your home on Bella Kathryn? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q All right. Ban -- and so the Court would have to 

7 ,make some ~- when you divide the as~ets and the Court makes 

8 those orders, then the,,;Court could,l.eave Banone, LLC with you? 

9 A Yes. 

10 MR. DICKERSON: Technically it also owns the Arizona 

II properties with the exception of one. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: That is true, it does. I think we 

13 need to make that clear. 

14 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

15 Q Technically, Banone owns all but one property in 

16 ... Arizona? 

17 A That's correct. 

18 Q Although your books and records 

19 A But for booking purposes --

20 Q you're treating them as you divided them under 

21 exhibits 

22 A Yes . 

., .. 
_J Q -- above, 10 and 11. All right. And we also have 

24 Banone Arizona, LLC. Are you the sole -- are your trusts the 
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sole member of.Banone? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q For both Banone LLC and Banone Arizona? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Thank you. Xvyoming Rodeo. Events, what is that, 

6 please? 

7 A That was going to be a holding event in the event 

8 that we had gaming ri9~:ts that expi,Fed with the Wyoming Eric 

9 Spector transaction. 1~ has no value 

10 Q And who is the 

II A because they --

12 Q who is the owner of Wyoming Rodeo Events, LLC? 

13 A Eric Nelson Trust. 

14 Q So again, and just to dispose of the asset, that 

15 would be confirming your membership interest in that being 

16 awarded to you or divided in half? 

17 A That's correct. 

18 Q Grotta Group, we've spoken about. Grotta Group is 

19 an LLC? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And the members of the group are the five brothers 

22 and sisters and Lynita? 

?" -" 
24 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

So they each own one-sixth of Grotta Group, LLC? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q An~ Grotta G~oup's main asset is the contract at 

3 Mississippi'? 

4 A 

5 Q 

6 $25,0007 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Which you indicated had a value you would say of 

That's what I place the value at. 

Fair enough; ,", And what is' Grotta Financial 

9 Partnership, please? 

10 A That's the one that I hold the tax, eminent domain, 

11 and exchange that has the 25 acres in Mississippi. 

12 Q Now, I just have a question. Can you -- I mean, is 

13 it possible to divide Grotta Financial Partnership half and 

14·· half? 

A I would say by simple agreement. 15 

16 Q And what would that do when you -- when you -- what 

17 is the asset --

18 A I would get --

19 Q -- that you'r~ going to dispose of and how is it 

20 being disposed? I'm trying to give us an understanding of how 

21 we solve this one or divide this one. 

22 

'" _:J 

24 

A Well, you'd just say that Eric -- let's say I was to 

take half, Lynita already has that one-sixth interest, and so 

the Court would say Eric, you receive 50 percent of the 
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interest upon sale. 

2 Q So one-half of one sixth, or a twelfth to each of 

3 you? All right. And upon sale would be what, please? 

4 MR. DICKERSON: . It's an LLC. She could -- I mean, 

5 that he -- could each have half -- whatever half of 16, so 

6 THE WITNESS: We can go one-twelfth, I don't see why 

7 we couldn't go one-twelfth. 

8 MR. DICKERSON: That would be 8.3 --
9 MR. JIMMERSON: Whatever--

10 MR. DICKERSON: -- percent. 

1 1 MR. JIMMERSON: 3333 percent. 

12 MR. DICKERSON: Uh-huh (affirmative) . 

13 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

14 Q And when you say upon sale, upon sale of what, 

15 please? 

16 A If we sold and made money at the Silver Slipper, 

17 whatever, there would be some revenue driven up. We -- so 

18 whatever interest that would be, I just leave it out there, I 

19 -- I put it at very minimal. It's -- anyway, that's what I 

20 valued it at. 

21 

22 

24 

Q All right. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Could I have Exhibit 8Q, please. 

This is the operating agreement for the Silver Slipper. 

(Whispered conversation) 
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who's -- who's the priority lien. Usually it's last money in 

2 is the priority or whatever. My money was first when I 

J structured the deal that we created what they call a perceived 

4 created value of $5 million in that capital account. It's 

5 been reduced to 3.4. But of that, the other partners that 

6 contributed to show my faith in it and to get a larger 

7 percentage, the 43 percent, is I said I'll be the last out, 

8 meaning if that property sells for 60 million and it covers 

9 all my other partners and not me, I get zero. That puts faith 

10 in the transaction and it shows a good will towards me. I am 

1 1 at the bottom of that scale in that waterfall area. 

12 Q And is that detail --

13 A So the 3.4 is at the bottom of the waterfall. 

14 Q So you'd have to overcome the 57 men that's owed, 

15 the 13.5 men on the lease --

16 A Not only that 

17 q and all of that? 

18 A is they really don't care if I get paid or 

19 my partners because why? If anything, if they're upset 

20 it has actually put a bigger target on my back in those 

21 Q And those waterfall was specified, was in this 

22 contract, 8Q, in evidence? 

A 

24 Q 

That's correct. 

And specific --
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MR. DICKERSON: And you had referenced 5.1.8; is 
';.;. 

2 that the correct section? 

" ... MR . JIMMERSON: I believe it --.) 

4 THE WITNESS: I think you had the majority of --

5 MR. DICKERSON: That's major decisions. 

6 THE WITNESS: -- approval of the members. 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: Do you know where the -- is it 

8 Article 7, Mr. Stephens? 

9 

10 

II 

12, 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

?'" --' 

24 

',e.,,:", 

MR. STEPHENS: It looks like Article 7, yes. 

MR. JIMMERSON: What page is that, please? 

MR. STEPHENS: 41. 

MR. JIMMERSON: The article you just showed me 

reflected that the --

MR. JIMMERSON: I'll come back to it. 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q 

41 going 

A 

Q 

speaking 

provision 

A 

Q 

majority 

And does Article 7, ,7.1 and the pages beginning 

on discuss the waterfall effect? 

Somewhere in those documents it does. 
.. ' 

All right. Now I want to return to what 

about, 5.1.8; major decisions. What does 

provide 
'·;.i 

That --
-- as it relates to your rights in acting 

-: ~'-: 

owners, the 57 percent owners? 

','. 
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A It allows me to vote with the owners there and it 

2 also talks about in the event that new members are coming in 

3 or selling and interest and they can reject -- bottom line is 

4 . they can reject Lynita or they could idle my position in those 

5 areas, and I'm not quite sure how exactly it works. 

6 Q Okay. So the language specifically states 5.1.8, 

7 major decisions, notwithstanding the provisions of section 

8 5.1.1, 5.1.3, and 5.1.7~ except as !otherwise provided for in 

9 an approval of annual plan as defined below, in which case the 

10 board is authorized to proceed to implement any master -- any 

11 matter set forth in and consistent with the terms of such 

12 annual plan without further approval of any member. It is 

13 (indiscernible) with regard to each of the following matters, 

14 each, a quote, major decision shall be required to be approved 

15 by the required voting members prior to being implemented by 

16 the board, end quote: is that right? 

17 A That's correct. 

18 Q And then it identifies what some of those major 

19 decisions are. 

20 A Change of ownership is one of them. 

21 Q Okay. And that would include a division of assets 

22 and becoming an owner by Lynita in her own on this asset? 

A 

24 

I believe that would be the interpretation. 

MR. DICKERSON: Can you please point out the 
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specific provision you're relying upon? 

2 THE WITNESS:~ Any change of ownership in Mississippi 

3 

4 MR. DICKERSON: Where isit in here, what specific 

5 '~ .. ; 

6 THE WITNESS: -- would require Mississippi gaming 

7 approval. 

8 

9 

THE COURT: Is it in the -- stated in the agreement? 

MR. JIMMERSON: I don't see a -- Judge, I don't see 

10 a provision that says change of ownership. 

11 THE WITNESS: But, Your Honor, just so you -- so 

12 it's clear, any -- any bo -- any membership change, it has to 

13 be approved by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. I'm not 

14 saying Lynita couldn't --

15 

16 

17 

MR. DICKERSON: The Gaming Commission. 

MR. JIMMERSON: That's what he said. 

MR. DICKERSON: The Gaming Commission, yeah, but 

18 it's not in here. 

19 THE WITNESS: But everything in this document says 

20 you have to comply with the Mississippi Gaming Commission; do 

21 . you understand? Everything is subject to the Mississippi 

22 Gaming Commission . 

.., ... 
_oJ 

24 

MR. JIMMERSON: That's all 

MR. DICKERSON: I mean 
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MR. JIMMERSON: I wanted to point out. 

2 MR. DICKERSON: why mislead? 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: That's all I wanted to point out. 

4 THE WITNESS: I'm not arguing with you. She can get 

5 licensed. 

6 THE COURT: Basically the agreement doesn't address 

7 the change of ownership? 

8 

9 

10 

MR. DICKERSO~: The agreement does not. 

MR. JIMMERSON: The agreement establishes 

THE COURT: The gaming has -- the gaming has the 

II gaming rules, you always have to comply with gaming. 

12 MR. DICKERSON: She would have to be --

13 THE COURT: They basically --

14 MR. DICKERSON: She would have to be licensed if she 

15 had an interest. 

16 THE COURT: So whatever the gaming requires, they 

17 have to comply with it or they'd shut them down. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: She has attorneys in Mississippi 

19 helping her with that. 

20 

21 

22 

24 

THE COURT: Gaming is heavily regulated and they can 

do what they want, so basically you've got to comply with the 

gaming or they shut you down. 

(Whispered conversation) 

MR. JIMMERSON: Could I see that document one more 
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time? 

2 THE COURT: 8Q, I think it was. 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: What was that provision, please? 

4 MR. STEPHENS:' 6.1.2, page 38. 

5 

6 

MR. JIMMERSON: So we don't simplify this too much. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 BY MR. 

MR. DICKERSON: 

MR. STEPHENS: 

MR. DICKERSON: 
.-;."';:;': 

MR. STEPHENS: 

MR. DICKERSON: 

JIMMERSON: 

Which provision? 

6.1.2. 

6.1 :.'''.' 

;_,1 

It's on page 38. 

-- _2 

12 Q Is there a provision 6.1.2, page 38 of 8Q, that 

13 talks about prohibitions to transfers and admission of new 

14 members. 

15 A That's real specific on that, yes. It -- as except 

16 for permitted transfer. 

17 Q Okay. So I understand that you believe that when 

18 it's all said and done, the assets should be all awarded to 

19 your wife or to you, but if it were divided in half, okay, 

20 would -- if it was divided in half, under this agreement it 

21 would potentially require the approval of the other members? 

22 A That's my understanding and it definitely would be 

23 superseded.by the Gaming Commission that would require any --

24 Q And this document 8Q does refer to the Mississippi 
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gaming control? 

2 A Well, if I can, Your Honor, if I could just speak 

3 freely on this for one second. It's important that I 

4 THE COURT: I hope you've been speaking honestly for 

5 the last day and a half~ I hope. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: That's exactly right. 

7 THE WITNESS: Probably not at lunchtime, I'll tell 

8 stories. But the Mississippi Gaming Commission, of course, in 
" 

9 these areas, the tax returns were set in motion to divide --

10 one of the purposes that we'd separated the trusts was the 

II transaction at the Silver Slipper. The other part of that is 

12 Mississippi Gaming Commission said, Eric, we're -- we have 

13 never checked on your fam -- your -- Lynita's trust. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor. I mean, 

15 again, it's all hearsay. 

16 THE WITNESS: I'm just trying to help out. 

17 THE COURT: Well, the gaming all looks at that and 

18 characters and anyone involved with it to make sure you don't 

19 undesirables--

20 

21 

22 

24 

THE 

THE 

THE 

THE 

THE 

WITNESS: And they never did 

COURT: -- that are using --

WITNESS: -- look at Lynita's 

COURT: -- you as a straw person. 

WITNESS: -- because the separate trusts, 
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said if she's separate, she's not involved in it --
l.,., 

2 'l'HE COURT: Then they won~t check. 

.. T.HE WITNESS: we don't have to check her . .} 

4 THE COURT: And if she did -- anybody involved and , 

5 checked, they did to make sure people don't --
6 THE WITNESS: And so we didn't have to check her, 

7 but now she'll have to:'be checked oy, (indiscernible). I'm 

8 just saying I want eve.l1,yone to know;my liabilities and her 

9 liabiE ties. 

10 THE COURT: P.nybody involved that they have to, that 

) I was to avoid the mobsters having straw people like --
)2 THE WITNESS: Yeah, so 

13 THE COURT: -- Vegas was accused of having which we 

14 never had, of course. 

IS THE WITNESS: Well, we just -- we were able to get 

16 ~round not having my wife checked out because it was all on my 

)7 side because of the trust. 

18 THE COURT: You have no problem being checked out, 

19 right? 

20 THE WITNESS: Yeah, she doesn't have. I'm just 

21 saying I need to -- I think it's important 

22 THE COURT: Any owner would have to be -- anyone 

23 involved with gaming's got to be approved --

24 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, absolutely, Judge. 
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THE DEFENDANT: Fine. 

2 THE COURT: by the gaming board. Yeah. 

-. THE WITNESS: And that's ,fine. .) 

4 MR. DICKERSON: We fully .understand that. 

5 THE WITNESS: ... That's good. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: All right. Okay that covers those 

7LLCs, all right. 

8 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

9 Q Now, I just ~ant to speakhriefly on the request by 

10 your wife of division of income and income of her and that she 

11 has a sort of backup alimony plan, I guess is the way I would 

12 figure it. 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q Look at Court Option A and Court Option Bf please. 

15 A Yes, sir. 

16 Q I want to focus upon the income after February or 

17 March of 2011 --

18 A Yes, sir. 

19 Q That would be received by each of you depending upon 

20 the division of assets. 

21 

22 

.,-. 
-.) 

A Yes. 

Q And I want to speak first to a division, court 

opinion -- Option A. Are you representing that if the tenants 

24 pay according to their promises and their notes and in their 
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agreements that there will be approximately --

2 MR. JIMMERSON: Where is the right one . 

., 
oJ. MS. POLSELLI: Top of the third page. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: I don't have that note. 

5 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

6 Q Approximately on page -- top of the third page of 

7 Exhibit -- of Court Option A, $41,524 to (indiscernible) 

8 Lynita's trust and $39;.;024 to yourself. 

9 A That's correct. 

10 Q All right. And then under Court Option B, the 

II difference being that under Court Option B, all of Mississippi 

12 is awarded to you and all of Russell Road is awarded to her --

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q -- and she would receive $37,000 in income and you 

15 would receive 43,0007 

16 A Yes, and I think it's very critical to understand 

17 this, that the 37 actually nets more because Russell Road is 

18 -- is triple net. It's important to know that if I take 

19 Mississippi on, that that is not a cash flow position. These 

20 are based on gross. Gross net is very difficult, so she'll 

21 actually net more than me under plan B, even though it 

22 . reflects on the gross that I'm receiving more because again, 

under the Russell Road she is getting net -- triple net 20,000 

24 a month. And under my scenario, I still have to have all my 
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employees to manage the' Mississippi 'project as designed here. 

2 So there's an extensive amount of costs. The cash flow for 

3 Mississippi from the management anq,from the RV park has not 

4 met the -- the negative cash flow from Dynasty and those 

5 areas. 

6 Q So those assets in Mississippi have a negative --

7 A Yeah. I'm not trying to promote Mississippi one way 

8 or the other. I'm just telling you, the facts, though. Her 

9 counsel can tell Lynit~ and she can"hear it, that everything's 

10 been disclosed to her fully. 

II THE COURT: We're referring to -- counsel, you're 

12 looking at the upper right-hand corner when you talk about --

13 THE WITNESS: Page 3. 

14 THE COURT: -- page 3 where it says rents/interest 

15 payments per month? 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes. That's just a total of all the 

17 income that each would received 

18 THE WITNESS: Gross. 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: under each option in gross 

20 dollars, understanding that, for example, and the church is 

21 not a gross number, it's a net number, it's a triple net 

22 THE WITNESS: That's a triple net number. 

MR. DICKERSON: That's the number they're not 

24 receiving right now, correct? 
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MR. JIMMERSON: They're getting October 1, you're 

2 right, in a month and a half. Okay. 

3 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
,' .. 

4 Q Now, I'm not fully done with that or with this 

5 issue. You receive -- if I ask you this question, today, 

6 2010, you know, what do you earn for yourself; what do you 

7 take out of any company to support yourself, food, groceries, 

8 you know, entertainmen~with your children? 

9 A Oh, I'd say between 6 to 10,000; minimal, probably 

10 on an average 6, maybe 8. 

1 ) Q Per month? 

12 A Per month. 

13 Q All right. And so your wife is choosing to spend 

14 more dollars on her choices? 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Object to the form of the question, 

16 Your Honor. 

17 THE COURT: Sustained. 

18 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

19 Q More than you; is she spending more money than you 

20 are? 

21 A Her lifestyle as it shows and her checkbook shows 

22 she is spending a lot more money. 

?" --' Q All right. Why does your lifestyle -- what was your 

24 lifestyle and cost per month? 

0-09-411537-D NELSON v. NELSON 8/31/2010 TRANSCRIPT 
VERBATIM REPORTING 8. TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

11115 North La Canada, Suite 275, Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 (520) 861-0711 

-------...,.-------'--'-------_._-_._._-- . 

368 

AAPP 406



A Excuse me? 

2 Q Historically,- what has b~en your lifestyle and cost 

.. 

.> 

4 A Me and Lynit9 had qo -- v.irtually no assets. When 

5 we started, I probably had a $100,000 worth of assets. And so 

6 we lived under $5,000 total means with mortgage payments, 

7 everything. We did without life -- health insurance, life 

8 insurance for many, mariy years. P~obably the only last 10 
P,'.' 

9 years that we -- the fruit of our l<ibor,being debt free, 

10 started to come in and she escalated up maybe $7500, but less 

II less than $10,000 we lived on for many, many years. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

'" -" 
24 

Q Okay. And let me show you 1790. 

MS. POLSELLI: 97. 

MR. STEPHENS: 197. 

MR. JIMMERSON: 197, thank you. 

MR. DICKERSON: 197, what number? 

MS. POLSELLI: D. 

MR. JIMMERSON: I've got to go through all --

MS. POLSELLI: It's Bates stamp number 3931. 

MR. JIMMERSON: I've got to go through all of them. 

MS. POLSELLI: It's Volume 11. 

(Pause and whispered conversation) 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q Do you believe there is any basis under the division 
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of these assets as you have proposed them, either Option A or 

2 Option B, or any other reasonable division of an equal 

3 division of asset and liability, would there be any basis for 

4 your wife to claim alimony? 

5 MR. DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor; that calls 

6 for a legal conclusion and that's for the Court to decide. 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm asking for his understanding, 

8 Your Honor. I'm not ~iking for the~Court's determination. 
'';'1'_" • 

9 MR. DICKERSON: It's for the Court to decide. 

10 THE COURT: I'm sure he doesn't want to pay spousal 

II support. I never met -- very few people do. The Court looks 

12 at the need and ability to pay on that, but you felt with the 

13 property settlement on that there'd be no need for her to 

14 receive spousal support, right? 

15 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

16 THE COURT: I take that as a given. 

17 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

18 Q And as evidence in these two proposed divisions, 

19 it's a $40,000 per month income for her? 

20 A Well, my opinion because these are free and clear 

21 assets, they're all tied based to actual basis in the property 

22 

24 

so there's very little tax ramifications in any of it, I 

cannot imagine how she could not live within that means, with 

the exception if she has expensive professional people in any 
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degree that run things ~ut of control. 

2 Q Now, Melissa Attanasio is a consultant that did some 

3 work for your wife; is that right? 

4 A That's correct. 

5 Q And she prepared a lifestyle analysis, Exhibit 197? 

6 A Yes. 

7 (Whispered conversation) 

8 

9 

MR. JIMMERSON: I'd move for admission Exhibit 197 . . :'\ 

MR. DICKERSON: Was this 197 -- just plain 197? 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: Yeah. I mean, I don't even know 

11 what we're talking about 

12 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, I have no objection. 

I3 MR. JIMMERSON: All right. So, Judge, 197, the 

14 first of page would Bates stamp 3867. 

15 (Whispered conversation) 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: And (indiscernible - away from 

17 microphone) 197A is the (indiscernible - away from 

18 microphone). 

19 (Whispered conversation) 

20 

21 

22 

7'" _.> 

24 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q Okay. Let me show you Exhibit 197B and 

(indiscernible - away from microphone) . 

A 

Q 

Do you want to do a board? 

Yeah. 
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MR. DICKERSON: So what are we doing now? We're 

2 comparing 197 to 197B? 

MR. JIMMERSON: A single sheet of paper, I ., 
.> 

4 apologize. The marking is 1978. 

5 (Pause and whispered conversation) 

6 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

7 Q Now, based upon your review of Exhibit 197A --

8 A Yes. 
, ·~K· 

9 Q -- the Attanasio review of 2007 expenditures --

10 A Yes. 

1 I Q -- did you prepared Exhibit 1978 proposed? 

12 A Yes. 

J3 Q And is 1978 also set forth here on this board? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q And what is Exhibit 1978? 

16 A Those would be some inconsistencies or consistencies 

17 with Melissa's versus what I felt reasonable from being the 

18 head of the household and paying these expenses through the 

19 years. And so I made some adjustments here, areas or 

20 suggestions for Lynita that possibly she could look at in 

21 these areas. I was --

22 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for admission of Exhibit 197B. 

23 MR. DICKERSON: I just need to see the exhibit. Is 

24 it this one? 
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MR. JIMMERSON: It's that board, but you also have a 

2 copy. 

3 MR. DICKERSON: I don't have it yet (indiscernible -

4 away from microphone) . 

5 THE COURT: Try to get a copy of that first, make 

6 sure that he's --

7 THE WITNESS: These would be, Bob, areas of what 

8 Melissa had outlined and her numbe,ts --
~~, 

9 MR. DICKERSON: Of what his analysis is or for the 

10 I -- to the extent that it is a summary taken for that purpose, 

II I have no objection. 

12 THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead and admit it for -- as a 

13 summary, not the truth contained therein. 

14 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 197B admitted) 

IS (Whispered conversation) 

16 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

17 Q I know you stated and the judge fully understands. 

18 If you divide assets that have $40,000 a month in gross 

19 income, have of which is triple net like Russell Road, there's 

20 no alimony, I understand that. But I don't know how the 

21 Court's going to go, so I need you just to explain your 

22 criticisms at least, or your observations about Attanasio's 

statement. So what is Exhibit 199B (sic) now in evidence? 

24 A Well, I think it's important. I controlled all the 
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money in the household, which was not necessarily a good 

2 . thing, even though Lynita had freeddm to access the 2.6 

3 milliont get $15,000 m6nth which she could do whatever she' 

4 wanted with. My concern with Melis~a's deal is she never 

5 provided ohe that would provide something to live below your 

6 . means, which was always the goal of our family and our success 

7 was not to have debt. Lynita has had a crushing blow in her 

8 financial world of appioximately l~J million the way I 
~~. ',~ 

9 . calculate it. So I though it was -- if she doesn't want to 

10 take the suggestions, that's fine. 

11 So I put some suggestions up here, Your Honor, and I 

12 could talk about them because I want Lynita to find someone 

13 that can assist her to live below her means, and it looked 

14 like Melissa was elevating and escalating these expenses in my 

15 humble opinion, that I could not believe that for all these 

16~ears we never -- I'd have to make this -- 35,000, I'd have to 

17 make 55,000 a month to give her 35,000 because I'd have to pay 

18 taxes. It was im -- it was just 50 mind boggling what Melissa 

19 -- and when Melissa said -- I said what happened if I died, 

20 Melissa, or we didn't have all these assets? Were you going 

21 to help her establish a budget below her means? And she said 

22 no, that's not my job. 

23 

24 

MR. DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor; it's hearsay. 

THE WITNESS: That's true. Anyway, that's what the 
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nature is. If you want to walk through this --

2 MR. DICKERSON: She'll be here to testify as to --

3 THE WITNESS: I'll be happy to do it. 

4 MR. DICKERSON: what she actually said. 

5 THE WITNESS: Okay, great. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: ( Indiscernible - away from 

7 microphone) her job. 

8 THE WITNESS:."" That'll be. hearsay. 

9 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

10 Q Did Melissa ever provide to you a budget, proposed 

11 budget for Lynita? 

12 A She did. 

13 Q Okay. And what was that budget? 

14 A The budget showed a bunch of expenses, some expenses 

15 I paid, some of them taking into consideration that I was 

16 going to pay half of the expenses, some of them taking into 

17 consideration I was paying all the expenses, and it showed 

18 some number here between 26,000 to 30,000 a month. 

19 Q Prior to February of 2009 when she retained her 

20 current counsel, had you ever had those kind of expenditures 

21 of 25 or 28,000 a month? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

Not that I'm aware of, no. 

In your whole marriage? 

Never. 
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Q Please identify where you, believe that there has 

2 been, to say the least, excessive items; where you have the 

3 conclusion or believe that a more reasonable sum per month 

4 still exists at 15,000.,' (indiscernible - away from microphone) . 

5 A Yeah, there's things in here like for --

6 Q Let's walk through it since it's in evidence. 

7 A Well, let me just go through it real quick then. I 

8 mean, we don't need tojspend a lot of time on this and I think 

9 that it's excessive. You start down here at children's 

10 travel, $1-250 a month. I don't need to even say any more. I 

II have the kids I think 10 or 12 days of the month. Tuition, 

12 well, that goes away. Garett is -- that $1,000, Carli's only 

13 got two more years and I've already paid a full year in 

14 advance, so she's got one more year of that. 

15 The whole horse (indiscernible - away from 

16f'l\icrophone) is the most ridiculous thing. It's a broken down 

17 horse that should be put out to pasture. They don't even ride 

18 it, r don't believe. The horse is so old it's ridiculous. 

19 She needs to get rid of the horse. It's a hard -- it's a hard 

20 decision to get rid of a horse, but you've got to get rid of 

21 it. You can't board and keep it in shape and feed it. That's 

22 more -- I mean, that's more than I eat on in a month. 

Health care, I pay that, I believe. Clothes, I pay 

24 part of the kids' clothing. That's -- I mean, that's a lot of 
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money, $835. Activities, I have the kids --

2 Q $835 a month,. that'd be what, about $10,000? 

3 A $10,000. 

4 Q Okay. For kids' clothes. 

5 A Travel I think is excessive. I just went through 

6 some items that I believe for her to consider -- church 

7 tithing. When -- you don't pay church tithing. You pay 10 

8 percent, Your Honor. Vou don't pay -- if you pay in excess of 

9 10 percent, then it's -- in my opinion, it's wonderful, but if 

10 you pay it, it's your own choice. She's not going to have any 

II income for two or three years except for what she collects on 

12 her gross revenue. We haven't made money for two, three 

IJ years, so we would reduce the amount of money. Now, I have 

14 written checks for hundreds of thousands of dollars to my 

15 church, but that's when I get paid from the sale of an asset. 

16 Lynita, on the other hand, has been paying for 

17 principle, which is fine, but she needs to take a look at it. 

18 If you only owe a thousand, I want you to consider -- not to 

19 tell her what to do -- pay 10 percent, don't pay 25 peicent or 

20 whatever. 

21 Driving one car, that might be something to reduce 

22 your payments there. It's just something to consider. I like 

two cars, so I'm going to keep two cars, but I keep them free 

24 and clear. And I paid for mine, she wanted to lease one. The 
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estimated cost per Melissa, that's two car versus one. 
~ " 1:! 

2 Water, here's another excessive one. We need she . . 
" has an acre of property, she needs to go to some desert .) 

4 landscaping or cut off some of the water; 700 to $1,000 per 
"~ 

5 month for water is ridiculous. So I just got in here and said 

6 you've got to have some kind of budget. It's my suggestion. 

7 It's her money, but ltd like to see someone besides Melissa --

8 I would like -- or Mel~ssa, say pound this down to the ground 

9 so you know what you can live on if you don't have any money. 

10 If you don't have any car payments, you don't have any house 

II payments, you don't have any debt, live below your means 

12 whether it's 20,000 or 30,000. 

13 If she takes Mississippi, that affects her value, 

14.what she's going to have left to live on. So she's going to 

15 have to live lower on a standard. If she takes Russell Road, 

16 then she's going to be able to accelerate that lifestyle with 

17 no worries. This is it. Take half of Mississippi, that's 

18 fine. I'm at a point I want to get divorced, but I want 

19 Lynita to be successful. She's taking care of my five kids, 

20 Your Honor, and I have a vested interest in it, and she's 

21 going to be the grandmother of my grandchildren and great-

22 grandchildren, and there'll be plenty of them . 
.,.., 
--' 

24 

Q 

A 

Okay. Thank you. 

I'm sorry. 
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Q Not a problem. So you believe respectfully that if 

2 the Court were to look at an alimony award, which the Court 

., may not do, the point is that you think it would be $15,000 .J 

4 A Not only would it be --
5 Q ~- not $28,000 that she's created in the last year? 

6 A It'd be -- it would be a mistake for the Court to 

7 over-reward her monthly payments because as we can see, she is 

8 starting to spend everything because she's been promised 

9 she'll get it back fro~ one way or the other. In my belief, 

10 it would be a crime. 

II Q All right. And have you analyzed some of the credit 

12 card expenditures that we've talked about and introduced the 

13 credit cards of your wife? 

14 A This is the Chase credit card from January 2007. 

15 These were all the records we have. 

16 Q I'm sorry, this is Exhibit 197C. 

17 A Thank you. 

18 Q All right. And that is just some observations of 

19 her use of the Chase credit card from January of 2007 to July 

20 2010, which I believe we introduced into evidence by 

21 stipulation, right? 

22 A We have, yes. 

Q And then there's credit cards to back that up 

24 attached to it. 
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A Yes, and there's -- yeah, but I -- there -- the ones 

2 that you're going to want to get the ones that I have 

3 there, the full book that's hundreds and hundreds of charges 

4 each month. 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for the admission of Exhibit 

6 197C. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 197C. 
"!-

8 

9 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 197C admitted) 

10 MR. DICKERSON: With the understanding -- what 

II you're telling is the first page is his anal -- what he 

12 purports to be his analysis of everything behind it? 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Right. And let me say this. I 

14 don't know if every Chase document has yet been admitted --

15 MR. DICKERSON: Well--

16 MR. JIMMERSON: so I'm going to ask your help and 

17 we'll do the same, make sure that every Chase (indiscernible) 

18 between January of '07 and --

19 MR. DICKERSON: (Indiscernible) 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: -- (indiscernible) 2010 is admitted. 

21 Okay. And that is part of Exhibit 93, you remember. Let's 

22 just make sure we have those (indiscernible - away from 

23 microphone). 

24 THE COURT: I imagine we're missing some because it 
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shows nothing for December --

2 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

... 

.) THE COURT: -- '07, January '08, February '08, March 

4 '08, April '08, so just by that being omitted, I would assume 

5 they don't have the records for that. 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: Just couldn't find that. 

7 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: He couldn't find it. 

9 THE WITNESS: Rochelle and Joan --

10 MR. DICKERSON: Where's it corning? 

II THE WITNESS: -- and Lana will testify to the effect 

12 of where they come with all this information. 

13 (Whispered conversation) 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: You produced them, we couldn't find 

15 them. You produced to us, we couldn't find them. 

16 MR. DICKERSON: Oh, no no-- okay. 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: If you have them, I'd love to 

18 introduce them, but we --

19 MR. DICKERSON: Oh, you're just talking about 

20 December of '07 through April? 

21 THE COURT: Yeah, through '08. 

22 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

23 Q Okay. So what did you find in summarizing her 

24 expenditures just for one card, she has more than one card, 
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but her card, Chase credit card? 

2 A Well, I don't know if she has more than one, but 

3 based on this one here, this a lot of my frustration, Your 

4 Honor. I had asked for this for months and months and months, 

5 and Helissa wouldn't give them to me. And I can see why she 

6 wouldn't give them to me because you can see where her 

7 

8 

9 

payments 

have gone 

Q 

were 

up 

Do 

and then all 

all the way to 

in May 0:(" 09 

of a sudden the accelerations 

$56,000 in one month. 

when the lawsuit began? 

here 

10 A That's correct. But then they've fallen off because 

II I think they got cut off on the credit cards, then we didn't 

12 have any further information. She still has a tremendous 

13 amount of professional fees. This is only up to -- I don't 

14 know if you want me to put this other board up, but 

15 '(indiscernible - away from microphone) fees that we analyzed 

16 at the same time. Do you want that? 

17 Q Have we marked that next? 

18 A That in combination shows me the amount of money --

19 Q Yeah, hand that to me. 

20 MR. DICKERSON: Is this is this an exhibit? 

21 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. I get a little passionate 

22 in this, Jim. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Let me do my work. Okay? I 

24 understand. 
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THE WITNESS: All right. I'm sorry. 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: I do understand. 

3 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
-" 

4 Q Have you prepared an analysis based upon the 

5 production of documents that we requested and subpoenaed from 

6 the Dickerson Law Firm relative to professional expenses? 

7 A I have. 

8 Q Dickerson as 'well as Atta'qasio, as well as Anthem? 
.. VJ 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I have. 

As well as Duke King, her Mississippi counsel? 

I have. 

Have you summarized then on Exhibit 197E --

To the best of my ability, yes. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Move for the admission of Exhibit 

15 197E, Your Honor. 

16 MR. DICKERSON: Do we have the backup material for 

17 that? 

18 MS. POLSELLI: Yes. It will be -- one second, I'll 

19 give you the numbers. 90 is the documents produced pursuant 

20 to subpoena from Mr. Dickerson's office. 91 is Attanasio's 

21 office. 92 is Anthem Forensics. 

22 

'''' --' 

24 

MR. DICKERSON: Have those been admitted? 

MS. POLSELLI: No. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Move for admission of Exhibit 90, 
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91, and 92. 

2 MR. DICKERSON~ No objection, with the understanding 

3 that what he's doing is summarizing· those documents. 

4 THE COURT: They'll be so admitted with that 

5 understanding. 

6 (Plaintiff's Exhibits 90, 91, 92, and 197E admitted) 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: 90, 91, and 92, and the Court is 

8 certainly capable of (indiscernibl~- away from microphone) 
. 'f',~., 

9 BY MR. JIl~ERSON: 

10 Q These are for the law firm, (indiscernible - away 

11 from microphone) June 30th of 2010; is that right? 

12 A That's where we calculated that we found bills 

13 totaled $194,000. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: And, Your Honor, I'd like to 

15 jntroduce as Exhibit 197F the subpoenaed credit card records 

16pf Mrs. Nelson for Chase for the 30-day time period, July 1 

17 through July 31. So you'll see this summary is June 30th. 

18 MS. POLSELLI: It's already admitted as 93A. 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: Okay. So then I'd like to point out 

20 to the Court Exhibit 93A, that the Court can add $43,238 to 

21 the charges of the Dickerson Law Firm for the single month of 

22 July of 2009 -- or 2010. Payments of 3333, 5,097.91, 10,888, 

23 I and 14,226 totaling $43,238. 

24 MR. DICKERSON: 43-what? 
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MR. JIMMERSON:' 43,238. Please confirm this, 

2 Shahana, before I go forward. 

3 MS. POLSELLI: Yes. 

4 (Whispered conversation) 

5 THE WITNESS: She gave the Dickerson Law Firm this 

6 credit card. 

7 (Whispered conversation) 

8 

9 

MR. DICKERSO~; July's bi}l was 17,700. 

MR. JIMMERSON: I take that what I had. The bill 

10 for July is an additional $17,000, and the 43,000 contained in 

II the dollars I just referenced here. So 10,888, 43,000 and 

12 587. 

13 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

14 Q All right. And so she has through her own choice, 

15~he's been charged based -- to the best of your understanding 

16~based upon the subpoenaed documents we obtained from 

17 Dickerson, from Attanasio, and from Anthem (indiscernible -

18 away from microphone), $310,000 through June 30th and another 

19 17,000 (indiscernible - away from microphone). 

20 A I don't know if it was by her choice. She literally 

21 I believe gave her their credit card and they just bill as 

22 they, desire, my understanding. They have a -- by agreement, 

., .. 
_.J 

24 

.~" 

they just charge her credit card. 

MR. DICKERSON: Who does? 
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THE WITNESS: My understanding is I have in your 

2 records and your bill~ that per youi agreement with Lynita 

3 Nelson, that you can charge her credit card. 

4 THE COURT: VJell, we'11 leave that 

5 THE WITNESS: Anyway, I'll pull it out in his -- in 

6 his bill. 

7 THE COURT: ~vell, other than that, Miss Lyni ta can 

8 ~esti fy to her payment·· arrangement wi th counsel. She can 

9 testify to what her arrangement is. 

10 (Whispered conversation) 

11 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

12 Q Now, let's talk about the liquidation of these 

13 assets. 

14 A Yes, sir. I'm sorry, Your Honor, I just get -- I 

15 worked hard for those dollars. 

16 Q Okay. You're doing fine. You're going to have 

17 it's apparent to me, you're going to have a division of 

18 property whether Mississippi's awarded all to you or half and 

19 half, whether Russell Road is half and half or all to Lynita, 

20 you're going to have a division of assets and liabilities that 

21 provide approximately $80,000 in income starting the first of 

22 the year. 

A That's gross. Take 25 percent off for operating, 

24 about 60 net. 
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Q About 30,000 aside 30,000 aside --

2 A Yes . 

... 
.) Q -- net. Okay. But there's also going to be a 

4 liquidation cost and one of the things the judge is going to 

5 do, I would think, is reserve jurisdiction, I would certainly 

6 ask him to do that, and with the idea that we will sell the 

7 assets that are specified on Court Option A or Court Option B. 

8 A Some areas will affect the cash flow, like Lindell 

9 will affect the cash flow, will give her cash. However, 

10 Wyoming is pure cash, meaning that there is no cash flow, so 

11 she'll enjoy the minimum possibly from 400 to 800,000 in a 

12 windfall at some point in time. 

13 Q Okay. 

14 A So there's windfall in addition, this is a base of 

15 it~ Now, it's very selective. If she elects -- Jim, I want 

16 to be clear on this -- to take assets that are volatile, 

17 there's going to be huge attorney's fees and we can see --

18 this is a simple case, Your Honor. You get to Mississippi, 

19 we're going to step it up. I spend millions of dollars in 

20 legal fees at the Silver Slipper -- millions. So we've you 

21 beat on that, Bob; millions and millions of dollars with DDJ 

22 and the counsel down there. 

23 

24 

THE COURT: Now, we don't need the comments. 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, I'm just so frustrated. 
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THE COURT: I've given you a lot of leeway, we're 

2 trying to get this done and --

... THE WITNESS: .. Let's get it done. oJ 

4 THE COURT: .::J_ your behavior's been a lot better 

5 than it's been before; We're getting this done 

6 THE WITNESS: But I do want to -- but I'd want the 

7 Court to understand --

8 THE COURT: He can charge:.his -- he's a 
~", ; 

9 professional, you're a professional, you get highly 

10 compensated for what you do with your business transactions. 

II He gets compensated for what he does. Mr. Jimmerson, everyone 

12 gets compensated for what they do, and I get underpaid by 

13 everybody, but it's because I'm not the smartest, so 

14 THE WITNESS: Well, that's probably true. 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: That's why you get the big bucks, 

16 .¥our H6nor. Let's continue. 

17 THE WITNESS: I appreciate it very much and --
18 THE COURT: Let's just move forward --
19 THE WITNESS: -- I apologize for taking 

20 THE COURT: . -- try ,to get this done. 

21 THE WITNESS: -- time away from children. 

22 THE COURT: lfle'll try to get this done. 
~:.- .. 

23 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

24 Q Now, what I'm trying to also point out is that these 
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assets will be sold in the future?· 

2 A Yes, there's windfalls in there. 

3 Q Or there wil~ be, as we've seen in the notes 

4 receivable, payouts in a year? 

5 A Yes, sir. 

6 Q Several houses have one year all due and payable 

7 notes. 

8 A These are solid assets right to the ground, they're 

9 first deeds of trust. 

10 Q So in addition to receiving this income of 40,000 

II gross, 30,000 net to each of you and you'll also receive cash 

12 -- you know, it's not really a windfall, you've both, you 

13 know, earned it, you've both worked hard for it 

14 A Right, right. 

15 Q -- so but the point is you'll get cash --

16 MR. DICKERSON: Both have worked, counsel. 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, that's what my words were. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: I object. 

19 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

20 

21 

22 

?-' --' 

24 

Q So it would be a cash windfall -- you mean, cash at 

a particular time, it would be a payoff where you would get 

47,000 here or 90,000 here or 100,000 there or 30,000 there 

based upon these notes, right? 

A Words have many meanings. Windfall to me is a fresh 
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of breath air (sic) or a fresh of new cash. 

2 THE COURT: You get some lump sum payments based on 

3 liquidation --

4 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

S THE COURT: -- or this or that. 

6 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

7 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

8 Q Probably a be'tter way to ~ay it, at least I would 
.,:!~. 

9 use that word. And that also would include, like you say, the 

10 sale of Wyoming; it would include the sale of --

II 1'. Lindell. 

12 Q -- Lindell or the other properties? 

13 A Yes. The cabin. 

14 Q The Utah cabin. 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q All right. 'And so were you to liquidate all these 

17 assets based only upon the costs, not considering any 

18 appreciate in value, fair market value, or maybe depreciation 

19 of value, fair market value, depending upon each asset, of 

20 roughly 18 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

to $20 million over" the next few years --

That's true. 

-- which you have agreed would be divided 

That's true. 

Or if you were to be awarded Mississippi, 

0-09-411537-0 NELSON v. NELSON 6131/2010 TRANSCRIPT 
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

11115 North La Canada, Suite 275, Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 (520) 861.:0711 

in half? 

as I 

390 

AAPP 428



understand your testimony, if you would have it awarded to 

2 you, crediting your wife at a million dollars to a million 

3 five; is that right? 

4 A That's correct. 

5 Q And otherwise we divide it in half. 

6 A That's correct. 

7 Q You've been advised by me that whatever the judge 

8 decides, she doesn't ~~nt all of M1sSissippi, correct? 
,. ~ .. 

9 A I'm sorry? 

10 Q You've been advised by me, though, that she's 

It advised us that she does not want all of Mississippi? 

12 MR. DICKERSON: No, that wasn't the --

13 THE WITNESS: That's an option. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: -- I thought you were -- I thought 

15 -you were coming back with that option to me. I hadn't heard 

16 anything. 

t7 THE WITNESS: So, I mean, I think it's a ridiculous 

18 option but -- and I wouldn't want that option, but I mean, I'm 

19 Your Honor, you're the man. But anyway, go ahead. 

20 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

21 Q And have you worked for the benefit of your wife and 

22 yourself and your five kids? 
.";. 

23 A I have worked as diligently and as honestly an pay 

24 taxes and provided for my wife, provide an asset protection 
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plan, as hard as anyone I know. I'm not -- I leave deals 

2 where it'sa win-win, I hope, wherejpeople make money from 

3 deals. My reputation. I would hope would not be on how money I 

4 ,made, but on how my fatherhood would be with my five children. 

5 :And it pains me greatly to see her:be of such great waste when 

6 we have lived all our life below our means. And maybe it's 

7 ·not waste. Maybe this is a good thing and we'll all grow 

8 ,better and stronger pe9ple. And maybe Lynita will had an 

9 . education, which I ha~~: because i have never paid personally 

10 in so many areas and suffered. And so the answer is I hope 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

I've been seen that I'm trying to be as fair as I can, and 

I've worked hard. 

Q And the transactions that you have performed in the 

last year or two, since May of 2009, have been consistent with 

those principles? 

A It is so 

MR. DICKERSON: Objection to the leading nature of 

18 . the question, Your Honor. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

?" --' 

24 

THE COURT: Sustained. I imagine you worked hard to 

do best for the family·like everybody does and now people are 

getting divorced on the issues, what's the value of the 

property and how they want to split it, but I'm sure you 

worked hard to --

THE WITNESS: I want to make sure that -- I --
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THE COURT: -- support your family. 

2 THE WITNESS: -- think the question was I would 

3 never hide assets from my children and my wife. That would be 

4 against my complete nature and my God. And to be accused of 

5 this is that motion ~- I haven't even taken into 

6 consideration -- it would throw me out of the Gaming 

7 Commission, would have taken my license away if you had put me 

8 in jail that day. 

9 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

10 Q Now, relative -- I want to have you go back to the 

II houses because we'll hear from Lynita in a few minutes, but 

12 regarding the houses, what would be your proposition? I mean, 

13 if we can't agree on values -- if we can't agree on values, 

14 would you be willing to sell all three houses? 

15 A All the houses? I would agree to anything to get 

16 divorced. That's the number one priority. 

17 Q All right. And what would be in your children's 

18 best interest and your own best interest; what would be your 

19 desire relative to these three houses? 

20 A To somehow find a way that she can keep her house 

21 and I can keep my house. Now, the comment on my house, Your 

22 Honor, I bought that in 2009 at the very end. It's an 

23 architectural unusual house. My son wants to go to school as 

24 an architect. He got excited that we got it. We can sell 
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that property, that's why it's on the Banone. I don't have a 

2 ,problem. It's more important we waik from this as soon 

3 possible. I 'can buy another house: I can build another 

4 house. res-just that'it's right next to the -- my kids. 

5 . It's closer to Lynita .:" He doesn't have to cross the street. 

6 : I would like for her to stay in her house. We built that. 

7 It's a -- 25 years, it's been the kids' house. Garett wants 

8 the house when he's done, she has quoted. So I'd like to see 
.. :~.: 

9 it somehow work out. 

10 Now, if I'm snowballed or blind-sided by some areas 

II that I'm not aware of -- alimony, if she got awarded 35,000 

12 alimony, I'd have to sell my house. I couldn't do -- give her 

13 half the asset, double dip. The kids would be upside down on 

14i~ it. But it's more important that the kids have some safety 

1St here, or understand where they're going to live. So I would 

16 like to do that, long -- long answer, too long. 

17 Q You also indicated that with the division of all 

18 these assets in half, that that would adversely affect your 

19 ability to make a living. Why is that? 

20 MR. DICKERSON: I'm sorry, I missed the question. 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 Q You've also testified that the division of these 

23 assets in half and a division of the income, half and half, 

24 would diminish your ability to earn a living through Eric 
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Nelson and Associates. 

2 MR. DICKERSON: To which I object. I don't recall 

3 that testimony. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: I remember it clearly, but I'll 

5 (indiscernible). 

6 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

7 Q Would the division of assets, regardless of who gets 

8 Mississippi and regard~ess whether your wife gets half or all 

9 of Russell Road, would the division we've seen in Court Option 

10 A or Court Option B affect your ability to earn a living; yes 

II or no? 

12 A The assets are designed that we grow the asset from 

13 within and expand. So what we do is we manage our assets. 

14 That's my real business; it's not the auction company, it's 

15 not Banone, it's nothing of those related areas, it's that 

16: we're growing. If she takes half the assets, that's half the 

17 business. I don't have the ability to grow her half. Now, if 

18 she would assist -- allow me to assist her in managing those 

19 assets, her estate would grow, there's no question. She could 

20 have control of that. I'm not asking for that. All I'm 

21 saying is yes. 

22 Q All right. And you explained why, which I 

23 appreciate. 

24 A I'm sorry. 
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Q I understand, and you've explained why. You also 

2 explained the why. 

3 THE COURT: How much longer do you have, Mr. 

4 Jimmerson? It might be a good 

5 THE WITNESS: You've got five minutes, Jim. We're 

6 hungry. 

7 

8 

9 

THE COURT: How long do you -­

MR. JIMMERSO&: Five minut:es. 

THE COURT: i think the real key is we won't get 

10 anywhere until we get some cross examination because that's 

1 1 MR. JIMMERSON: Right. 

12 THE COURT: once we get the cross examination 

13 then we'll have some idea what the real issues are. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Just for housekeeping purposes 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I think that's great. 15 

16 MR. DICKERSON: -- Mr. Jimmerson has subpoenaed Joe 

17 Leauanae and requested that he be here today at 1:30. I 

18 

19 

20 

THE COURT: I doubt that we'll get through --

MR. DICKERSON: Well 

THE COURT: cross exam. I mean 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: I agree, Bob. You know, I work with 

22 him like you do. I'm don't try -- I'm not trying to 

?" --' 

24 

inconvenience him. 

THE COURT: Unless you want to get him first. 
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because of the slander of title issues, even though they were 

2 made aware of it. And Man -- Jim Maness kept that property . 
.. 

~ So he was getting sued because he couldn't see the property -' 

" 

4 and he didn't want give back his earnest money deposit, in a 
, ~.':' 

5 nutshell. 

6 Q So there's a potential of him coming after you on 

7 that second suit? 
~, .' 

8 A Well, the in\!iividual 105£"200, 300,000 wants to come 
", .~~ 

9 he thinks he has a suit against us, too. 

10 Q Okay. And then you mentioned briefly yesterday, I 

11 just want to state it in order, the Chris Stromberg School, 

12 this is a relative that you have supported, you and Lynita 

13 have supported in the past? 

14 A That's my son-in-law. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Object to the leading nature of the 

16 question, Your Honor. 

17 THE COURT: Sustained. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: What is well, that's what he 

19 testified yesterday and I was trying to, as an indication, 

20 Judge, summarize his testimony --

21 

22 

24 

THE COURT: He said it's his son-in-law. 

MR. JIMMERSON: -- which is entirely appropriate. 

THE COURT: Yeah, I think he said --

MR. DICKERSON: Well, that's not exactly what his 
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testimony was yesterday, the way (indiscernible). 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: Let's cover it. 

3 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
;". 

4 Q What is the Chris stromberg School obligation 

5 negative 40,000, plea~~? 

6 A Well, I didn't want the kids, and me and Lynita 

7 discussed this, to come out of college in debt. And so when 

8 the time was appropriate, we paid the first year of his 

9 college education, approximately 20,000. And now he's in his 

10 second year, we've paid part of that. And it may be a couple 

II more, I had calculated about $40,000 in his college scenario. 

12 Those were guaran -- those weren't guarantees. Those were if 

13 we could afford it and we thought it was appropriate and he 

14 got good grades and they're working hard. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay. And this is Erica --

He's in Penn State. 

This is your daughter Erica's husband? 

No, this is Amanda's husband. 

Amanda's husband. Thank you very much. Mr. 

20 Stephens whispered to me it was Erica, so there you go. I 

21 went with it and --

22 

.," -" 

MR. STEPHENS: I (indiscernible) --
"I: 

MR. JIMMERSON: I got bad information. 

24 THE WITNESS: That's okay because that'll be a good 
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one to tell Amanda because Erica likes Chris, so. 

2 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

3 Q Okay. Anyway, stop that. Amanda, your daughter 

4 oldest daughter Amanda's husband, Chris stromberg. 

5 A She's a registered nurse in Pennsylvania and in the 

6 emergency room and so they've done really good, they're 

7 working hard. But I just don't want to see the kids come out 

8 in debt. 

9 Q Right. And he has approximately what, two years of 

10 school left? 

II A Two years or less, I believe. 

12 Q So another 40,000 should cover the two years? 

13 A Yes, sir. Just -- yeah, just the tuition. 

14 Q All right. Thank you. All right. 

15 (Whispered conversation) 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Madame Clerk, could I have Exhibit 

17 28, please? 

18 (Whispered conversation) 

19 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

20 Q Yesterday, we touched upon, and I'm just, you know, 

21 trying to get through this, failed to admit the underlying 

22 documents. We spoke to this $154,000 IRS obligation; are you 

.., ... 
-.) 

24 

familiar with that? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q All right. And as I look at it, that would be item 

2 number 28. 

3 A Yes, sir. 

4 Q IRS liability 2005 (indiscernible) of $154,512.00, 

5 right? 

6 A Yes. That does not include my attorney fees and 

7 accountant fees that'll go into that. 

8 Q I'm showing you what's b~eri marked as Exhibit 28. 
" "."., 

9 Are these true and correct copies of IRS documents evidenced 

10 in that liability of yourself and Lynita on the joint tax 

11 return of 2005? 

12 A It is. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for admission of Exhibit Number 

14 28, Your Honor. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

16 THE COURT: It's hereby admitted as Exhibit 28. 

17 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 28 admitted) 

18 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

19 Q Okay. I'm going to turn the page. Still focusing 

20 on Court Option A and Bf which is the same on all of these 

21 items that we're covering now. We've covered the cars? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q All right. So Wife gets Excursion subject to debt, 

24 Volkswagen, and you get Escalade and Mercedes? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q All right. 

3 (Whispered conversation) 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: Madame Clerk, may I call for 197D, 

5 please? Volume 11. 

6 (Whispered conversation) 

7 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

8 Q Mr. Nelson? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q When you're ready. 

11 A I'm ready. 

12 Q Is it a fair statement that you have been -- are you 

13 disappointed at your wife's expenditure of a million three in 

14 two years? 

15 MR. DICKERSON: I'm sorry, Jim, I didn't hear that 

16 question. 

17 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

18 Q Are you disappointed with your wife's expenditures 

19 of approximately $1.3 million between October of 2006 and now 

20 (indiscernible)? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q And have you observed that the level of expenditures 

23 of your wife have dramatically increased after February of 

24 2009? 
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e e 
MR. DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor; without tile 

2 laying of foundation. 

3 THE COURT; Sustained. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: Can I at least have an answer to the 

5 

6 THE COURT: I think you need to show what she was 

7 spending and give some basis. 

8 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

9 Q So is the answer yes? . 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q All right. And have you studied her --

12 MR. DICKERSON: Object to the leading nature of the 

13 question, Judge. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: What -- have you studied is not 

15 leading. Have you --

16 .. MR. DICKERSON: Well, no, I mean (indiscernible) so 

17 far with with you -- him answering yes, those are leading 

18 questions. 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: They're not leading questions. I 

20 asked him has he studied her expenditures to some regard in 

21 some regard. That's my question. 

22 

')'" .... ., 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. JIMMERSON: All right . 

24 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
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Q And what did you observe with regard to her spending 

2 between the $2.6 million in October of 2008 through the 

3 present date? 

4 MR. DICKERSON: May we have a foundation as what he 

5 studied? 

6 THE COURT: Have you looked at expense accounts, 

7 credit card accounts or did you do monthly? I guess they need 

8 some background as to jour awareness of what she spent before 

9 or after, so they need«a little f00hdation; if you wrote the 

10 bills, she wrote the bills while you guys were together or 

11 whatever. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Right. Great. 

13 THE WITNESS: Yes. The way we had designed it, 

14 she'd get X amount from her Mellon account that she'd put In 

15; her savings and her -- and pay personal bills like hair 

16 styling, things like that, approximately 15,000. And we would 

17 pay all the bills that were relative to the house and things 

18 -- you know, natures of that. The other part I studied was 

19 Melissa's lifestyle report. In addition to that, I studied 

20 her credit card reports and I studied her checks that she had 

21 written. 

22 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

23 Q 

24 A 

You've looked at some of the Chase accounts --

Yes. 
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- --------j;---- -

Q -- Chase credit card accounts of Lynita Nelson? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q 'And did you observe a significant increase in 

4 expenditures after --, 

A I actually have a billboard 5 

6 Q Listen to me. Did you observe from those records a 

7 significant increase in expenditures by her on credit cards 

8 after February of 2009~ 
,f· 

9 MR. DICKERSON: Object to the leading nature of the 

10 question, Your Honor. 

II BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

12 Q What did you observe with regard to those credit 

13 cards? 

14 A The credit card, I observed that generally she'd be 

15 ;spending well less that, you know, 5 to 10,000 per year and it 

16:accelerated at one month all the way to 54 thou -- $56,000. 

17 Q And after February of 2009, what did it -- what was 

18 it's levels if you --

19 A It jumped to 15 to 20, and like I said, one time 

20 $56,000, off the charts. 

21 Q Now, focusing your attention on Exhibit 179D --

22 MS. POLSELLI: 197. 

23 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm sorry, 197D, Bates stamp number 

24 3931--
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(Whispered conversation) 

2 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q I'll just show you what's been marked as proposed 

4 Exhibit 197, the next to last page, Bates stamp 3931 only, 

5 just that single piece of paper. 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q Did you observe that during the course of this 

8 divorce during the .course of th!~ divorce your wife has 
J'.~" 

9 undertaken significant travel and jewelry purchases? 

10 MR. DICKERSON: May I inquire, is this something he 

11 made, is this 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, it's something he made and it's 

13 a summary of the documents you produced. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Is it a summary of the documents 

15 that are this entire packet? 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: No, no. It's a summary -- it's his 

17 itemization of expenditures --

18 MR. DICKERSON: Then I object to it without the 

19 providing of the documents that he's relying upon to come up 

20 with these numbers. 

21 

22 

24 

MR. JIMMERSON: I agree with that. 

THE WITNESS: There actually are credit card 

statements --

MR. JIMMERSON: I understand. So we're going to 
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move --

2 MR. DICKERSON: But the credit card statements are 

3· hers_ 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: -- to introduce her credit card 

5 statements. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: I mean, if these are them, if that's 

7 your representations that this is what it's based upon, I 

8 don't have a problem. But, I mean, and it can corne in only as 

9 his analysis. Whethei~it's right or wrong, I mean, it's his 

10 surrunary of what he believes is in there. But if it's based 

II upon this, I have no objection. If it's not --

12 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm going to introduce, if we can by 

13 stipulation, all of her Chase credit cards expenditure, 

14 period. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: That's fine. 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Then that'll be the underlying 

17 documents for which she can demonstrate she spent $24,000 in 

18 jewelry about eight months ago. 

19 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: Jim, along with her --

21 MS. POLSELLI: Exhibit 93 are the Chase statements 

22 that we got pursuant to our subpoena. 

MR. JIMMERSON: I'd move the admission of Exhibit 93 

24 by stipulation. 

,":. 
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MR. DICKERSON: Now, doe~ that include -- were the 

2 Chase credit card statements (indiscernible)? 

THE WITNESS: And, Jim, some of these are checks 

4 that she provided, too. 

5 THE DEFENDANT: No (indiscernible). 

6 THE COURT: Well, I'm saying 93, I don't know what 

7 he -- the ~tipulation to 93 or not. They said those are the 

8 . Chase cards -- Chase receipts that you allegedly provided him? 

9 MR. DICKERSON: I have no objection -- I have 

10 absolutely no objection to anything we've given, and in fact, 

II we -- she was subpoenaEd, they served -- well, the subpoena 

12 was served on my office for some additional credit card 

13 statements and I've run those off and you need -- I ran off 

14 enough for copies -- or for -- if you want to include those as 

15 part of your exhibit. 

16 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 93 admitted) 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: That's fine, too. 

18 THE COURT: Do you want that all to be part of 93 or 

19 make that a separate doc -- do you want to look at that and 

20 see if you want it all as one all inclusive or --

21 

22 

24 

MR. JIMMERSON: Sure, want it as one, Judge. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

(Whispered conversation) 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
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Q Focusing your attention on 197, the next to the last 

2 page, did you observe that from the, credit cards of your wife 

3 and checks written by your wife that she purchased jewelry, 

4 diamonds, in the last nine to ten months? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q And did you detail those in the document, next to 

7 . the last page of 179 (sic), Bates stamp number EN3931? 

8 A Yes, I did. 

9 Q And what did· you observe with regard to these 

10 expenditures -- I would just note to that -- what did you 

II observe with regard to travel and jewelry? 

12 A She'd -- she'd stated that she was taking all the 

13 girls on a trip and sure enough she -- it shows on her credit 

14 card she took all the girls -- not-- not my girls, her 

15 friends, she took her friends on an outing to Cabo. 

16 Q Okay. Is that summarized here through the $15,693? 

17 A I believe that to be correct. I don't believe that 

18 the Paradise Island Venture well, it's at the 9400, I think 

19 is more with that friendship -- friend. I don't know about 

20 the other stuff. 

21 Q All right. And then did you itemize the jewelry 

22 that she purchased in 2009 --

23 MR. JIMMERSON: And I'll just represent to the 

24 Court, we have dates of 12/16/2010, and that's a typo, it's 
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2009, and 12/22/2010, which is 2009~ and April 2009, June of 

2 2009, January of 2010, February of 2010, February of 2010, and 

3 March of 2010. 

4 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

5 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

6 Q And do these Treasure Island jewelry purchases, 

7 Ultra Diamonds, Huntington JewelerS add up to $24,044.18? 

8 A I believe thEty do. 

9 Q And is that the item that we've listed as 197D, 

10 Lynita community personal expenditures? 

I I A Yes, sir. 

12 MR. DICKERSON: I'm sorry, 190-what? 

\3 MR. JIMMERSON: 7D. Right here. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. 

15 (Whispered conversation) 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: And, Your Honor, from the statements 

17 that were just produced this morning that we've just added 

18 that you may have identified as 93A, there's an entry of 

19 February 5, 2010, Huntington Jewelers, for the 9729 that he 

20 had found earlier that is referenced here as February 5, 2010, 

21 Huntington Jewelers, 9729. All right. 

22 

24 

THE COURT: Do you know that's to the payment due 

date of March 4th, 2010 in the summaries that show 2/5 

Huntington Jewelers, Las Vegas, 9,729? 
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MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, Your Honor. 

2 THE COURT : Okay . 

3 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

4 Q So did your.wife consult with you when she bought 

5 these diamonds? 

6 A No. 

7 Q And as such, it's a community property asset? 

8 MR. DICKERSON: Can I ask -- I mean, you say 
,1' 

9 diamonds. Where is it~in any credit card that says that 

10 they're diamonds? That's -- I mean, you -- may I -- Your 

II Honor, I'm objecting. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, she bought (indiscernible) 

13 diamonds. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: I mean, it says jewelry, Huntington 

15 Jewelry, so okay? 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: I'll modify the question. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: Thank you. 

18 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

19 Q Did you -- were you consulted with regard to her 

20 purchase of Huntington Jewels, Ulta Diamonds, and Treasure 

21 Island 

22 A 

?"' _J Q 

24 A 

jewelry? 

No. 

Or from the jewelers? 

No. 
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Q All right, owned by Morde,cai? 

2 A No. 

.... Q .) Okay. Thank you . 

4 .' 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for admission of 3931, Your 

6 Honor. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: I'm sorry, what exhibit? 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: It's 197D, the next to the last 

9 page, single page only";~t this time ~ ,: I will get to the 

10 others. 

II MR. DICKERSON: B? 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: D. 
.~.' ,. 

13 MS. POLSELLI: D and in David. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: And it's Bates stamp number 3931. 

15:, MR. DICKERSON: It's just this? 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Just a single piece of paper. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: I have no objection well, what I 

18 do have an objection -- are these admitted, the credit card 

19 statements 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes. 

21 MR. DICKERSON: -- that these rely upon? Okay. And 

22 what are those exhibit numbers? 

MR. JIMMERSON: We just 50 we have a little bit 

24 of confusion. Madame Clerk, Laurie, do you have admitted 93 

0-09-411537-0, NELSON v, NELSON 8131/2010 TRANSCRIPT 
VERBATlM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

11115 North La cana:1a, Suite 275, Oro valley', Arizona 65737 (520) 861-0711 
279 

--------.--------------_-'---::-_------ ----,-,----,-'-

AAPP 318



and 93A by stipulation? 

2 THE CLERK: Yes. 

"' MR. JIMMERSON: All right. Thank you. Then they're ,) 

4 in. 

S MR. DICKERSON: Yes. 

6 THE COURT: Those should be all the credit cards. I 

7 haven't looked at them~ but those should be the credit card 

8 documentation. Okay. ~ 

9 MR. DICKERSON: Yes. I have no objection. 

10 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 197D admitted) 

II MR. JIMMERSON: And now this page is in by 

12 stipulation, Your Honor? 

13 THE COURT: Any problem with the other page he gave? 

14 I guess this is the summary, I guess. Any objection to 93D, 

15 Mr. Dickerson? 

16 MR. DICKERSON; 93D is the credit cards? 

17 THE COURT: D, I think, D as in David, his summary? 

18 MR. DICKERSON: Oh, no, no objection, with the 

19 representations that they have --

20 

21 

22 documents. 

24 

MS. POLSELLI: No, 197D, Your Honor. 

MR. DICKERSON: that it's based upon these 

THE COURT: You say that's his summary of it 

MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, and I'll go through 
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THE COURT: .~- and based on those documents, we'll 

2 give you acchance to 160k at that, .see if it's accurate, but 

3 we'll admit it just that that's his representation of what 

4 those summary of those documents, not that that necessarily 

5 is true. I'll give yoh a chance to look at that --

6 MR. JIMMERSON: And then the other Chase credit card 

7 expenditures have not been admitted that have been provided. 

8 I'm going to have to find those, i~~roduce those as well' 

9 because I personally h'~ven' t gone through every credit card to 

10 match this. My staff has, so --

11 THE COURT: The last one I have is for the due date 

12 August 4, 2010, so it should be pretty (indiscernible). 

13 THE WITNESS: I have them all in the truck. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, they don't do good in the 

15 truck. 

16,. THE WITNESS: Well, like I say, Shahana can get 

17 them. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you. 

19 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

20 Q All right. So that covers asset 197D. All right. 

21 Now, let's go to assets to be sold or split, item number 50. 

22 Are you with me? 

23 A 

24 Q 

Yes, sir. 

All right, under Court Option A or B. Let's speak 
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if we can to the -- speaking now only to the houses down to 

2 let's say item 56. So we're talking 50 to --

3 A It'd be 54. 

4 Q 50 to 54. 

5 A 55 and 56 are vacant land. 

6 Q Very good. So let's go 50 to 54; what's this about, 

7 'please? 
" 

8 A These were the base amounts that we purchased the 

9 homes. They're all free and clear and I had taken upon 

10 myself, said let's sell some, raise some extra cash. These 

II are four that could be -- Lynita could take them or we could 

12 sell them. 

13 Q Presently under this option, they're to be divided? 

14 A Yes, sir. 

15 Q All right. 

16 A 54, however, was my daughter's condo, Erica, and the 

17 way if it lays out, if possible, I'd like to have either 

18 Lynita or myself. I'd prefer not to sell it. 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

Q 

24 A 

And that's where Erica is living now? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. On 1608 Rusty Ridge Lane? 

Yeah. 

Asset 54? 

Yes. 
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Q All right. And so if you are awarded it, you would 

2 be -- you would take 77,000 or if she were awarded, she would 

3 take it for 77,000? 

4 A You've got to read -- yes, this is base --

5 Q Or you could take -- hang on. Or you could divide 

6 it half and half with your understanding that you could own 

7 the house together jointly as tenants in conunon, but the idea 

8 would be not to evict Y9ur daughter and not to sell it. 

9 A That's correct. 

10 Q Okay. 

11 A Yeah, it could be separate property, 50 percent, 50 

12 percent. Now, this is based on Lynita taking all of Russell 

13 Road, this Exhibit B, Your Honor --

14 Q All right. 

15 A -- because it allowed me to take some assets to 

16 level off the trusts at the end. 

17 Q And A is dividing everythi.ng in half, including --

18 A With a lot of flexibility, yes, sir. 

19 Q All right. So these are -- these are reasonable 

20 investments? 

21 

22 

24 

A These are --

MR. DICKERSON: Objection to the nat -- the form of 

the question, Your Honor. 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
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Q Are these good investments for the family? 

2 MR. DICKERSON: Objection to the form of the 

3 question. 

4 THE COURT: Sustained. 

5 MR. DICKERSON: Vague and ambiguous. 

6 THE COURT: (Indiscernible) good investments. Right 

7 now they're owned free· and clear, though; 50 through 54 are 

8 .all free and clear; iithat correct~ 
".10 • 

THE WITNESS: That's correct, sir. 9 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: Judge, I don't understand. He can't 

II testify as to whether or not they're good investments? 

12 MR. DICKERSON: Well, he can testify. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, I asked him --

14 THE COURT: I mean, if they're free and clear, I 

15 imagine they're --

16 MR. JIMMERSON: -- are these good investments. You 

17 objected as to the form. Judge sustained. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: When you use the word good, the 

19 answer -- so why don't you ask him how would he describe these 

20 investments? 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: That's fine. How -- because choose 

22 not to. 

THE COURT: Not sure if they're good investments or 

24 not. He just shows the value. I have no idea what he paid 
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for them, so I guess --

2 THE WITNESS:: This is what we paid for them, Your 

3 Honor. The majority of all these numbers are actually our 

4 basis, and I'm -- so I~m trying to ~tilize basis. 

5 THE COURT: So these aren't the fair market value. 

6 It could be even higher of lower depending --

7 THE WITNESS: Be higher or lower, yeah, depending on 

8 when we got them, and I don't really know because most of the 

9 properties I don't ever see. 

10 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

II Q How long ago did you purchase 4412 Baxter? 

12 A 50 to 53 would be when we had those would 

13 probably have been early on properties, so it'd probably be 

14 2008. 

15 Q Okay. And so that's 50, 51, 52 --

16 A 2009. 

17 Q -- 53? Okay. 54 is Erica's condo? 

18 A And 54 was within the last nine months because she 

19 needed place to live, last year. 

20 

21 

22 

24 

Q All right. Now 55, this is vacant land? 

A Vacant land in Mojave County, Arizona. 

Q Now, when we -- when you look at the line items, 

assets to be sold or split like Baxter, is there a rent there? 

A They's rented, yes. In fact, to the right, you see 
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the gross rent on those four. 

2 Q That's what I'm trying to cover. 

3 A So it's rented for $700. 

4 Q So there's an occupant n~w? 

5 , A They're all rented, yeah. All are occupied. 

6 Q And they are paying the gross sum that you've 

7 indicated, $700, a thousand, 1200, 1150? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 Q And then we'te dividing the rents in half because 

10 you'd be dividing the houses in half. 

II A Yes. And how it works, Your Honor -- if I may, Bob 

12 all the rents, the tenants are actually given a deposit 

13 slip and the deposit slip automatically goes into an account, 

14 so everything is accounted for to the penny. We know when 

15 they deposit it, blah, blah, blah. 

16 Q And then there are expenses that have to be paid? 

17 MR. DICKERSON: No, he said that was net rent. 

18 THE WITNESS: Yeah, we don't take any cash. We take 

19 all checks to the bank. I'm sorry, yeah, then we have 

20 expenses. That's why it's gross. 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 

24 

Q So what expenses would you have in managing these 

properties, collecting these rents? 

A Repairs and 
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MR. DICKERSON: So that there's no confusion 

2 excuse me. So there'~;no confusion, I thought he said these 

3 were the net rents. 

4 THE WITN~SS: No, no, no, no, not these. These--

5 net and net gross, meaning that this is what we get. Less 

6 gross means that's what they payout of expenses. Triple net 

7 like on Russell Road is it's one check, the tenant pays all 
, . 

8 the expenses including~the taxes o~ Russell Road. 

9 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

10 Q That's what I'm trying these four properties, 

II you're receiving a gross rent of $700? 

12 A Right. 

13 Q Okay. $1,000, 1200, 1150, depending on whether 

14 you're talking items 50 through 53? 

15 A That's correct. 

16 Q All right. So now -- and you also told us that the 

17 checks are deposited directly into the account, there's no 

18 deductions taken, you can trace exactly what's been deposited? 

19 A Yeah, what I'm getting at is we don't take case. 

20 Everything's got to be reported for IRS purposes, for 

21 accounting purposes, and we have -- we have -- I can show you 

22 all the rent rolls, when everybody's paid, not paid, Your 

23 Honor, if you want that, too. 

24 Q Okay. And you run that on a regular bases? 
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A Either Michelle will run it, Michelle, yeah, or 

2 Joan. Joan and Michelle are the collections side of things. 

3 Q Okay. And they would 

4 A And Lana, I'm sorry. All three of them. 

5 Q And they would bring to your attention if somebody 

6 had defaulted or if somebody hadn't paid and you 

7 A r get a weekly update. I have a report right here 

8 that might be helpful for Bob, too; a weekly update that says 

9 every property, everyient, who's paid, who hasn't paid, 

10 including the management contracts, the RV park, and every 

II everything that comes through the office. 

12 Q Now, as --

13 MR. DICKERSON: Can I get a copy of that? 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: Of course you can. 

IS MR. DICKERSON: That would be helpful. 

16 THE WITNESS: Sure. r think it would be. 

17 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

Q Now, as an example, with regard to Baxter, will 

there be -- since they're free and clear, I'm presuming that 

the only expenses are going to be either a property tax 

payment or maybe an extraordinary repair that is not covered 

by the tenant; is that the idea? 

THE COURT: Why don't we make copies and did you --

THE WITNESS: These may be a week apart. 
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THE COURT: Did you see this, Mr. Jimmerson? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: I don't know that I have, but 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, that's similar to what we've 

4 gone over. 

5 THE COURT: He said it's a note, rental payments as 

6 of 8/29/10. If you want to look at it before the Court looks 

7 at it --

8 MR. JIMMERSO+;t: We'll probably make it an exhibit. 

9 (Whispered conversation) 

10 THE COURT: Can we mark it as an exhibit and get 

11 that in, would that be --

12 MR. JIMMERSON: That's fine, Your Honor, absolutely. 

13 I mean --

14 MR. DICKERSON: I would have no objection, just if 

15 he can explain what it is for us. 

16 THE WITNESS: Well, sorry, Jim, if I jumped the gun 

17 on you --

18 MR. JIMMERSON: (Indiscernible) but let's get a good 

19 record. Madame Clerk, what number will you be -- 198? 199? 

20 

21 

22 

24 

THE CLERK: 199. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you. Mark this as exhibit 

199. 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q Would you explain what 199 is proposed? 
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A This shows every -- every note, every house. It 

2 shows what the amount that came in, when it came in -- not 

3 necessarily when, but if it was paid, by color coding. Some 

4 of the properties will get four months free rent, three months 

5 free rent and so we color code them that they prepaid. Or 

6 some will prepay for six months in advance. 

7 Q And you'll do that in order to get rented for 

8 example, offers of free rent to get them rented? 

9 A Yeah. Then I keep track of my management people. I 

(0 have one management firm here that does houses, one that does 

(( the office building, one that does Arizona. And this allows 

12 me to do this, a weekly update with Joan and where we're at, 

13 in and outf late payments, and things like that. 

14 Q And if an eviction is required, you'll know to -- an 

15 eviction. 

16 A The Gaming Commission likes this because they knovJ 

17 I'm tracking every dime. 

18 Q Okay. Very good. Now, just as an example then, 

19 what kinds of expense would corne out of this account? 

20 A Depending on, of course, the property, but for 

21 instance, you know, air conditioning repair people, management 

22 people, all fair market value generally; I mean, third party. 

23 Now, in the case of my -- the majority of my maintenance stuff 

24 in Las vegas, my brother, Cal, does it. Up to a period I 
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think of October we agreed as part of the Cal Blue Water deal 

2 that you take care of.these properties, I wouldn't have to ~ay 

3 him anything, you're going to go o~t there, you're going to 

4 fix them, I'll pay for the supplies. 

5 Q Okay. But you are also giving him 100 percent of 

6 the rent of the $20,000, the reduced rent you gave to the 

7 church, for the last year essentially? 

8 A No. He gets,a -- he got a portion of that. You've 

9 got to remember that he would get one-third of that, so 20, 000 

10 he'd be entitled to one-third of that. So about 14,000 

II Q So 66 -- 56 (indiscernible) --

12 A of our 100 percent he \yas entitled to that. Now, 

13 just to be clear on that, that was for some additional repairs 

14 on the Russell Road property and for the additional 

15 m,aintenance; in addition to that, some of the severance of the 

16 Banone situation, that was the deal. 

17 Q Okay. And so his receipt of your and Lynita's 

18 14,000 so to speak to cover the past obligations you had to 

19 him from Blue Water, from Banone and the rest, ends with the 

20 September 2010 payment? 

21 

22 

., .. 
-" 
24 

A 

Q 

A 

I believe that to be correct. 

And then the 30,000, or 20,00 if you make that deal 

It would be 30, it would be 
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Q 30, would:go 10 and th~n 20 to the community 

2 divided half and half is what you're proposing, or she gets it 

3 all, right? 

4 A That's correct. 

5 Q All right. Fine. So I think we've covered these 

6 four houses. And then the 54, which is Erica's house. And so 

7 it can either be given to either one of you understanding 

8 Erica's living there, br it can be divided in half and then 

9 Erica would be your tenant, just like it is now? 

10 A That's correct. 

II MR. DICKERSON: Object to the form of the question. 

12 If counsel --

I3 THE COURT: Do you want 199 admitted? 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, Your Honor, I did. 

15 THE COURT: Did you, Mr. Dickerson, the 199? 

16 MR. DICKERSON: 199, no objection. 

17 THE COURT: The one he just gave us, 199, that's the 

18 thing that he just gave. 

19 MR. DICKERSON: No objection, Your Honor. 

20 THE COURT: That'd be admitted as 199 and we'll get 

21 that (indiscernible) 

22 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 199 admitted) 

THE WITNESS: Just a note, Your Honor. The majority 

24 of all of these assets are free and clear. That's why it's 
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pretty simple on splitting them or~taking one or whatever. 

2 THE COURT: And that itemization may help out. I 

3 mean, go through it. It looked like you had a lot of things 

4 from Banone LLC, Banone ~rizona, so it might give you some 

5 chance to digest it a little bit. l 

6 THE WITNESS: If I could say something just without 

7 -- just being -- just to explain that a little bit more. 

8 Lynita's and my -- Youi Honor, I'm not sure it's helpful, 

9 everything we make we 'put back into' the property in repairs, 

10 employees, and I have 14 employees I laid off. We've had a 

II change in venue because p~opl~ say well, you have $80,000 in 

12 cash flow, gross cash flow, why don't you have it. The reason 

13 why is because I just laid those people off in March. It was 

14 a downtime period. All this will be performing as of 

IS 'definitely 1/1/2011. And anyway, so that's why I don't have 

16 an income because I've invested it all back in the company and 

17 only take out principle stuff from Mellon account or 

18 something. It was just a different way of doing accounting_ 

19 But it's helpful for Lynita because she can see the future now 

20 that we don't have any employees. 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 Q So you reduced the overhead of operating the bus --

24 

these properties? 

A Well, you have 14 employees, that alone on an 
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average of $4,000 would be 56 to $60,000. 

2 Q Per month in savings? 

3 A That's correct. 

4 Q By laying these people off? 

5 A That's correct. 

6 Q But sort of necessitated by the divorce because your 

7 wife's going to get half -~ 

A Well, there'~ no question: 
. l~,r" . 

Q -- and you're going to get half. 

8 

9 

10 MR. DICKERSON: Objection to the leading nature of 

11 the question. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: I withdraw. Thank you~ 

13 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

14 

15 

16 

Q 

A 

Q 

Can we go back now to item 55? 

I'm sorry. 

No problem, sir. Mesa Vista, five acres; it 

17 indicates five acres of land, it's not a house, it's vacant 

18 land? 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 $100,000? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 higher? 

Vacant land. 

All right. And you estimate the cost value to be 

That's my basis I figured. 

Okay. And again, the fair market value could be 
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A I am not sure if it's higner or lower. 

2 Q All right. And you proposed under court exhibit 

3 (sic) A or B that it be divided half and half, right? 

4 A Yeah, option~s wide open" 

5 Q And of course it can be put up for sale? 

6 A We could sell it, that's right. 

7 Q And my point is the Court could order a tenant in 

8 conunon deed that divides the property in half and that all 
, ~: . 

9 these assets be put up~for sale. 

10 A Yeah, I think -- I don't know -- I don't see why the 

II Court would have to do a deed. Just the stipulation itself 

]2 would cloud the title. That in itself would surfice (sic) 

13 until the sale of the property and save a lot of paperwork. 

14 (Whispered conversation) 

15 Q And then another property is lot is item property 

16 56, lot 68, Mesa Vista, 21,229, your cost? 

17 A Yes, sir. 

18 Q Divide that in half? 

19 A Well, no, that's not our cost. I apologize, number 

20 68, that was a note I foreclosed on and so we rebooked it at 

21 the note value. 

22 

24 

Q Okay. So you sold it, the buyer had given you a 

note, didn't perform, and you foreclosed on the note? 

A Paid about 5,000 for the lot -- or 8,000 for the 
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lot, sold it for 21, so I figured that was new book value. 

2 NoW, that's vacant land; it' 5 slide -- slid nOVI. And so it' 5 

3 probably not worth quite the 21,000. 

4 Q That's --

5 A I mean, it won't go back up, but it is free and 

6 clear. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: I'm sorry, he confused me. He said 
'~!', 

8 ·68, but he's referring to lot 67 that he took over; is that 

9 right? 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: No, no. He's talking about lot 68, 

11 item 56. 

12 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Lot 56, lot -- yeah, 

13 number 56. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: Item 56. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. Okay. 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: He called it lot 68 because that's 

17 the name of the lot. He said he sold it for 21,000, man 

18 didn't pay, they foreclosed --

19 THE WITNESS: Sold it for 26,000, took 5,000 down, 

20 and repossessed the property. 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 Q 

covered? 

24 A 

So you got money for the -- your base you got 

Yes, sir. 
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Q So this is all profit, whatever it sells for? 

2 A I believe so. 

3 Q All right. And so it would be divided half and 

4 half. And you have no objection if these properties are put 

5 on the market for sale, do you? 

A No. 6 

7 Q All right. Also, I mean, to the converse, you have 

8 no objection in talking with your wife that maybe you don't 

9 sell today because it's not the best time to sell? 

10 A I believe there's enough assets that she could take 

11 one, I could take one, and then her advisors could say sell in 

12 down market or I could say I'm just going to keep the majority 

13 of the real estate of the down marked --

14 Q All right. 

15 A -- ay not be the best scenario. 

16 Q And then you do -- but you do have these first four, 

17 50, 51, 52, 53 rented presently? 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 Lindell. 

21 A 

22 Q 

,-. 
_J A 

24 Q 

Yeah. 

All right. Let's go down to item 57, asset 57 I 

You mentioned this is an office building? 

Yes, sir. 

13,000 square feet? 

Yes, sir. 

And you would divide that 50/50 with your wife? 
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A Yes, sir. 

2 Q All right. And that has income you estimate on 

3 January 1 of 2011 of $10,000? 

4 A Yes, sir. 

5 Q 5,000 to each party? 

6 A Yes. That's reflected in that other document, the 

7 tenants that are paying; yes, sir. 

8 Q Reflected in exhibit 19B.(sic) that we just had 

9 admitted into evidence? 

10 A Yes, every tenant. 

II Q All right. Thank you. 

12 (Whispered conversation) 

13 Q Now we want to speak to acreage at Brianhead, Utah. 

14 A Yes, sir. 

15 Q Number 58; first of all, how many acres is it? 

16 A Approximately 150 acres. 

17 Q All right. l'."nd the family owns 40 percent? 

18 A No. On 58, the acreage in Utah, we own 100 percent, 

19 me and Lynita. 

20 Q Okay. 

21 A And its approximate value 3 million. That's 

22 probably our basis. 

Q All right. And where -- in terms of Brianhead, 

24 maybe the judge has been up there, where is it located? 
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A It's actually situated on a 300-acre parcel owned 

2 half by my sister and brother-in-law, 150, and we own hal f. 

.., It's five minutes above Brianhead, you know, right at the T in .J 

4 the road up there. 

5 Q Okay. 

6 A Out in Timbucktoo. 

7 Q All right. (\nd it would be divided? 

8 A I suggest -- ... well, this j. s. an item that, you know, I 

9 had suggested that we have a cooling off period because the 

10 little kids want to keep it. I think it has a lot more value, 

11 Your Honor, in the future because of land exchanges I do with 

12 the BLM and other areas of that because it is right in the 

13 heart of national forests. And they have indicated they want 

14 the property, so I'm trying to be up front and honest. I 

15 would believe that we could maintain this, but if either one 

]6 of them -- either one of us wanted to sell it, we can get rid 

17 of it. I had addressed it in the marital division part of it 

18 that I that I wrote. Just my ex -- my experience at 

19 bankruptcy court on how to disport -- disperse things in Texas 

20 shootout, disperse where one or the other party wanted to sell 

21 it. And so I figure, well, we should try to keep it, preserve 

22 

?"" _.> 

24 

it unless the need of cash is required for an estate, it's 

probably better to split -- however, I have it down here as 

split and so if she elects that she would like to sell it, 
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that's fine. 

2 Q Okay. Wyoming, we've talked about that briefly. 

3 You have 200 remin -- 200 acres re~~ining from all the 

4 property you had in Wyoming? 

5 A Yes, sir. 

6 Q All right. And the Lynita Trust owns 40 percent? 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q And we talked about when it's sold we anticipate it 

9 being sold for 4 or $5°~illion, Lynita's portion being 800 

10 I'm sorry, the community's portion being approximately 800, 000 

11 in the future? 

12 A Well, 40 percent of whatever the value is. Today 

13 the book value is -- we sold it once before for 2 million 

14 about four years ago, then I booked it on the low end. Once 

15 the property is fully improved into 81 80 individual lots, 

16 I think it'd be at least double that value. 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay. So anyway, it would be divided in half? 

Yes, sir. 

Thank you. Mississippi Clay House, we talked about 

20 that being a small horne in Mississippi 

21 A 

22 Q 

A 

24 Q 

Yes. 

-- to be divided half and half? 

Yes. 

All right. And then 61, Mesa Vista, Lot 67 deeded 
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back 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q -- what was that about? 

4 A Same thing as 50 -- 68 --

5 Q You mean number -- item 56? 

6 A Item 56, lot 68. 

7 Q Right. 
, 

8 A The property,~was deeded back in lieu of foreclosure. 

9 We took 5,000 down, people couldn't afford it, and they gave 

10 it back. 

II Q Okay. And so you've taken it back. And that 

12 property would be divided half and half? 

13 A That's what I suggested --

14 Q All right. 

15 A -- or whatever. This -- this one shows me taking 

16 it. I'd prefer not to take the lots, but to level off the 

17 deal, I thought that was a scenario. 

18 Q Court Option A has you dividing it equally. 

19 A Yeah, I'm -- I'm sorry, I thought you were going on 

20 B. 

21 

22 

1" _J 

24 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I wasn't. 

You were or weren't? 

I was not. 

Oh, on count A, I have it split -- okay, here we go, 
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· I'm sorry, everything split. My fault. 

2 Q That's all right, you're fine. And here's my only 

3 question about that as~et is have you foreclosed successfully 

4 ,on that so that the property is now back with you? 

5 A A deed in lieu of foreclosure. That's been 

6 successfully taken back. 

7 Q Thank you very much. All right. Now, let's focus 

8 on item 62 going forward. Okay, 62 through 70. 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q These are all MVs, lots and I believe MV stands for 

II Mojave; is that right? 

12 A These are -- they are single family lots, house, 

13 lots fully improved. 

14 Q In Mesa Vista. 

15 A In Mesa Vista. 

16 Q And is that here in town? 

17 A No, that's in Arizona in Fort Mojave. 

18 Q All right. So now these are one, two, three, four, 

19 five, six, seven, eight, nine lots; is that right? 

20 A That's correct, nine different --

21 Q All right. And you have sold these? 

22 A We sold them. 

Q So these are trust deeds that you're receiving money 

24 payments on a monthly basis as they acquire this property? 
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A That's correct. 

2 Q All right. And this is a,Mesa Vista development in 

3 Arizona? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Okay. So do we have, therefore -- do we have an 

6 accurate statement of what's going on with these? 

7 A These are reflected, Bob, on that one sheet right 

8 here, it's reflected, $very note. Some of these had paid in a 
:.',' 

9 year in advance. Anything that was paid was benefitted to the 

10 community, went into Banone, and so you could -- it would be 

II reflected and Jo did track it. However, I would probably 

12 suggest that she take half the notes, I take half the notes, 

13 or I'm happy to collect them and flow them out when they come 

14 in. 

15 Q Okay. And you've set forth what the notes are 

16 paying, right? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Okay. So they're paying for example, the first 

19 one is in default on lot 16 and 17? 

20 A That's correct. 

21 Q All right. So at some point either you or you and 

22 Lynita will have to take some action to foreclose? 

A To foreclose. Yeah, we have actually put 

24 foreclosure notices on the ones that are in default. 
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Unfortunately, we've got to find the people to serve the 

2 paper. 

3 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Q 

All right. 

So we're taking, you know, a different action now. 

All right. And then the others are performing looks 

6 like to me? 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

Yeah, they'rii:!·all performing. 
,.':. 

$117 for 63",;,,;$130 for asset. 64, $133 for asset 65, 

9 $129 for asset 66? 

10 A Yes. 

II Q $1~4 for asset 67, $133 for asset 68, and asset 69, 

12 lot 50, is in default? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And again, simply dividing the notes receivable 

SO/50? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q All right. And this is income to you and income to 

Lynita? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, you have item number 71-

(Whispered conversation) 

A Yes. Oh, yeah, 70; do you see 707 
'; 

o· 

Q Hang on a second. 

(Whispered conversation) 
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MR. JIMMERSO¥: Madame c+erk, may I have exhibits, 

2 please, proposed 62 th~ough 70? Judge, 62 through 70 has a 

3 cover sheet that sumrna~izes the ass~t and then the promissory 

4 note itself. With Mr .. Dickerson's consent, I'd move for the 

5 ad~ission of Exhibit 62. through 70 inclusive. 

6 

7 

THE COURT: (Indiscernible) chance to review that? 

MR. DICKERSON: So 62 your telling me would just be 

8 promissory notes? 

9 MR. JIMMERS6N: 62 is a summary sheet of the asset 

10 and notes (indiscernible) and but the (indiscernible), Bob, I 

1 J think is 

12 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, if it's all -- you know, I 

13 have all of them marked, too, so I mean -- oh, you've got the 

14 deed of trust in here. 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: I have the deed of trust itself 

16 behind it. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. No objection, Your Honor. 

18 THE COURT: Hereby admitted, Exhibit 62 through 70 

19 inclusive. 

20 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 62 though 70 admitted) 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 
,., .. .) 

24 

Q And, Mr. Nelson, would you properly identify what 

these exhibits are (indiscernible - away from microphone) just 

to confirm what we admitted by stipulation. 
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• 
A On the lots, deeds --

2 Q A summary sheet followed by the promissory note. 

3 A Yes, sir, (indiscernible) --

4 Q And the deed of trust if they're (indiscernible) 

5 : collected. 

6 A That's correct. 

7 Q For all those assets we just referenced? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 Q Thank you. 

10 MR. DICKERSON: We're talking 62 through 69; is that 

II right? 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Through 70. 

13 MS. POLSELLI: Through 70. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Through 70. Thank you. Well, no, 

15 70 was deeded back, wasn't it? 

16 MS. POLSELLI: Oh, yes, you're correct. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: 70's deeded --

18 MS. POLSELLI: That's just the summary. 70 is just 

19 the summary. 

20 THE COURT: 70 was 61 -- was lot 67 that was deeded 

21 back, in lieu of foreclosure? 

22 MS. POLSELLI: So the exhibit is just the summary. 

THE WITNESS: That was just recent. That's why it's 

24 noted like this. This sheet gets updated every month at the 
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end of the month so it kind of changes. 

2 (Whispered conversation) 

... 
J MR. JIMMERSON: 70 is Mr., Nelson's summary of the 

4 notes for ~hat asset that's been ta~en back (indiscernible -

5 away from microphone) by stipulatiopas well, Your Honor. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: Just the point being it's now a hard 

7 asset that you have, you own the land back and it's just up 

8 for sale again? 

9 THE WITNESS:~ It was refetenced on other ones that 

)0 we've given, yeah --

1 1 MR. DICKERSON: Right, it's up --

12 THE WITNESS: -- so you just want to --

13 MR. DICKERSON: -- it's (indiscernible) 61. 

14 THE WITNESS: -- make sure it's clear, yeah. So it 

15 goes up to 61, yeah. 

16 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, I'm with you. No objection. 

17 (Whispered conversation) 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: Could I have proposed 61, Laurie, 

19 please? I believe I'm going to show you the deed that was 

20 foreclosed upon for 70. 

21 

22 summary. 

?"' _J 

MR. DICKERSON: That's not in here. It's just a 

MR. JIMMERSON: (Indiscernible - away from 

24 microphone) summary. 
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MR. DICKERSON: 617 

2 (Whispered conversation) 

.. 
.) MR. JIMMERSON: I believe -- my understanding of 

,.~, " 

4 this document is that it is the supporting documents for item 

5 asset 70. It's on our list, you'll see 70, Mesa Vista lot 

6 67 deeded back, see number 61. And I think 61 is the deed in 

7 lieu of foreclosure for that asset, lot 67. And, Bob, if you 

8 look right here, it sq..,¥s lot 67. 

9 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, I got it. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: Okay. 

II MR. DICKERSON: Fine. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: So, Judge, this is the underlying 

13 document to demonstrate that they have been able to 

14 successfully obtain a deed in lieu of foreclosure for asset 

15 lot number 60 -- lot 70 -- item asset 70, which is Mesa Vista 

16 lot 67. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 Honor. 

22 

?'" -.) 

24 

MR. DICKERSON: Well, actually it's up in 61. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Right. 

MR. DICKERSON: So he has it up in 61 as property. 

MR. JIMMERSON: So move the admission of 61, Your 

MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

THE COURT: It'll be so admitted. It's so admitted. 

(Plaintiff's exhibit 61 admitted) 
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MS. POLSELLI:· And that includes A and B? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: That's Exhibit 61 A and B, which is 

3 the deed, cAll right. 

4 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

5 Q We've covered 70. Now, r want to go over other 

6 promissory notes -- I mean, other promissory notes owed to you 

7 or to Lynita. 

8 

9 

10 

II 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

:'1 

Yes, sir. . " ~i : 

.. i:···~ 

Starting with item 71. 

Yes, sir. 

And we'll go through it down. Okay? So please 

12 discuss what asset number 71, Amanda note, is about, $133,357 

13 and under Court Option,A or B, we divide it equally. 

14 A That's my daughter at Penn State. She -- she is 

15 working as a registered nurse. We do take care of their 

16, college, but they do pay rent and they do pay on time. That's 

17 the first deed of trust on the property. 

18 Q To have a child pay on time is a remarkable thing, 

19 isn't it? 

20 A Yes, it's a most amazing thing because she -- when 

21 she sent me a check, the office celebrated because we never 

22 seen anything in our life that one of my children would send 

23 us money. 

24 Q But actually this has been in place for some time; 

0-09-411537-0 NELSON v. NELSON 813112010 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBAT'M REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

11115 North La Cam Ida, SuRe 275, Oro Valley; Arizona 65737 (520) 861.(l71 1 
309 

AAPP 348



is that right? 

2 A Yes, I think about a year~ 

" Q All right. And she's performing j 

4 A Oh, yes, she's very 

5 Q and she's paying the total rent that's referenced 

6 here of what is it, $630? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q Okay. So--

9 A That's probably more -- these -- these -- actually 

10 the grosses here are a little deceiving. These are actually 

II net checks here. 

12 Q What do you mean by that? 

13 A Net means we don't have a servicing of notes. And 

14 so the 630 is net. We don't have taxes, we don't have 

15 insurance, we're not paying anything. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Got it. 

So that's a -- these would be net --

All right. 

-- as from 62 and 69, they show a net, the notes 

20 from 70 to -- well, all of the notes remaining 70 to 79C, 

21 these would actually be net, Your Honor. It says gross, but 

22 .. they're net. 

Q 

24 A 

Who is paying the property taxes? 

They -- the individual who owns the house, Amanda. 
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Q Okay. So then it's net to you as receiving the 

2 money. 

3 A That's correct. 

4 Q So the word gross should be net --

5 A That should be net. 

6 Q -- for items 71 through 77 -- or 

7 A 79C. 

8 Q -- 78, right~, 

9 A Right. 

10 Q Okay. I'll make that note. All right. And again, 

II divided equally, each of you would own that note, half of the 

12 note, and each would receive half of the rent? 

13 A That's correct. 

14 Q And is -- by my looking at these assets, 71 through 

15 79 -- or 78, they're all performing; is that right? 

16 A 78 -- yes, they're all performing. 

17 Q Are some of them coming due on January 1 of 2011'? 

18 A Some of these are employees or relatives. 

19 Q Well, let's go through them one by one. So we know 

20 Amanda, that's the daughter, we've got that covered. 

21 A That's paying on time. 

22 Q 72, asset 72, note receivable JB Ramos Trust, I 

24 

guess secured by a deed of trust on 436 Europa Way; is that 

right? 
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A That's Joan ~arnos. She WaS a 22-year employee of 

2 mine. I laid her off que to the divorce. And she does wor}; 

3 two days a week. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: Can I have Exhibit 72; Madame Clerk? 

5 THE WITNESS: So but anyway, what I'm getting at is 

6 I believe her payment starts January 1, '11. Now, in that 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: 198, list of 

8 THE WITNESS:' -- 198 refl~ct when the payments kick 

9 in, when they don't, what's that calied, the that one up 

10 there in front of Lynita, Bob, you'll see it color coded. 

II That color code says when these payments kick in. Now, 

12 further, I'd just go -- I'm not sure if I'm jumping ahead of 

13 you -- any of these lots from 71 through 77, I'll personally 

14 guarantee that they will be paid in full. 

15 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

16 Q Why would you do that? 

J7 A Well, I know these individuals and if they don't pay 

18 and Lynita takes them and then she'd have to foreclose on 

19 them, 

20 

21 

22 

?" -" BY MR. 

24 Q 

I'll ·write her a check for them. 
-. 

MR. DICKERSON: 71 through what? 

MR. JIMMERSON: 77. 

THE WITNESS: 71 through 77. 

JIMIvIERSON: 

Now, let's just go through them because these people 
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aren't always these aren't -- you know, these are friends 

2 or relatives, but --

"" .> A Well, employees. 

4 Q -- certainly arm's length transactions, you have 

5 recorded deeds of trust. 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 A 

Oh, yeah, they're -- yeah, they're legit. 

And they're performing? 

That's correFt. 

Or will perform, you anticipate 

Okay. 

1 1 Q if their rent starts January 1 of -- let's just 

12 go by it one by one. 

13 MR. DICKERSON: Let's not lead him (indiscernible) 

14 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: Let's don't lump them. 

16 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

'7"" -.) 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Joan Ramos is a 22-year employee with you? 

That's correct. 

Did you lay her off? 

I did. 

Okay. When did you lay her off? 

Oh, I think in March. 

Okay. Now, I have asked her to help me regarding 

24 some of these properties myself in preparing for this trial, 
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correct? 

2 A Yes, sir. 

3 Q All right. 

4 A Excuse me, I laid her off, but she does come in two 

5 days a week. 

6 Q Okay. And so you pay a modest salary to her? 

7 A Modest daily fee, right. 

8 Q All right. Now, what is. the transaction here 

9 regarding 435 -- 436 stropa Way? 

10 A That was my basis at that -- she had looked at the 

II houses. I paid 78,000 for it. I said, Joan, you've been 

12 here, it's a good deal, fair market value, might be below fair 

13 market value, but it was at my basis, Your Honor, that's the 

14 thing. So I gave them the advantage of what I paid for it and 

15 so she said, you know, we cam~ up with an arrangement where 

16 she starts to pay -- all these notes are basically 8 percent 

17 except for Nicky's at 12 percent. 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

Okay. 

And everybody paid. 

Okay. You're doing great. 

But a first deed of trust. 

But stay with it asset by asset, please? 

I'm sorry. 

Okay. 
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A 8 percent. 

2 Q All right. So it's an 8.percent note and we can 

3 call for Exhibit 72. And would you describe what 

4 (indiscernible - away from microphone) Exhibit 72 is as it 

5 relates to the Joan Ramos note? So this is her home, right? 

6 A This is her home. 

7 Q This is where --
8 A She lives, yes. 

9 Q Okay. What's Exhibit 72? 

10 A It's a straight note and it reflects 78,000. And it 

1 I starts February 1st, 2011. That's the first installment, 

12 meaning that it starts January 1, but the first payment would 

13 be received February 1st. 

14 Q Okay. 2011, four months, five months from now? 

15 A And it's all due and payable December 13th, 2014. 

16 Q All right. And--

17 A With the exception there are monthly payments. 

18 Q Okay. And the monthly payments according to your 

19 schedule is --

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

24 

Five hundred. 

-- $520 per month? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Move the admission of Exhibit 72. 

MR. DICKERSON: I'm sorry? 
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MR. JIMMERSON: Move for the admission of Exhibit 

2 72. 

" MR. DICKERSON: Is that her note? oJ 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: It is. 

5 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

6 THE COURT: Hereby admitted as 

7 (Whispered conversation) 

8 MR. DICKERSON: No objection, Your Honor. 

9 THE COURT: Hereby admitted as 72. 

10 (Plaintiff's exhibit 72 admi tted) 

II MR. JIMMERSON: 73, please. 

12 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

13 Q And why did you delay the conunencement of rent --

14 MR. DICKERSON: Excuse me, that last exhibit number 

15 was what? 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: 72. Matches item 72 here. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: Thank you. 

18 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

19 Q Why did you delay her first payment by agreement 

20 with her where she had acquired this home, she agreed -- she 

21 agreed to pay you rent starting February 1. Why the delay 

22 between now and February I? 

?" _oJ . 

24 

A 

future. 

Well, I was trying to help her prepare for the 

One is either I give her a cash bonus that she may 
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spend, who knows, but I thought it was more appropriate to· 

2 give her a.period of relief in her house payment to get her 

3 feet on the ground and~get started, where it -- you know, 

4 that' s why~· 

5 Q Did Joan Ramos make a down payment, pay you cash for 

6 the purpose of 435 (sic) Europa Way for which you took this 

7 deed of trust? 

8 A You know, tl1:~t I don' t kn.ow, but I can tell you that 

9 it's at our basis or b'~tter. 

10 

11 

Q 

A 

12 better. 

Excuse me? 

It's at the basis what I paid for the property or 

J3 Q All right. Now, let's focus on the asset number 73; 

14 Note receivable from K. Stephens. 

15 A Yes, sir. 

]6 Q Secured by 1601 Knoll Heights. Tell me this 

17 transaction, please. 

18 A That's Lynita's niece, Kathryn (ph), I believe, and 

19 

20 

21 

22 

'" -.) 

24 

she put 20,000 down. We -- I think we paid approximately 

83,000. And she's car -- we carried a note on that to help, 

she just got married, to help her carry -- get in the house 

but she's -- they're paying on that. That was from day one 

they've 

Q 

been paying faithfully. 

And so again dividing that asset --

0.09-411537·0 NELSON v. NELSON 813112010 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING ~ TRANSCRIPTION, LLC 

11115 North La canada. Suite 27$, Oro Valley, AriZona 85737 (520) ee1·0l11 
317 

AAPP 356



A But that was a down payment I know of 20,000. 

2 Q Dividing that asset would be a $420 rent -- net 

3 rent, $210 a person? 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

or what? 

Uh-huh (affirmative). 

All right. And this is Lynita's niece? 

Yes, it is. 

MR. DICKERSON: Does that"mean it's his niece, too, 
.... ~< 

. ' :;~~ .. ~ . ' ... ~ . 

THE WITNESS: Excuse me? 

MR. DICKERSON: I mean, is it your niece 

MR. JIMMERSON: A niece-in-law? 

MR. DICKERSON: -- why is it Lynita's niece? A 

13 step-niece? 

14 THE WITNESS: No, her sister's 

15 MR. DICKERSON; A step-niece? 

16 THE WITNESS: -- her sister's -- I don't know what 

17 it is. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: the point is there would be a 

19 (indiscernible)--

20 THE WITNESS: Somebody. 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: -- that's what he's trying to say. 

22 THE COURT: Any objection to 73, Mr. Dickerson? 

THE WITNESS: It's Thelma's daughter, I'll tell you 

24 that, so -- and I like her, no disrespect to anybody. 
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BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

2 Q And 73 is the note? 

'"' A That's the n.ote. ,) 

4 THE COURT: Any obj ection' to that, Mr. Dickerson, to 

5 73, the note? 

6. MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

7 THE COURT: Hereby admitted as 73. 

8 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 73 adrni t ted) 

9 MR. JIMMERSa)q: Your Honor, 73 also encloses the 

10 deed of trust on the property (indi scernible) and the deed of 

II trust. 

12 MR. DICKERSON: May I see that first, just -- well, 

13 I'll pull it out --

14 MR. JIMMERSON: 73, note and deed of trust. 

15 (Whispered conversation) 

16 BY MR. JIIvlMERSON: 

17 Q 

18 Ramos. 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 of trust? 

22 A 

?'"' -,) Q 

24 A 

Okay. Asset 74 is a note receivable from Chad 

Yes, sir. 

79 -- secured by 7933 Dover Shores and note and deed 

Yes, sir. 

All right. Who is Chad Ramos? 

That's my sister's son. 
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Q Okay. 

2 A An employee of mine. 

J Q And so that would be under my understanding your 

4 nephew? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q And did he make a down payment on his house? 

7 A He did not. This one here, Your Honor, was sold for 

8 below the value and th~ reason why is Chad was -- and created 

9 and worked extensively in the creativity of the auction 

10 company and the website. We spent hundreds of thousand 

II dollars in developing this website. And Chad was the agent 

12 involved in selling the Banone properties in Las Vegas. He 

13 was required to list them and sell them. I had agreed with 

14 Chad to give him a bonus 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Does he have a real estate license? 

Yes, he does. 

Okay. Go ahead. 

He was I had agreed to give him a bonus that I 

19 would keep on my ledger for each house that was sold. I think 

20 it was approximately $1500. Well, we probably fold -- sold 

21 60, 70 homes. We didn't make money on all the houses, so I 

22 had the right to reserve to change the deal. Chad isn't the 

24 

best with dollars and cents, so I said, Chad, you're going to 

-- your house, you can buy it, I'm going to reduce it to this 
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amount here. I think I gave him a $30,000 credit, $40,000 

2 credit from what was owed to him and -- so I didn't have to 

3 pay for it. I sold him the house and carried back a note. 

4 Q All right. And so when you sold him the house at 

5 7933 Dover Shores, which he agreed to pay $60,000 on the note 

6 and deed of trust we're going to talk about in a second, what 

7 did you believe when you sold it to him was the fair market 

8 value of Dover Shores; how much of ~ break were you giving him 

9 by 

10 A Probably worth 

II Q 60,OOO? 

12 A It probably was worth 90 to 100,000. 

13 Q And this is a way for you to compensate him for his 

14 work on the website? 

15 A Yeah, he was a -- he was a paid employee. He got a 

16 guaranteed 3 to I think 4,000 plus a car payment, so it was 

17 about 5,000 a month. He was guaranteed to be in the you 

18 know, work in this office here. He -- he was actually the 

19 broker -- not the broker of record, but agent of record of all 

20 the files in the office for all these transactions. And it 

21 seemed to like to be a fair scenario for him and his new wife. 

22 

?" --' 

24 

sell? 

Q 

A 

All right. And about 70 homes he helped broker and 

Minimum, probably more. 
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Q All right. 

2 A No, more. More. 

3 Q $0 let's look' at 74, plea~e. So looking at Exhibit 

4 74 then 
,', 

5 A Yes. 
..•.... 

6 Q -- right here 

7 A Yeah, I've reviewed it. It's the first deed of 

8 trust. 
: .. ~r. 

9 Q Okay. I just want to make a record for the Court~ 

10 Does 74 contain your summary sheet and the note secured by a 

II deed of trust? 

12 A Yes. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for the admission of Exhibit 

14 74, Your Honor. 

15 THE COURT: Any objection? 

16 MR. DICKERSON: No objection, Your Honor. 

17 THE COURT: All right. Admitted as 74. 

18 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 74 admitted) 

19 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

A 

24 

Again, this note is at 8 percent? 

Yes, sir. 

And becomes due and payable on January 1 of 2011? 

Let's see, I think it's the first payment so that's 
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Q The payment, right? 

2 A starts -- increase to there, and it's due and 

3 payable 

4 Q In full on December 31, 2011 

5 A Yeah, one year. He's got one year to re-fi it. 

6 Q All right. So making interest-only payments for 

7 that one year time period? 

8 A Yeah, that'i ~orrect. 

9 Q First payment J~nuary 1 of 2011? 

10 A That's correct. 

I I Q All right. Let's see Exhibit -- now item number 75. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Do you have 74 in evidence, Madame 

13 Clerk? 

14 THE CLERK: I do. 

15 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

A 

24 Imine. 

I' 

75, asset 75. Is it a note receivable? 

Yes. 

From Alicia Harrison --

Yes. 

-- that's secured by a property at 1025 Academy? 

Yes. 

All right. Tell me about this transaction, please. 

Alicia Harrison cuts my hair. She's a friend of 

Her house went into foreclosure. I bought it at the 
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courthouse -- no, excuse me. I bou~ht it on a short sale and 

2 I brokered her house. I offer back any house I buy with a 

3 tenant in it, whether 1 know the tenant or not, I'll offer 

4 them back the house as~I have on other properties for what I 

5 pay for it for a perio~ of time ju~t as a goodwill gesture. 

6 She did put a down payment on it, I couldn't tell you the 

7 exact amount. This the carryback arrangement and I'll stand 

8 behind it and I'll guarantee it. And she pays faithfully 
, \) .~. 

9 every month. I don' t':§ee the payments ~ Again, they go 

10 directly into all the accounts. 

II Q And she's been paying $458 of rent --

12 A That's correct. 

13 Q for some prior time through the present day. 

14 A Or the note would reflect it if you want to know the 

15 exact date. 

16 Q The 198 -- exhibit 198 would reflect the receipt of 

17 'tha t money? 

18 

19 

A That's correct. 

MR. JIMMERSON: So, Mr. Dickerson, I'm moving to 

20 admit Exhibit Number 75. 

21 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

22 THE COURT: Hereby admitted as Exhibit 75. 

23 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 75 admitted) 

24 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
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Q And the $68,000 that were borrowed here that's due 

2 is all due and payable on March 1 of 2012: is that right, sir? 

.., 
A That's correct. .) 

4 Q That's terms. 

5 A Eight -- should be at 8 percent. 

6 Q Okay. It is. Thank you. All right. Let's look at 

7 asset nUmber 76. 

8 A Just for Cou~t history, the 8 percent is not a 

9 favorable rate, but I encourage the people to pay it off early 

10 if they can. 

II Q And they can borrow cheaper if they can get their 

12 credit? 

13 A Exactly, (indiscernible) times. 

14 Q It's sort of motivation to refinance? 

A It does. 15 

16 Q In any event, it's secured by these different houses 

17 that they live in? 

18 A That's right. 

19 Q Do I understand that these are homes that the people 

20 are living in? 

21 A I believe so except for Chad. I think he moved in 

22 with his mother-in-law or something like that. So he's 

24 

renting that out right now. 

Q Okay. But Kathryn Stephens lives in her home on 
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Knoll Heights? 

2 A Yes. That I'm aware of,everybody does, yes. 

.. 

.) Q So now Exhibit 76 is a note receivable from Keith 

4 Little, 7817 Leavorit~, L-e-a-v-o-r-i-t-e; is that right? 

5 A Yes. .~ 

6 Q Okay. And tell me about this transaction, this note 

7 receivable of --

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

A 

Keith --

-- $95,000. 

Keith worked for the office for several years 

II creating the Eric Nelson Auctioneering auction company, re --

12 reinvented the company. He was over actually the FDIC, 

13 acquiring the information to buy notes. We were successful in 

14 buying several notes, one in -- or two notes and one we sold 

15.in 2009: That's the Sugar Daddy, was 2010, made several 

16 million dollars. Keith is a very talented individual, very 

17 hard working. So his severance was you're out, I think I gave 

18 him $5,000 and a house for a period of time that he was living 

19 in at my basis, and that he had to pay me off in I think some 

20 period of time. 

21 

22 

., .. 
-.) 

Q I'll be happy to show it to you. 

MR. JIMMERSON: We have -- Judge, if you'll look on 

77, $95,000 split $47,500 each and rent is 697, which is the B 

24 percent. But I want to confirm the rent does not begin until 
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March 1. 

2 THE COURT: I think we're doing -- we're doing 

3 number 76 now, aren't ~e, not 77? 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: 77. 

5 MS. POLSELLI~ 76. 

6 THE COURT: Yeah, we're at 76, which is 127901; is 

7 that correct? 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm looking at the wrong document. 

9 THE COURT: I think we/re talking about Keith Little 

10 at the 7817 Leavorite? 

II MR. JIMMERSON: That's right. And payment's been 

12 made since March I, 2010 of this year going forward in the 

13 amount of $852.67. 

14 THE WITNESS: I believe with Keith it is modified, 

15 that he doesn't make a payment -- does that say he's making 

16 payment? 

17 

18 

19 

MR. JIMMERSON: No, it says since March 1 of 2010. 

MR. DICKERSON: No, but zero percent interest. 

THE WITNESS: At zero. Yeah, he makes no payments 

20 until January, that's when it kicks in, January 1. 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: Of 2011? 

22 THE WITNESS: Yeah. He -- he bought it on this date 

23 here. Some of these notes were prepared by different title 

24 companies and so they do them a little different. 
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BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

2 Q Okay. But under the terms of this note, he begins 

3 his rent payment of 852.67 on January 1 of 2011. 

4 A It's not rent, it's a mortgage payment. 

5 Q Mortgage payment, you're right. And then that 

6 mortgage payment would be divided between you and Lynita? 

7 A Right. 

8 Q Okay. And tD,e entire pri~ciple amount of this sum 

9 of $127,000 would be due just in a short time, one year, 

10 December 31 of 2011? 

I I A The majority of them are one year unless they 

12 pleaded for longer terms. 

13 Q Okay. But the point is they have to refinance? 

14 A Right. I'm saying some asked for a little extra 

15 time, you know, some of those notes. That's why they don't 

16 all line up. Generally you give them one year, it gives them 

17 time to refi it 

18 Q Well, I think for the Court's perspective, he wants 

19 to know that in 12 months 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 

23 A 

24 Q 

That's correct. 

-- you're going to get $60,000 each. I mean, that's 

That's correct. 

Okay. 
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A Jim's getting mad at me, Your Honor. 

2 Q No, I'm not. I'm trying to get through it. You're 

3 doing great. 77, Eric T. Nelson, this is Eric Taylor Nelson? 
" 

4 A That's my brother Paul's son. 

S Q They had the nerve to name him after you? 

6 A Probably a mistake. 

7 Q Did they get your consent? 

8 A No. e ~ ,;. 

It·!~ ... 

9 Q And what is this transaction, please, 77? 

10 A I'm sorry, it's the house he bought and I said I 

II would back him because he had moved out from Salt Lake and one 

12 of the promises I -- that I made to him was he got there, if 

13 he could find a house, buy it, and I would finance it, and 

14 over a period of time free rent and then he would have to kick 

15 in and make the payments and pay us off. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

23 $95,000? 

24 A 

Okay. And 50 he bought home at 8619 West Mojave? 

Yes. 

In Arizona? 

Yes, sir. 

And he lives in Arizona having moved from Utah? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. And that created a note receivable to you of 

Yes, sir. 
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Q 47,500 each if divided by the Court to you and 

2 Lynita? 

3 A Yes, sir. 

4 Q All right. And can I just look at 77 to confirm the 

5 term. This is the one I was mistaken for this is the one 

6 where the payments begin March 1 of 20117 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q Okay. And they are based~upon the -- is it 8 

9 percent? 

10 A It comes all -- right, 8 percent, all payable due 

II and payable March 1st 

12 Q And they're all due and payable one year later, 

13 March 1 of 2012? 

14 A That's correct. 

15 Q Of $95,000? 

16 A Right. 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: Move the admission of 77, Your 

18 Honor. 

19 MR. DICKERSON: No objection. 

20 THE COURT: Hereby admitted at Exhibit 77. 

21 (Plaintiff's exhibit 77 admitted) 

22 

24 

MR. JIMMERSON: And 77, like all of these, have the 

note and deed of trust attached to them. 

BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
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• • 
1 MR. JIMMERSON: 8(k) is a balance sheet. 

2 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The May 31st balance sheet is 

3 the fifth page of 8 (k) . 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: That's right. 

5 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And the income statement is 

6 the sixth page of 8 (k) . 

7 MR. DICKERSON: It's 2747. 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: 2747 Bates stamp is here. So the 

9 board we've shown you has already been admitted into evidence 

10 as 8(k), Your Honor. Bates stamp number 2787 -- or the 

11 THE COURT: You okay, there, Mr. Dickerson? 

12 MR. DICKERSON: Yes. 

13 THE COURT: Because I didn't realize there was 

14 (indiscernible). 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, it's -- it's 2747. 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: So you have all of it there. Then 

17 I'd like to introduce please, Exhibit 8(n), option to purchase 

18 LLC profit interest between Dynasty Development and the 

19 optionees that are detailed in the exhibit. 

20 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 Interest? 

Are you familiar with this document? 

Yes. 

Okay. Is this the what I call Grotta Auction 
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1 A Well, yes. The -- including all the Grotta 

2 individuals. You have one for Cliff McCarley (ph) and you'd 

3 have one for Mike Cure. 

4 MR. DICKERSON: Which Exhibit are you looking at 

5 now? 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: 8(n), proposed. 

7 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

8 Q And so it's for Lynita's trust, five of your 

9 brothers and sisters 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q -- and -- and two other people? 

12 A Yes. Orlando, Mike Cure and then another partner of 

13 mine, Cliff McCarley. 

14 Q And is this a true and correct copy of this document 

15 dated November 22, 2004? 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 A 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

I believe it is, yes. 

Six 

Yes. 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

MR. 

years ago? 

JIMMERSON: Move into admission, Your Honor. 

COURT: Let me see what they --

DICKERSON: Jim, (n) ? 

COURT: 8 (n) as in Nancy? 

DICKERSON: N as in Nancy is the option --

JIMMERSON: To purchase LLC profit interest. 
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1 JOHANA: For Dynasty and Grotta is Exhibit 12. 

2 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, this isn't for Grotta. 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: This is for Dynasty, is it, not for 

4 Grotta, I misstated. 

5 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

6 Q This is the option for Grotta. 

7 A For --

8 Q Or excuse me, for Dynasty. 

9 A For Dynasty, right. 

10 Q All right. 

11 A This is the instrument that the Mississippi Gaming 

12 Commission approved. It allowed me to have -- individuals to 

13 have an interest in the casino if I had full control, and they 

14 were fully aware of their --

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 8 (q) , 

Q Without their having to be licensed fully? 

A Yes. Yes. 

Q All right. 

A None of them exceeded five percent rule, though. 

THE COURT: Any objection to 8(n), Mr. Dickerson? 

MR. DICKERSON: No. No objection. 

THE COURT: Hereby admitted as 8(n) as in Nancy. 

(Counsel conferring) 

MR. JIMMERSON: I'd move for admission of Exhibit 

Your Honor, the second amended and restated operating 
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• • 
1 agreement of Silver Slipper Casino Adventure, LLC dated April 

2 1 of 2005. 

3 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

4 Q Is that a true and correct copy of this document? 

5 A I believe it is. 

6 Q You and I secured it last night, right? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Okay. Thank you. 

9 (Counsel conferring) 

10 MR. DICKERSON: Is (q) in this booklet? 

11 THE WITNESS: It is. 

12 (Counsel conferring) 

l3 MR. DICKERSON: No -- no objection. 

14 THE COURT: 8(q) is hereby admitted without 

15 objection. 

16 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

17 Q Can you tell me about this concept of veto that you 

18 talked about earlier, please? Flesh that out a little bit? 

19 A It's very contentious area where I can hold at bay 

20 the other 57 percent on major transactions. 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

How --

Meaning that -- excuse me? 

How do you do that? 

I veto what they -- didn't want to accept a -- a 
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• • 
1 proposal. Now in -- in doing so, it's -- it's -- it -- you 

2 got to be careful, because they could push possibly a rule 

3 that you have to match the offer. However, in that process 

4 there I can veto and slow them down in drowning me out in 

5 proposals that dilute me or sell the facility. In essence, 

6 we're not getting any of the -- of the funds or tying funds up 

7 that we'll never see. 

8 Q Okay. 

9 A And only litigate areas. 

10 Q And as opposed to either one of you being awarded 

11 all of the Silver Slipper interest in Dynasty -- Dynasty's 

12 interest in Silver Slipper --

13 A Yes. 

14 Q -- if that were divided in half, how would that 

15 affect your ability to veto the 57 percent majority owners? 

16 A I'm not even sure. It could idle it. It could -- I 

17 -- I I have no idea. It's such a -- that's a that's a 

18 very good question, but I know one thing; if both parties 

19 weren't working together on it very closely, it could be 

20 devastating. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q You mean you and your wife? 

A Yes. 

Q All right. And 

(Counsel conferring) 
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1 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

2 Q What is we're going to look at the next item and 

3 we'll finish that up here and -- no, we're already done. I 

4 think we should end now. 

5 THE WITNESS: I agree. Grotta's worth nothing. I 

6 mean, in essence, it's a one-sixth interest as you go to 

7 Mississippi. 

8 MR. DICKERSON: I missed that answer to the 

9 question. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: I just said we're going to -- I --

11 I'm going to delay Grotta to tomorrow morning. 

12 MR. DICKERSON: Oh, okay. 

13 THE WITNESS: Is there anything I can do, Your 

14 Honor, to answer anything or you Bob, that I can bring to 

15 assist you guys in your research? Or I don't know. I don't 

16 know. I've never been here on this side of the --

17 THE COURT: It's just a matter of getting all the 

18 documents admitted and examined by you and then Mr. Dickerson 

19 will get to cross-examine. That's kind of where all the 

20 issues start coming out when you get to cross-examination what 

21 they're really challenging, not challenging, and then once I 

22 get ideas, what comes out, then I can determine on the 

23 examination, cross-examination and the exhibits if there's 

24 dispute what I think as a fact finder. 
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1 THE WITNESS: Good. I think the witnesses can 

2 answer things and --

3 THE COURT: That's what --

4 THE WITNESS: -- contest Lynita's hearings and mine. 

5 THE COURT: As far as -- you can leave all your 

6 stuff here. We'll lock everything up. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: Great. 

8 THE COURT: We'll convene tomorrow at nine o'clock. 

9 If the attorneys want to come early, if you think further 

10 discussion, I'll be glad to meet with you early. I'll be up 

11 in my chambers, so if you want to meet earlier, 8:30, let me 

12 know. Do you think it'd serve any purpose? I don't know if 

13 you've talked to your clients. I'm not -- I think we're going 

14 to need the examination and cross-examination, I'm sure --

15 MR. DICKERSON: Yes, we do. 

16 THE COURT: before we really get any movement 

17 either way, so, but if you want to, just let me know if --

18 MR. DICKERSON: Thank you, Judge. 

19 THE COURT: Yeah. 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: We appreciate it. 

21 THE COURT: Just both show up or call me and show up 

22 at 8:30. You can let me know you're there and I'll be glad to 

23 meet with both of you. If not, we'll be in recess until nine 

24 o'clock tomorrow morning. If you both decide it'd be 
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• • 
1 beneficial, just both show up and give me a call or you can 

2 just come up to the chambers and we'll sit down and go through 

3 some things for you. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: Your Honor, we -- on behalf of Mr. 

5 Nelson, we will be here at 8:30, Judge. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. 

7 THE WITNESS: Thank you very much (indiscernible) 

8 and Bob, move it along. 

9 (Counsel and parties conferring) 

10 THE COURT: If you want to leave your wallets, we'll 

11 lock those up too. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, you wouldn't need to lock mine 

13 up. 

14 * * * * * 

15 ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and 

16 correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the 

17 above-entitled case to the best of ability. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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• 
I N D E X 0 F E X H I BIT S (CONT) 

Admitted 

BY THE PLAINTIFF: 

197B - Lynita lifestyle documents 

197C - Lynita lifestyle documents 

1970 - Lynita lifestyle documents 

197E - Lynita lifestyle documents 

198 - Ownership summary 

199 - Note/rental paym~nts 

BY THE ~OURT: 

A and B - Options 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

.A - Asset/debt summary 

E1 - Summary statement 

FI - Summary statement 

G2 - Chicago Title closing statements 

G3 - Grant, bargain, sale deed 

G4 - Promissory note 

G5 - Option agreement 

G7 - Addendum to lease agreement 

G9 - National Bank statement 

H Delinquent tax notice 

1-1 - Summary statements 

1-2 - Summary statements 
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e • 
I N D E X 0 F E X H I BIT S (CONT) 

2 Admitted 

3 BY THE DEFENDANT: 

4 I and K - Gateway documents 666 

5 N - Documents 672 

6 N-l - Documents regarding Mississippi parcels 682 

7 N-2 - Mississippi land cost basis 683 

8 0 - Quit claim deed to Clay/Arnold property 693 

9 P-l - Summary statement 

10 P-2 - Zillow.com 

11 P-3 - Grant, bargain, sale deed 

12 Q-1 - Banone Secretary of State information 699 

13 Q-2 - Summary sheet - Banone 

14 Q-4 - Assets 754 

15 R-l - R&D Customer Builders, Inc. Promissory Note 736 

16 R-2 - Advantage Construction, Inc~ Note 

17 R-3 - Gerald and Linda Fixin Note 

18 R-4 - Gerald and Linda Fixin Note 

19 R-5 - Joe Williams and Sherry Fixin. Note 

20 R-6 - Bitco, Inc. Note 

21 R-7 - Carrie and Troy Fixin Note 

22 R-8 - Michael and Lydia Note 

24 

R-9 - Amanda and Chris Stromberg Note 

R-IO - Ramos Trust Note 
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I N D E X 0 F E X H I BIT S (CONT) 

2 Admitted 

3 BY THE DEFENDANT: 

4 R-11 - Nephew Chad promissory Note 

5 R-12 - Alicia Harrison Note 

6 R-13 - Keith Little Note 

7 R-14 - Eric T. Nelson Note 

8 S-l - Nevada Secretary of State Printout 

9 Regarding Banone Arizona 

10 S-2 - Summary sheet 

11 T-1 - Dynasty Development LLC Amended 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

Operating Agreement 

T-2 - List of Silver Slipper shareholders 

T-3 - Silver Slipper financial documents 

U-1 - Plaintiff's Summary Sheet Regarding Grotta 

U-2 - Nevada Secretary of State/Grotta 

U-3 - Grotta Financial Partnership Balan~e Sheet 

U-4 - Grotta - Partnership 2008 Tax Return 

U-5 - Grotta Group LLC 2008 Tax Return 

V-1 - Emerald Bay Mississippi LLC Documents 

V-2 - Schematic prepared by Eric L. Nelson 

V-3 - Emerald Bay Balance Sheet 

Y-l - Nicki Note 
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I N D E X 0 F E X H I BIT S (CONT) 

2 Admitted 

3 BY THE DEFENDANT: 

4 Y-2 - Security Interest on Nicki Note 

5 Y-3 - Account register 

6 Z-l - Documents - River Walk Entertainment 

7 LLC and Hideaway Casino 

8 Z-2 - Schematic - operation of River Walk 

9 Entertainment LLC and Hideaway Casino 

10 Z-3 - Hideaway Casino Balance Sheet 
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12 

13 

14 
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• 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA TUESDAY, AUGUST 31, 2010 

2 PRO C E E 0 I N G S 

3 (THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 9:19:48) 

4 

5 THE COURT: This is the time set in the matter of 

6 the continuation of the trial as Eric and Lynita Nelson, Case 

7 Number 0-411537. We'll get everybody's appearances for the 

8 record. We'll start with Mr. Jimmerson. 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: May it please the Court, Your Honor, 

10 Jim Jimmerson on behalf of the Plaintiff, Eric Nelson. Also 

II present is -- go ahead. 

12 

13 morning. 

14 

15 

16 

MR. STEPHENS: David Stephens, Your Honor. Good 

MR. JIMMERSON: And Mr. Nelson's present. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

MR. DICKERSON: And Bob Dickerson and Catherine 

17 Provost on behalf of Mrs. Nelson. I -- Your Honor, I 

18 apologize for being late this morning. We were trying to run 

19 off some records that Mr. Jimmerson wanted and my client got 

20 tied up taking the kids to school and it just didn't work out 

21 as -- timewise it didn't work out as fast as we thought we'd 

22 get it done. 

23 THE COURT: No problem, we'll get it. Everybody sit 

24 down and get comfortable. Have Mr. Nelson sworn in and pick 
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• 
up where we left off 

2 THE CLERK: Please stand and raise your right hand. 

3 You do solemnly swear the testimony you're about to give in 

4 this matter will be the truth, the. whole truth, and nothing 

5 but the truth, so help you God? 

6 THE WITNESS: I do. 

7 (Whispered conversation) 

8 THE COURT: Proceed at your leisure, Mr. Jimmerson. 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: If it please the Court, Your Honor, 

10 I'd like to move for the admission of Exhibits 8R, 8S, 33C, 

II 41B, 91 and 9 I can't read it (indiscernible - away from 

12 microphone). 

13 (Whispered conversation) 

14 THE COURT: Did you get a chance to review those 

15 documents, Mr. Dickerson? 

16 MR. DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor. 

17 THE COURT: Any objections to any of them? 

18 MR. DICKERSON: If you'll look at them a second 

19 THE COURT: I'm going to start with 8R. 

20 MR. DICKERSON: Judge, if you feel that those 

21 provide you with any assistance, all they are is -- I mean, 

22 they're his self-serving handwritten statements, his thoughts. 

They're not really any documents that are relevant or 

24 pertinent to the issues. So to the extent you feel that that 
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• 
helps you better understand what his testimony is, I have no 

2 objection. 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: I do think they'd be helpful to the 

4 Court. 

5 THE COURT: I think I'll admit them at this time. I 

6 don't know how much probative value they would have. The 

7 testimony is of course of more value on that, but anything I 

8 have, why I look at all the paper, I pull things together, 

9 take anything I can look at can help to pull everything 

10 together. But--

I I MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you, Judge. Move to admit 

12 Exhibit 198, Judge, as a new exhibit. 

!3 THE COURT: These are exhibits will be admitted 

14 without objection. 

15 (Plaintiff's exhibits 8R, 8S, 33C, and 91 admitted) 

16 

17 

THE COURT: What was the other one, 198? 

MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, Your Honor. This is a it's 

18 an ownership summary. It seems to me it'd be helpful to you 

19 to have all the assets written out and so you would know who 

20 owns what. 

21 

22 like and 

24 parties. 

THE COURT: These are Mississippi deeds it looks 

MR. JIMMERSON: That's all the assets of all the 
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e. • 
MR. DICKERSON: 198? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, Your Honor -- or yes, Mr. 

3 Dickerson. 

4 THE COURT: That's pretty good --

5 MR. JIMMERSON: (Indiscernible) he can walk in here 

623 minutes late and waltz in, I guess (indiscernible-away 

7 from microphone) . 

8 THE COURT: You just got'elevated to the bench. 
I 

9 It's the good news. The bad news is you lost about one-tenth 

10 of the salary you're normally making, so. 

II MR. DICKERSON: I have no objection. The sole 

12 purpose being what, is representations, is that 

13 THE COURT: A list of the property. This Court 

14 won't admit it as far as the truth contained therein. I think 

15 it's just a matter of trying to show all the property that 

16 people -- that the community owns. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: This is really a summary of what all 

18 his deeds show, correct? I have no -- to that extent, no 

19 objection. 

20 THE COURT: All right. Admitted as Exhibit 198. 

21 (Plaintiff's exhibit 198 admitted) 

22 (Whispered conversation) 

24 please. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Let me show 198 to Mr. Nelson, 
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• 
ERIC L. NELSON 

2 called as a witness on behalf of th~ plaintiff, testified as 

3 follows on: 

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION'CONTINUED 

5 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

6 Q Mr. Nelson, good morning. 

7 A Good morning. 

8 Q I'd like to show you what~s been now admitted by 

9 stipulation Exhibit 198, but I just want you to tell for the 

10 court record what that document is. 

II A These look like the different trusts. There's 

12 actually three trusts; the Nelson Trust, which holds the 

13 Palmyra House, which Lynita holds; the LSN Trust, which is 

14 Lynita's trust dated 2001 that she controls; the Eric Nelson 

15 Nevada Trust which I control. These would be where those 

16 properties rest. 

17 Q And any transactions that involve Lynita's trust 

18 that we discussed or we'll discuss today, but yesterday and 

19 today, she would have had to have executed documents -- she 

20 would have personally signed documents to cause those changes 

21 to occur, transfers to occur; is that right? 

22 MR. DICKERSON: What's the question? 

., .. 
--' MR. JIMMERSON: When a transfer was made of property 

24 in the Lynita Trust, would Lynita be obliged to sign the deed? 
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• 
MR. DICKERSON: To which I object. Obviously not, 

2 not when something's transferred in. For it to be transferred 

3 out, yes. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: Okay. That's all I was asking, 

5 (indiscernible - away from microphone) --

6 THE WITNESS: Transferred out. 

7 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

Q Transferred out? 8 

9 A Yes. The answer is yes. An example would be like 

10 the Lindell property. Half of it's in Lynita's trust, half is 

II in mine, so I would not be able to sell or encumber that asset 

12 there. An example would be Lynita could move her money, the 

13 two million, which was proper, she could move it any time she 

14 wants. I could do anything in my trust as an ordinary course 

15 of business that -- if it reflected a non-ownership in her 

16 interest at that time. 

17 Q Yes, sir. NOw, we had talked about the Maness, and 

18 it's spelled M-a-n-e-s-s lawsuit that was brought against both 

19 yourself and your trust and Lynita's trust; is that right? 

20 A Yes, sir. 

21 Q Your Honor, I'd like to call -- move for the 

22 admission of Exhibit 43 and ask you just a few foundational 

23 questions. What is Exhibit 437 

24 A That's the history, also it's the complaint from the 
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- • 
-- I believe from the other attorney. It basically outline 

2 the history of the lawsuit and information on it . 

., 
J Q It has a notice of taking deposition and other court 

4 documents; is that right? 

5 A That is correct. I--

6 Q Do you understand these to be true and correct 

7 copies of the Mississippi litigation in which you and your 

8 wife are named defendants and your trusts are named 

9 defendants? 

10 A Yes. 

1 I MR. JIMMERSON: Move for admission of Exhibit 43. 

12 THE COURT: I'll give Mr. Dickerson a chance to 

13 locate it. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: Sure. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: So everything under 43? 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, A through F. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: Well, Judge, if I may go through 

18 each one individually, and I don't have a problem with you 

19 looking at it. The first of all, the very first page, all 

20 right, I object to. He states in here, you know, Lynita has 

21 not assisted at all by not signing -- all he's doing is --

22 MR. JIMMERSON: I have no problem -- I have no 

23 problem deleting that, Mr. Dickerson, it's not an issue. 

24 MR. DICKERSON: Second page, the next one is a 
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letter from his attorney. Again, written for whatever purpose 

2 -- it's writ -- I don't think it's appropriate for this. I 

3 think the complaint is -- the pleadings are appropriate. So I 

4 have no objection to the complaint which is -- that's the 

5 second amended complaint which is A. I--

6 MR. JIMMERSON: The correspondence on 43A, Mr. 

7 Dickerson, is from Mr. Woodall to Mr. Duke. And it's the two 

8 parties. I mean, I don't know why that would not be 

9 admissible. 

10 

11 

THE WITNESS: Duke is my attorney. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Right, and Woodall is 

12 (indiscernible). 

13 MR. DICKERSON: Because it's hearsay. I have no way 

14 of cross examining either Mr. Duke or Mr. Woodall with respect 

15 to anything in that. 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Fair enough, counsel. It's not 

17 important. That's fine, no problem. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. The 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: Do you have any objection to the 

20 second amended complaint? 

21 MR. DICKERSON: No, none at all. 

22 MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you. 

23 THE COURT: 43A will be admitted. How about --

24 let's see, 43B is --
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MR. DICKERSQN: Judge, B is a letter from --

2 THE COURT: letter froIn the --
" MR. DICKERSON: -- his attorney. oJ 

4 THE COURT: couns -- his attorney to Mr. Nelson. 

S MR. DICKERSON: Again, I have --
6 MR. JIMMERSON: That's no problem. He has no way to 

7 cross examine him. We'll call Mr. Duke to the witness stand. 

8 Option agreement for the purchase of real estate, that is the 

9 option agreement to -- that exists between the Manesses 

10 regarding this property that is subject to this litigation. 

II MR. DICKERSON: And what though -- but this has 

12 nothing to do with our clients, right? 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, I think it has to do with Mr. 

14 

15 MR. DICKERSON: This is what -- Mr. Maness is 

16 claiming his rights? 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: That's right. That's correct. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: Again, I don't see --

19 THE COURT: This is his option agreement for the 

20 purchase of real estate, that's to -- what you're talking 

21 about? 

22 MR. JIMMERSON: That's right . 

., ... 
_oJ MR. DICKERSON: Again, this would be this would 

24 be hearsay. I would have no way of being able to cross 
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examine on anything on this. And quite frankly, I have not 

2 seen this. As you see, there are no numbers at the bottom 

3 showing that these have been Bates stamped --

4 MR. JIMMERSON: These were exhibits during the 

5 deposition in this case, 50 if your --

6 MR. DICKERSON: Which one? 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: -- client" is following this matter 

8 at all, she will have s,een these documents because they were 

9 utilized in a deposition. 

10 MR. DICKERSON: Which deposition? 

11 MR. JIMMERSON: Either Mr. Maness or --

12 MR. DICKERSON: Well, Mr. Maness' deposition hasn't 

13 been taken in this case, counsel. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: No, not in this case, but in 

15 (indiscernible) --
16 MR. DICKERSON: I haven't seen them. I have not 

17 seen them before today. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: Well 

19 MR. DICKERSON: So I have -- I do object to those 

20 documents that -- so we're dealing with everything under B, I 

21 object to. Under C, I object to --

22 MR. JIMMERSON: Correspondence from Mr. Duke to Mr. 

24 

Nelson enclosing the deposition of James and Phyllis Maness 

that you say was never taken. 
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MR. DICKERSON: No, it wa:;;n't --

2 MR . JIMMERSON: It taken .. ( indiscernible) 

... MR. DICKERSON: taken .in this case . .J 

4 MR. JIMMERSQN: No, I und~rstand. 

5 MR. DICKERSON: I don't have a clue what's going on 

6 in Mississippi. 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: Well, you have an obligation to have 

8 a clue because your client has a lawyer in Mi$sissippi a~d 

9 MR. DICKERSON: No, I don't. She has lawyers --

10 MR. JIMMERSON: -- I'm trying to demonstrate to this 

11 Court--

12 MR. DICKERSON: that are handling that. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: what's going on and you are 

14 asking for half of Mississippi and I -- we're suggesting we --

15 at least we have a record here of what that would entail when 

16 she would take half the responsibility of this asset and this 

17 liability. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: I've never seen any of these 

19 documents before. None of them have any relevance to this 

20 proceeding. They're the proceedings in Mississippi, Your 

21 Honor. So I have no objection to the second amended 

22 complaint. I think that gives you a good explanation as to 

23 what the lawsuit's about. 

24 MR. JIMMERSON: Would you at least, Your Honor, 
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consider it also adding the deposition of the two people, 

2 Exhibit 12D? 

MR. DICKERSON: A deposition transcript is not ., 
.') 

4 admissible. I have no way of cross examining these people. 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: Nor will I. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: I wasn't present at the deposition. 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: Nor do I. 

8 MR. DICKERSON: Well, then you can't offer it. 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: I'm offering it because I want the 

10 Court to understand the extent and what's relevant here is 

II that there is litigation pending against these two people. 

12 There's a liability involved and your client wants to buy into 

13 half of this nonsense that you know nothing about. 

14 MR. DICKERSON; Well, fine. Thank you, counsel. 

15 THE COURT: I think that's -- I think that's 

16 (indiscernible) research. As far as that, I'm not interested 

17 in the deposition. The complaint gives me a feel for what's 

18 going on. The parties are going to have to figure out what 

19 the value is of that, what's the liability because that's the 

20 whole issue on that and that's what I think the cross 

21 examination will be. I think this case can move forward 

22 hopefully after we get the examination and cross examination 

to be honest on that. To kind of cut right to the chase on 

24 that, they think there might be -- that you're undervaluing 
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issues or you're hiding things. So I think until we get the 

2 examination and cross done, we won't move very much. I want 

3 to give them their chance to address that and we might need to 

4 get Lynita on the stand to examine and cross examine and to 

5 see kind of what the real issues are, but we're not going to 

6 move forward until we've had a good chance to examine you and 

7 cross examine because you obviously have the business 

8 transaction business. And until they're comfortable that 

9 nothing's being hidden or values aren't being secreted, we 

10 won't get anywhere on this. 

11 I will admit 43A, which is the second amended 

12 complaint. There's obviously a lawsuit out there. I think 

13 you testified as to the value of it where depending on what 

14 happens you're going to have attorney's fees. And if they can 

15 split the corporate veil, you could have some liability --

16 MR. DICKERSON: Well, Judge --

17 THE COURT: all the way up --

18 MR. DICKERSON: Sorry. 

19 THE COURT: to however it comes out there. So we 

20 will let 43A in. 

21 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 43A admitted) 

22 

23 

24 

MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: And the other --

MR. DICKERSON: And if I may, if we take a look at 
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----- ---------------------~------. 

43A, the complaint, and again, I will stipulate all we're 

2 dealing with is a cause of action for adverse possession, for 

3 quiet and confirmed title, and for slander of title. 

4 THE COURT: Yeah, I think he testified as to the --

5 testimony being about title, slander of title, so I think he's 

6 testified to -- we'll admit -- 43A will be admitted. And we 

7 won't admit the other at this time and we can always get more 

8 testimony if we need to do it. 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: Your Honor, I'd like to also correct 

10 a misrepresentation, misstatement by Mr. Dickerson that he's 

II never seen these documents before. They were produced to him, 

12 Bates stamp EN2445 through 2411, and I have copies of the same 

13 if Mr. Dickerson wants to look at them again. 

14 THE COURT: I'll give him a chance to 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: They were served on Mr. Dickerson 

16 well before this trial. 

17 THE COURT: Give him a chance to look at those and 

18 again we can always --

19 MR. JIMMERSON: The fact he hasn't seen it --

20 MR. DICKERSON: When were these served on me? 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: -- just means he hasn't seen 

22 (indiscernible). 

MS. POLSELLI: The copies in the exhibit book were 

24 replaced because --
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MR. DICKERSON: When were they served on me? 

2 

MR. JIMMERSON: When were these produced? 

4 MS. POLSELLI: I don't have the date. I can find 

5 out though. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: Okay. Thank you. 

7 THE COURT: .If we need that, we can always admit 

8 them later if we need·to to give you a chance on that. We've 

9 got to --

10 MR. DICKERSON: They're the same documents that we 

11 just went through, so again it'd be the same objection. 

12 MS. POLSELLI: I can look it up on a break and tell 

13 you the exact date. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: I just wanted to correct the 

15 misrepresentation made by counsel --

16 THE COURT: Then why don't we move forward. As I 

17 said, we really need to get --

18 MR. JIMMERSON: that he never saw them. 

19 MR. DICKERSON: My misrepresentation -- now that 

20 we're talking about misrepresentations then, why don't we 

21 correct the misrepresentation that Mr. Jimmerson made 

22 yesterday about my client in the deposition saying that she 

, ... 
-.) wanted both the Palmyra home and the Harbor Hills. Maybe he 

24 would like to review that transcript 
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MR. JIMMERSON: I have reviewed it --

2 MR. DICKERSON: -- and then come back into court --
.. MR . JIMMERSON: I took the deposition. .) 

4 MR. DICKERSON: -- and then tell Your Honor really 

5 what she said. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. And we'll look at that, we'll get 

7 there. 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: I know exactly what she said. We're 

9 going to ask her again today. 

\0 THE COURT: Come on, gentlemen. Let's -- it's okay 

II to be -- to disagree, but not be disagreeable. Let's kind of 

12 move forward. They have enough -- we're kind of missing the 

13 issue on that we need to get these people divorced and get 

14 them resolved so they can both move on with their lives and 

15 the attorneys should move on with their lives, so. 

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

17 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

18 Q Where we left off yesterday, we had talked about 

19 Mississippi and some of the liabilities. You indicated why it 

20 could be divided in half but it probably would be better if 

21 (indiscernible) for you and we've gone through that. And now 

22 I'd like to discuss on last section of the -- of the 

Mississippi assets and liabilities, and that is reference to 

24 item 12, Grotta. Would you tell us what Grotta is? You 
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mentioned it yesterday, but I want to have you explain. 

2 A Well, you have to go back, to the early nineties 

3 Q I'm referring to the asset that is identified as 

4 number 12, Grotta FSPS, LLC, part of Mississippi. Go ahead, 

5 sir. 

6 A You have to go back to the early nineties. When my 

7 mother passed away, her name is Grotta. And so my brothers 

8 and sisters wanted to form we got some money, they wanted 

9 to form a·trust. I agreed to assist it with the only 

10 objection I had, I wanted to put my wife in it so she'd be 

11 more included. This is not fair, Lynita, you're talking about 

12 my mom. So anyway, so when the money was placed, they formed 

13 Grotta Financial. They bought some property in West Flamingo 

14 and I assisted. And everybody put up their money that my morn 

15 gave us and that was in Lynita's trust. So it's all my 

16 brothers and sisters and one-sixth is Lynita. And we were 

17 very successful, made millions of dollars on the land 

18 acquisitions in West Flamingo and that's pretty much it. And 

19 this is a roll-down. All the funds have been basically 

20 dispersed. There's one piece of property in Mississippi that 

21 is designated -- that is a holding property for a tax-deferred 

22 exchange that was orchestrated by myself and that's the Grotta 

23 piece, approximately 25 acres. The other asset would be they 

24 have an interest in the casino individually under Grotta. The 

0-09-411537.0 NELSON v. NELSON 8131/2010 TRANSCRIPT 
VERBATIM REPORTING 8. TRANSCRIPTION. LLC 

11115 North La Canada, Suite 275. Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 (520) 861-0711 

AAPP 282



group does, that gives. them the one-sixth of a profit shared 

2 agreement, whatever th~ir percentages is . 

... 
.) Q I'm showing you what's been marked as proposed 

4 Exhibit 12. Is this a~true and correct copy of the Grotta 

5 Financial partnership agreement signed in 1998? 

A It is. 6 

7 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for·It's admission, Your Honor. 

8 MR. DICKERSON: Which number? 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: 12. 

10 THE COURT: Number 12. 

11 MR. DICKERSON: Can I just see it a second? 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Sure. 

13 MR. DICKERSON: Again, I have no objection to the 

14 to the agreement itself. I would just point out that the 

15 ,first page Exhibit 12 again is another one of his summaries 

16 

17 

MR. JIMMERSON: Summary 

MR. DICKERSON: -- just basically stating his 

18 thoughts. So with respect to the agreement, I think the 

19 agreement is definitely admissible, and with the other, to the 

20 extent that you believe that it helps you or at least 

21 understands his position, that's fine. 

22 THE COURT: And again, there was some commentary in 

, ... 
-.) a lot of those exhibits that were put in there, were not 

24 necessary. I'd be more concerned if we had a jury, of course, 
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with them seeing it, but here I think I can disregard the 

2 commentary and the other comments they made on it, so. 

3 THE WITNESS:' My intention wasn't to have those 

4 passed on, Your Honor.~ That was just reference to the 

5 attorneys and stuff, and (indiscernible) did a good job of 

6 typing them even. 

7 THE COURT: It's hereby admitted as Exhibit Number 

8 12. 

9 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 12 admitted) 

10 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

II Q Looking at your summary on that top page, you put --

12 you have it listed as item 12 on both Court Option A or Court 

13 Option B, it's the Grotta partnership. It owns today as it 

14 relates to Mississippi what property? 

15 A There's a 25-acre parcel. I don't know which one 

16 owns that, but from a tax standpoint we've isolated one 

17 transaction that was inside of Grotta. The's the other piece 

18 of the Grotta. And both all their assets rely in 

19 Mississippi now, all the cash was dispersed. With the falling 

20 of the casino value, of course, that value has been somewhat 

21 eliminated, if that good at all. 

22 

24 

MR. DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor; it's 

conclusory. Move to strike. 

THE WITNESS: Sorry. But my sister, Aleda --
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MR. DICKERSON: Can I get a ruling on it. I didn't 

2 hear you. 

3 THE COURT: Yeah, as far as that we don't -- as far 

4 as that right now, you say the cash has been dispersed. 

5 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

6 THE COURT: And right now they have property 

7 holdings in Mississipp~., 25 acres? 

8 THE WITNESS :'" And a tax-de'ferred exchange that holds 

9 that piece and makes it impossible to sell it because it would 

10 disrupt a -- not a complicated, but on a road condemnation 

11 act. I have special provisions that allow me to -- to 

12 designate a property later and designate a value. And that's 

13 what I did on this particular property. My sister, Aleda, and 

14 Paul, I believe, are the -- in charge of both of those --

15 Grotta. I have nothing to do with it. 

16 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay. And Lynita Nelson's trust is a part of it? 

She has one-sixth of it. 

One-sixth. And the other five are your relatives; 

20 Aleda, your sister, Paul, your brother, Clarence, your 

21 brother, Carlene (ph), your sister, and Nola (ph), your 

22 sister? 

A 

24 Q 

Yes. 

All right. And do you have a opinion as to the 
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• 
value of Grotta assets in total, which I guess would be just 

2 the Missis~ippi assets or part of the (indiscernible) assets? 

3 A At this time, I had placed it at 25,000. 

4 Q How did you calculate it; what's the basis for your 

5 (indiscernible)? 

6 A Just because there's -- there's little value in some 

7 of those areas with how much it's been diluted down. With the 

8 dilution, the casino aspect and the value there, the other 

9 part of it, the land is -- actually has no value because you 

10 couldn't sell it. If you sell it, it would engage a multi-

11 million dollar tax liability. 

12 Q And that's because of prior transactions and 

13 deferments? 

14 A Yes. (Indiscernible) that's the -- it's a little 

15 bit complicated because the deminent -- doma -- eminent domain 

16 allows you to special things under the IRS rulings. 

17 Q Okay. And was there prior eminent domain actions 

18 which led to this deferment? 

19 A The property on west Wamego, we wanted to be close 

20 to the freeway when I selected this lO-acre parcel up there. 

21 Little did I know the freeway would run right through it and 

22 so they took it. 

23 Q 

24 A 

All right. And so then the (indiscernible) 

That's 215 on West Flamingo. 
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.' ... __ ._---_._---.......... 

Q And then you used that money to buy (indiscernible) 

2 

3 A To buy other assets, but most of it was dispersed to 

4 the brothers and sisters. That came at a good time to payoff 

5 their homes. Cal invested in Cal's-Blue Water Marina. Just 

6 people did whatever they want with the money. 

7 Q Okay. Thank you. And just since we're on the 

8 subject, I don't know that I asked you this, or if I did, I'm 

9 going to ask you a second time, I don't think so, what is your 

10 opinion as to the value of Silver Slipper Ventures, LLC 

11 (indiscernible - away from microphone) interest in that 

12 presently? 

13 A More of a liability. That would be a negative 

14 position at this point_ 

15 Q It's a zero or negative number? 

16 A Undetermined, to be honest with you. 

17 Q What do you believe the 200 acres is worth 

18 presently, understanding (indiscernible - away from 

19 microphone). 

20 A Well, the -- our basis is approximately 1.4, 1.5 

21 million. It's probably right back to the basis of what we 

22 did. We -- we suffered some very adversable title issues now 

?"I _J where they over time properly could be correct, environmental 

24 issues. We have a lien against the property, but I still 
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value above the liens in those areas, somewhere in the area of 

2 1.5 million. But the property isn't free and clear. Those 

3 are those assets that have pending issues, let's just say. 

4 Q Thank you. So from our discussion yesterday 

5 afternoon and this morning, Mr. Nelson, do you believe that we 

6 have covered the Mississippi properties sufficiently or is 

7 there anything else you wish to add at this time? 

A I think to --8 

9 MR. DICKERSON: Object to'the form of the question, 

10 Your Honor. It's not an appropriate question. 

II THE COURT: Yeah, you got a question you want to ask 

12 him specifically or -- is there a Mississippi property --

13 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

14 Q Are there any other issues or any other liabilities 

15 about Mississippi that you'd like to speak to the Court about? 

16 MR. DICKERSON: Again, Your Honor, that's -- he can 

17 ask him questions, but that's basically such an open-ended 

18 question 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: It is open and it calls for him to 

20 give an answer. 

21 MR. DICKERSON: Basically it's calling for a 

22 narrative, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Yeah, do you have any -- as far as that, 

24 you've gone through all the property I think in excruciating 
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pain. 

2 THE WITNESS: I think the experts, Dan Garrity (ph), 

3 possibly Harold Duke, could reflect those issues better. 

4 MR. JIMMERSON: All right. Thank you. All right. 

5 Do you have -- may I have Court Exhibit A, Option A 

6 (indiscernible - away from microphone) . 

7 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

8 Q Do you happer: to have (inaiscernible - away from 

9 microphone). 

10 A Sorry, I was just trying to save you time. 

II THE COURT: Okay. You've got the ones that are 

12 marked? 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, he did. 

14 (Whispered conversation) 

15 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

16 Q So now we've covered, I believe, 1 through 12, and 

17 then we've gone through the cash. And we've talked about the 

18 tax refund, Number 83, that's held by Mr. Stephens and the 

19 different accounts, the IRS liability, we talked about that. 

20 Now, we did not talk about Grizzly liability. So let's speak 

21 to item 29/30. What is Grizzly liability? 

22 A In early 2000, I participated four mini casinos in 

Washington State. I was successful in the closing of three of 

24 them, the last being the Grizzly Casino. In the process 
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there, I did sell it. All the funds from the proceeds went 

2 into the community estate. There was a note that was carried 

3 back and also I guarantor on some of the equipment and a 

4 guarantor on the lease: When the gentleman defaulted on the 

5 casino, we did not receive any funds for the note. And these 

6 two became judgments against me for 65,000 from the rent and 

7 from some of the equipment list. And Eric Nelson owes that 

8 amount, so I put it asa liability. 

9 Q All right. And what -- you know, what negotiations 

10 with your counsel in Washington or opposing counsel in 

11 Washington, are there any negotiations regarding how this is 

12 to be resolved? 

\3 A It's just the -- the equipment lease is a judgment, 

14 it's done. I mean, lowe about 30,000 on it, I think. The 

15 other portion on the lease, it's -- you know, it's going up in 

16 value. They want more money and I haven't really started 

17 negotiations on it to any great extent. I have tendered a few 

18 offers, they've rejected them. They want more than the --

19 more that is listed here, let's just say that. 

20 Q All right. And in any event, you and Lynita, the 

21 community, are exposed to at least $65,084 in --

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

That's correct. 

-- judgments and claim? 

And I don't --
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MR. DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor; that's not 

2 his testimony. He says'-- the judgritent was $30,000, the rest 

.. is speculation, is it hot? .J 

4 MR. JIMMERSON! No, it's not speculation. 

5 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

6 Q Would you please tell the Court why the money owed 

7 is approximately $65,000 or more; and I know you -- made up of 

8 a judgment of $30,000 plus an additional liability relating to 

9 the lease. Would you give us more detail? 

10 A Yeah, I think we have -- approximate is at 30, 

II there's so many issues, Your Honor, but approximately 30,000 

12 is a judgment that's been in place for about three or four 

13 years. The other portion of it was a lease, and I concur that 

14 I guarantored X amount on the lease if the tenant ever failed. 

15 When we -- when the purchase of that property went down, it 

16 had to require that I would guaran -- for the -- for the owner 

17 to allow that lessee to step in, I had to sign on that I would 

18 guarantee a portion of it, and it's approximately I think 

19 about 35,000 now. They've run it up with attorney fees and 

20 interest and things like that. But safely to say, it exceed 

21 65,000, but I thought that was a reasonable number so we 

22 wouldn't argue about it so much. 

'''' _.J 

24 

Q 

A 

And what --

And we've had demand letters in that area -- and I 
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and I think there is a judgment. I don't know, you'd have 

2 to look it up, Shahana, to see if they actually did get 

3 something signed off by the judge. 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Who is Kelso Longview Elks Lodge Number 1418? 

That's the landlord. 

6 Q Okay. And have they brought a lawsuit against you 

7 here recently in 2010? 

13 attention to proposed exhibit 29. I'd like to have the 

14 summons and complaint for monies owed against Eric Nelson and 

15 Cleopatra's Wild Grizzly Casino marked and moved into 

16 evidence. 

17 THE COURT: And this would be on the lease portion 

18 from the landlord, suing you for the lease portion? 

19 THE WITNESS: Yeah, it 

20 MR. DICKERSON: Is the judgment in here? 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: I do not think the judgment is in 

22 the two exhibits I have. 

'" _J 

24 

MR. 

MR. 

DICKERSON: I'm sorry? 

JIMMERSON: I have only one exhibit 
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-- it's not a judgement, it's the lawsuit that was brought on 

2 June 21. And Exhibit 30 is a cover letter to Mr. Nelson and 

3 that does include the notice of entry of judgment, so yes, the 

4 judgment is (indiscernible - away ftom microphone) . 

5 MR. DICKERSON: So the judgment is against a LLC and 

6 a corporation? 

7 THE WITNESS: It personally guarantees, I believe, 

8 in those areas. I'm not quite sure exactly. 

9 MR. DICKERSOl~: Oh , I see, Okay. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: The judgment is 

11 MR. DICKERSON: Is against Eric Nelson. I got it. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: TGF (ph) Financial versus Eric 

13 Nelson, individually. The amount of the judgment, Your Honor, 

14 is (indiscernible - away from microphone) --

15 MR. DICKERSON: It looks like it's a default 

16 judgment. 

17 (Whispered conversation) 

18 THE WITNESS: You can call Rochelle (ph). 

19 Rochelle's going to meet us at 12:15, so she can bring those 

20 documents. 

21 MR. DICKERSON: So we can get the full default 

22 judgment before you --

MR. JIMMERSON: Yeah, let's do that. That makes a 

24 better record, I agree. 
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MR. DICKERSON: So that's 30 and then 29 is another 

2 lawsuit (indiscernible). 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: We can move for admission of Number 

4 29, Judge. (Indiscernible - away from microphone) on 30 and 

5 I'll get the full document. 

6 THE COURT: Hold off on Number 30. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: May I just inquire? I notice that 

8 this was the lawsuit, Number 29, there's a stamp on here of 

9 June 30th. Has this been served? Has Mr. Nelson been served 

10 wi th this? 

11 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: It's seeking to enforce a judgment 

13 of $38,309, so we know what the amount of the underlying 

14 judgment is because it specifically reference that Bates stamp 

15 224--

16 MR. DICKERSON: No, no, no, you're dealing with a 

17 different action, Jim. That's they're prayer. This is the 

18 Number 29 is the case ongoing. So they're asking for 38,000. 

19 THE WITNESS: And that's what was granted. 

20 THE COURT: And that's for the lease? The 

21 judgment's for the equipment, 30,000, and this is for the 

22 lease part of it? 

24 believe. 

THE WITNESS: This is just the lease, the 38, I 
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THE COURT: They're asking about 38,000. 

2 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 

3 THE COURT: That's where you came up with the 65, 

4 about --

5 THE WITNESS: About 65. 

6 THE COURT: 30,000 for the equipment and about 38 

7 for the lease. 

8 MR. JIMMERSON-: So are we okay on (indiscernible), 

9 Mr. Dickerson? 

10 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, I have no objection with 

11 Number 29. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: We'll work on trying to get the 

13 second page. It's just a xerox error. 

14 THE COURT: We'll hold off on 30 until we get the 

15 full document, but 29 will be admitted. 

16 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 29 admitted) 

17 MR. DICKERSON: And again, just so that there's no 

18 misunderstanding, again the first page of that exhibit is his 

19 summary, but the documents itself, I have no objection. 

20 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

21 Q ~~d what was the transaction, you may have 

22 testified, what was the transaction that led up to this 

23 liability? 

24 A Well, we opened a facility, approximately a million 
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dollar mini casino at 20 

2 Q And this is in the year what? 

3 A Oh, I'm sorry, 19 -- let's see, probably 2000 -- and 

4 I apologize, '02, something like that? 

5 Q Eight, nine, 10 years ago? 

6 A Yeah. 

7 Q All right. 

8 A And we opened a facility at 150 -- oh, I had about 

9 250 employees at that facility, a big restaurant, big bar 

10 facility, 15 table games, including poker, Your Honor, an off-

11 track betting parlor. And my -- you don't want to hear 

12 (indiscernible), but it didn't work. But anyway, we sold it 

13 -- sold it and that was what it was. I sold the interest, got 

14 back about 150,000 which we put in th~ity :~-:~ 
• __ ~_,n< 

~ ... ,,-~" ••••• > ... ' 

15 carried back about 250,000, which the defaulted and 

16 I elected not to reopen the licensing 

17 facility. (ffq \C~ 
18 Q Okay. .. 1 ) 

~--~~",'/ 

19 A And so these are extended liabilities I forgot about 

20 that I had guarantored some of these areas because he had 

21 operated for about a year successfully. 

22 

24 

Q Okay. Why did you -- why did it -- why was a 

default judgment entered against you? 

A The equipment lease was -- some equipment was put in 
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the property and somehow it got back to me personally. I 

2 never okayed the equipment, but it was a judgment that came up 

3 and it was on some DCC agreement that they enforced. The 

4 other one was a lease. In order to allow the new tenant to 

5 come in, I had to guarantee a portion of the lease, I think it 

6 was like four or five months; that he in the event he did 

7 default, I felt I could sell the assets inside to cover it. 

8 They did auction off all the assets, all the casino property, 

9 but did not cover these two judgment areas. 

10 Q So this is (indiscernible) suing on the personal 

11 guarantee that you had posted --

12 A Yeah, the portion that wasn't collected. 

13 Q -- eight years ago. Okay. And have you re are 

14 you now obliged to retain counsel to defend this case in the 

15 Superior Court of Washington County? 

16 A That's correct. 

17 Q All right. And do you have a defense or is this 

18 just an obligation that you're going to try to negotiate and 

19 payoff over time? 

20 A It would cost me more to defend it than it's worth. 

21 Q So what is your plan relative to this community 

22 allocation? 

7'"' _J A I'll just pay. I figured I pay it out and negotiate 

24 it after the divorce . 
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Q All right .. Let's continue now, please. You have 

2 before you a Court Option A and B. _ These are all identical 

3 here. 31,we're talking about Eric Nelson's car, we talked 

4 about that yesterday 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q -- that was money that you would be obliged to pay 

7 for her new car. 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q All right. Eric Nelson car, $20,000, an agreement 

10 you had reached with your wife about buying him a car? 

1 1 A Yes. 

12 Q Okay. So these negatives are assigned to you --

13 MR. DICKERSON: May I object to the leading nature 

14 of the questions, Judge. 

15 THE COURT: Sustained. Yeah, we talked --

16 BY MR. JI~~ERSON: 

17 Q What is your intention relative to these -- to 

18 negative assets being aw~rded to you relative to these 

19 automobiles? 

20 A Both the kids are straight A students and we had 

21 always, with the two prior kids -- buy them a car in high 

22 school when they turn 16, and then when they get on the road 

to go to college, like to have new wheels on their car. Erica 

24 elected not to go to a college, so she held back. She's much 
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more conservative than the other kids. Garett turns 16 in two 

2 weeks. We had set aside $35,000 that Melissa's holding for --

3 for herself or for Lynita or whatever, I don't know, but she 

4 has that check. 

5 Q And that is 

6 A We talked about everything but the Paul 

7 (indiscernible). 

8 

9 

Q 

A 

Is that the Garett stock, ;~c!count? 
.,r· " 

That's right. That -- my thought was that Lynita 

10 could control that, however, with the mishandling of her 

11 assets, in my opinion, I think it'd be better if she splits 

12 it, I take back half, she takes back half. The check was made 

13 out to me, it was in my stock account, Your Honor. It's--

14 and I endorsed it over to Lynita. I did not endorse it over 

15 to Melissa. There was no intention to pay Melissa's legal 

16 fees with that. 

17 Q Her accounting -- professional fees. 

18 A Professional fees. 

19 Q All right. Numbers we talked about 31, 32; 

20 talked about 33, 38, 39, and 40. I want to speak to them 

21 again briefly. Hideaway liability, we already covered. 

22 That's the attorney's fees in the event there's a lawsuit? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q Okay. That's something to be decided in the future? 
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A That's right. 

2 Q All right. Silver Slipper liability, $300,000; that 

3 is based upon litigation costs if there is litigation with the 

4 partners? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

All right. Silver Slipper tax (indiscernible) 

7 number eight is unknown. 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

That will be addressed with Dan Garrity, I think. 

You talked about phantom income and the like. Okay. 

10 And number 40, environmental liabilities of $300,000. That's 

II the moving of land and preserving -- the potential -- it's a 

12 contingent obligation of Silver Slipper not (indiscernible) to 

13 do regarding the lands; is that right? 

14 A Yes. Yeah, I do have documentation from the 

15 Department of Marine Resources in some areas that we were red 

16 flagged, they call it, but I don't know if I ever shared them 

17 with you. There's so many documents I thought it would 

18 didn't mean anything anyway at the end of the day. 

19 Q All right. Soris contingent liability, we've 

20 already spoken to. Paul Nelson liability, what is that, 

21 please? 

22 A Paul's my brother. He built the Fitzgerald. We've 

23 been lifetime partners in transactions similar to Cal. Paul 

24 moved his son and his wife and their child to Arizona to buy 
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non-performing assets in Banone Arizona. He also moved his 

2 daughter, her husband, their child to Arizona. They were 

3 employed exclusively by me to -- to go and buy and repair. 

4 Paul had the knowledge, so he suck -- he went out, seeked out 

5 about 41 REO properties. He bought them all, I never saw any 

6 of them. They fixed them up. That became the Ban-One Arizona 

7 properties, those 41. I told.Paul the same thing, Paul, we 

8 are done. We are going to split these assets out, I need you 

9 out, and I have a liability. I -- just for the Court's 

10 record, we've had a conversation. It's just a handshake 

II my brothers. I've agreed to give him the best house and 

12 worst house in Phoenix, if he would choose them. But I said 

13 it'd have to be agreed to by Lynita. That's a total of about 

14 $60,000 total. So that's our agreement as of a week ago. He 

15 will pretty much concede to any scenario that the Court would 

16 want because of the man and his nature. 

17 Q And by there's been kind of an issue 

18 A But he lived down -- he did live -- he went back and 

19 forth and stayed for a solid year providing -- the blue sky to 

20 him was we're going to buy hundreds of these properties, buy 

21 and sell just like my brother, Cal, did here. He's extremely 

22 knowledgeable, works hard, and he didn't have a job at the 

time, still doesn't have a job. He's half retired and he's 

24 back up in Salt Lake now, you know, doing his own thing. The 
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boys are no longer any of my employee. They do -- I do get a 

2 service from them, but that's it. 

3 Q All right. So let me cover this. You have made an 

4 oral agreement because of the work he's done at Ban-One over 

5 the last two years to allow him to select two houses? 

6 A Take -- yeah, two houses, about $60,000. 

7 Q All right. And then you have a negative 200,000 as 

8 ::;,', 

9 A That would be -- that liability would go away, that 

10 the relationship of me and Paul, which he understands 

11 because of the divorce, would be done. He -- he went down 

12 there with a blue sky approach. He understood it didn't work 

13 out, and even though we're probably short-changing him on it, 

14 that was the thing. If the Court likes it --

15 Q Okay. I want to --

16 A great, don't like it, I don't --

17 Q I'm listening to this and this is a little 

18 different than what we had known about a month or two ago. 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q You told me you talked to him. So do I understand 

21 that would it be proper for the Court, Mr. Dickerson, and I 

22 

?'" _oJ 

24 

to modify the item 42 Paul Nelson liability to negative 

60,000, not negative 200,OOO? 

A I'd prefer to say that the best of the 21 houses, 
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which is about 35,000, .and the worst of the house, number 21. 

2 Q Okay. So 1 and 217 

., 
J A On the on the A and B,list in Arizona. However, 

4 if we gave him 60 or 65,000, that'd be just the same. He 

5 coul~ buy some new houses. 

6 Q So I'm going to put on my sheet of Court Option A 

7 and Court Option B on line 42 that it's minus 60 and not minus 

8 200,000. 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q Understanding that the discussion was an award of 

II two houses of Ban One, 1 and 21. 

12 A Right. 

13 Q Thank you. Thank you very much. Maness lawsuit we 

14 talked about, this is a -- this is your estimate of the 

15 attorney's fees --

16 A Yes, sir. 

17 Q defending the case, $200,000, and the second 

18 lawsuit that he's threatened and that would be a contingent 

19 liability because there has not been a second lawsuit filed; 

20 is that right? 

21 A Yes, that's -- I think it's involved in the Maness 

22 lawsuits or the depositions where they had -- Maness had 

23 actually sold the property. And individual had lost several 

24 hundred thousand of the deposit because he wouldn't close 
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